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PROFESSOR OLIVER LAYMON: | would like %o call
this open meeting to order. First of all, I would like to
identiTy myself., | am Cliver Laymon from Vermillion. |
would like for you fo meet the other members of the state
advisory committee, On my far right, Bishop Gesner from
Sicux Falls; Mayor Raff of Rapid City; Father Sieh from
Sioux Falls; Doctor Munson from Rapid City; Reverend Havyes
from Sioux Fallsy Mr. Rudell from Spearfish; Doctor Palmer
from Vermillion and Mr. Ben Irving from Pine Ridge. Also
in attendance we have our atfttorney advisor to the state ad-
visory committees, Mr. Phil L. Hammer, sitting in the front
row. He will have some words to bring to yvyou in a moment.
And we also have Doctor Wilson from Colorado who is our
regional consultant.

I would like to say at the outsef that this com-
miftee is deeply sensitive to the depth and strength of the
emotions which this topic has aroused., Let me assure you
that we do not seek to capitalize on the news value of this
topic. 1, for one, would condemn, ouft-of-hand, any member
of this committee who sought to make political hay out of
someone else's misforfunes. We seek here, friends, only
an objective understanding of this problem In Rapid City.

Now, by what right do we come here? And what Is

the basis for our existence? The Civil Rights Act of 1957

authorized the creation of state advisory committees. Our



functions are numerous. They are detailed in the Federal
Register, which we will be happy to supply vou with, if

you would like to examine it more closely. [Ii's much, much
too lengthy for me to read here. | would like simply to
bring you some of the salient or more important facts con-
tained fhe;ein. First of all I =-- As one goes through the
functions, as they are set out in the Federal Régister,
certain things stand out -- at least to me. Among our
functions are these: We are here, and we are in existence
for -- among'ofher things -- to advise the Commission on
Civil Rights of all information concerning legal develop~-
ments constituting a denia!l of equal protection of the laws
under the Constitution. Among other things, we are also fto
receive reports, suggestions and recommendations from in-
dividuals, public and private organizations and public
officials upon matters pertinent to inquiries conducted by
the state committee. While our functions are quite numerous,
our limitations are equally impressive. For example, the
Federal Register states that the state committee shall noft,
in conjunction with its meetings or otherwise, purport to
hold or to conduct a formal hearing or advisory proceeding
of any type, take oral testimony under sworn oath, issue
subpoenas, or conduct itself other than as an advisory body
serving a federal agency. \We have no connection with the
state government of South Dakota.
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Now, our interests are extremely broad. Some
meetings ago, we concluded that we would begin a broad
study of the Indian situation in South Dakota. Then this
unforfunate publicity with respect to Rapid City diverted
our attention, and we realized it was such a pressing issve,
that we had fto make some inquiries here before we went on
to our broader topic. And that's why | would like to say
at the outset that we are going fo confine our inquiry here
today and the purpose of this open meeting is nof a discus-
sion of(}roblems other than those experienced by colored/
airmen at the Rapid City alr base. Now, some of you may
wonder, and since we have no power fo compel testimony, how
we can tupnction or how we ¢can implement the objectives which
are set out for us in the rederal Register. Best of all,
perhaps you wonder what we hope to accomplish here todaye.

As | indicated, we cannot compel testimony. No one has been
served with a subpecena. The only semblance of a legal pro-
ceeding you will find here today is the presence of the
United States Narshal, hir. Hekathorn. We can only ask that
people testify in these areas as we explore them, and this
is just the first of what we hope will be many, but since

we can't compel testimony, we sometimes think that In this
fact -- we cannot compel it =- lies our strength, rather
than our weakness. WNo one here can be held for perijurye.
Vhile the witnesses who will testify this morning are not
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under oath, neither are the people who will have an oppor-
tunity to examine them. Thus it might encourage more testi-
mony simply through the fact that no one can be held, as |
said, for perjury; nor can the veracity of anyone be attacked
in any court of law,

Our problem today, simply stated, is to determine
whether or not there is a problem in Rapid City. Now, what
constitutes a problem? You must all be aware, by this time,
that we are interested in the question of whether or not
there is discrimination in Rapid City. Now, this raises
the question -- many, many questions. For example is:
Should we look at this discrimination as a quanfifafivé

thing? That is fo say, must it be a question of numbers?

| sincerely hope that we will have many witnesses today,
but | think we must also reailze that, within the time limi-
tations, we could not take all the testimony which might be

given to us, but the surveys which you have read indicate
that there has or has not been certain discrimination in
certain places. \Vell, we are not going fto refer to the sur-
veys which the newspapers have made in Rapid City because,
and | think | can speek 7or the whole committee, when we say
that you can't view discrimination altogether as a quanti-
tative thing. Now, we don't do this with respect to other
crimes. Critics woulc say that it would be specious to draw
a comparison befween crimes of murder, for example, and dis-

-4




crimination, but | submit to you this morning that our con-
cepts of elemental wrongs have become considerably more
sophisticated since the Ten Commandments were fashioned, and
we on the commission fake the view that discrimination can
be wrong. Now, unhappily, the law has tc lag behind social
acceptance and rejection., That is to say, society must Tirst
try a thing Tor a long, long time before it decides whether
or not it'!'s good or bad; therefore, some of us are wrestling
with the difficulty of putting discrimination in with other
crimes., Nevertheless, discrimination can be considered as

a social wrong, and while it doesn't yet carry the social
approbiam that murder and many of the other wrongs do, never-
theless, we are o7 the opinion that it can be a wrong, and,
at the time, it may be a crime. | would also like to state
that ours is nof going to be an irresponsible Tnquiry. We
hope to approach this question of discrimination from three
standpoints. There is, Tirst of all, the fact of discrimi-
nation. Secondly, there is the extent of discrimination.
Thirdly, there is the meaning of discrimination. Number one
is largely self-explanatory. One of the things we hope fto
find out is: Are colored servicemen from.the Rapid City air
base being discriminated against? That will be the fact.
Secondly, with respect to the extent or discriminaticn; we
can't hope, as | said, to take all the testimony which may

be brought betore us, but we do hope to prove or disprove
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the fact of discrimination., Thirdly, the meaning of dis-
crimination is much, much more difticult. This really
points fto the crux of our inquiry here today, and this will
be the end product of this open meeting. That is to say:
How does discrimination &@ifect the life of colored service-
men? [Now, this would seem to carry legislative implications.
Let me assure you that nothing could be further from the
fruths As | indicated earlier, we are not a part of the
state government of South Dakota. We will conduct this open
meeting. We will make a report which we will submit to the
United States Commission on Civil Rights. We will submit

no report to the state legislature. We are not here to hold
a hearing on a public accommodations law., |[f the facts, as
they are revealed here today, indicate a need for a public
accommodations law, then that will simply be a by-product

of this hearing. But | would like to stress, and stress and
stress the fact that we are not holding a hearing on the de-
sirability of a public accommodations law. Now, we are
simply a Tact-finding organization., We are not a social
action group. We are here simply to learn the facts about
the problem in Rapid Citye.

Now, before we take testimony, | would like to
introduce hir. Hammer who is the -- again the atforney advisor
to the state advisory committees. Mr. Hammer will assist
me in relating our functions to those of the Commission on
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Civil Rights. Mr. Hammer, would you say a few words?

MR. PHILIP HAMMER: Mr. Chairman and members of
the South Dakota Advisory Committee, my name is Philip L.
Hammer, attorney advisor for state advisory committees of
the United States Commission on Civil Rights staff. I am
happy to be here to participate in this open meeting on the
subject of discrimination against miliftary personnel in and
around Rapid City. My purpose in making a presentation fo
the committee, a function that is outside my usuval duties in
connection with the advisory committees, is to explain the
interest of the Commission on Civil Rights in the problem
o7 discrimination against military personnel. The Commission
was created by the Civil Rights Act of 1957 as a by-partisan
agency fo study and collect information on legal develop-
ments constituting a denial of equal protection of the laws
under the Constitution; to appraise the laws and policies
of the federal! government with respect to equal! protection
and to prepare and submit reports to the President and the
Congress on its activities, Tindings and recommendations.
It is in connection with the function of appraisal of the
laws and policies of the federal government that the Commis-—
sion has undertaken this year a study of the armed forces
from the standpoint of equal opportunity, regardless of race,
religion, color or national origin. The official policy
barring segregation in the armed services was declared by
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President Truman on lJuly 26th, 1948 in Executive Order 9981.
That order clearly stated, and | quote: ™I+ is hereby de-
clared to be the policy of the President that there shall be
equality of treatment and opportunity for all persons in the
“armed services without regard to race, color, religion or
national origin. This policy shall be put into effect as
rapidly as possible, having due regard to the time required
to effectuate any necessary changes without impairing ef=-
ficiency or moral."™ With the issvance of Executive Order 9981,
all official sanction of segregation in the armed forces was
eliminated by the services. By mid lanvary of 1950, the
army, navy and air force departments had issuved orders e¢f-
fectuating the policy of equality of opportunity and treat-
ment. In 1951, the Commission on Civil Rights reported to
the President and Congress on employment by the federal
government, including some of the programs of the Department
of Defense. In our employment report in 1961, the Commis-
sion found that segregation of unifts does, in fact, exist

in the armed forces reserves and the national guards in

some sections of the country and that factual information
about the extent of representatien of minority groups in

the Department of Defense was not available. The Department
of Oefense at that timez considered integration to have been
an accomplished fact and that further reporfs on the progress

o7 eliminating discrimination would be of no purpose. This
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was disturbing tfo the Commission in view of the persistence
of complaints and reports of continuing discrimination in
off-base housing Tor milifary personnel, in the segregation
of schools in cerfain areas of the country o which military
personne!l were forced to send their children, and in the un-
availability of places of public accommodation near military
bases. The picture that was revealed by the report was one
of serious deprivation of opportunity for non-white personnel
once they left the protective wing of the military base to
seek the essentials of life available only in the surrounding
civilian community. As a result, the Commission on Civil
Rights in early 1962 decided to undertake a thorough investi-
gation of discrimination aéainsf military personnel. These
are the questions that we ask: Vhat problems of racial dis-
crimination does the Negro and his family encounter off base
and on base in such flelds as housing, education, public
accommodations and relations with the police and general
community? What are the policies and practices of the armed
forces in dealing with these problems? What corrective

L
i

steps, if any, should be faken? To what extent is the Negro
participating In the technical fraining programs of the
armed forces? To what extent do these training programs
serve as an alternative means 7or Negroes to secure training

not otherwise available in the civilian labor market., What

is the composition of the army, navy, air force, marines,
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‘ |
reserves and national guards by race, rank and military
occupational specialties? What patterns exist? What is
the basis for these patterns? What corrective steps, if
any, should be taken? These are the questions which demand
answers, and the Commission on Civil Rights has set out to
seek the answers. The Commission has gone about this par-
ticular survey by establishing liaison with the Depariment
of Defense and attempting to work In cooperation to solve
the problems that the study involves. Information on the
racial composition of the armed forces has been made avail-
able to the Commission staff by the department for use in

this study. To a remarkable extent the cooperation betftween

the Department of Defense and the Commission staff has pro- .
duced results which will make this project constructive and
meaningful. Field trips are currently underway by Commission
on Civil Rights attorneys to collected military bases around
the country, and on these trips the staff attorneys have

been afforded full cooperation and assistance of military.
officials. The staff was enabled to gather significant data
at the bases visifed in orcer to appraise the existing prob-
lems of discrimination in the military. One of the bases
visited this year by the Commission staff was Ellsworth Air
Force Base here neer Ranid City. A staff report has been
submitted on that visit, anc the finding of the staff at-
torneys was that while base officials were doing what was
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required fo‘implemenf the policy of equal opportunity and
freatment to Negro airmen on base, there seemed to exist
wide-spread discrimination against Negro personne!l in the
bars, restaurants, motfels, barber shops and night clubs of
Rapid City. More seriously, the staff found in its report

that discriminatory housing patterns -- practices -- excuse

me == in Rapid City mean an almost complete unavailability

r
1

oi decent rental housing for non-white airmen which, on oc~-
casion, had compelled them fto leave dependents behind and
live on post. The Commission has called upon the South Dakota
Advisory Committee for further information on this disturbing
sitvation. We desire factuval information from your committee
on the community attitudes and practices in Rapid City toward
Negro servicemen stationed at the nearby base. Members of
the community living in Rapid City gave valuable assistance
to our staff people when they were here earlier this year.
You are now called upon to assess the performance of your
community as It meets the serbiccmen of our country assigned
to this base. James H. keredith whose battle to win accep-
tance at the University of Mississippi we are all observing
now wrote in the Saturday Evening Post last month, and |
quote: "Certainly my Alir Force days were the most influ-

ial time of my life. | served in nothing but integrated
units. It seems fo me that the integration of the armed
forces is one of the most important things that has happened
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to the Negro in the Unitéd States." President Kennedy,

on June 24th of this year, expressed his concern about evi-
dence of continuing discrimination against military personnel
and their families on the basis of race, color, creed or
national origin and created a new presidential committee

on equal opportunity in the armed forces. The Commission on
Civil Rights is cooperating closely with this commiftee in
assessing this sitvation. |In appointing the chairman of

that new committee, President Kennedy wrote, and | quote:
"The Depariment of Defense has made great progress since

the end of World War 1l in promoting equality of treatment
and opportunity for all persons in the armed forces. The
military services can fake justifiable pride in their out-
standing accomplishment in this area over the past ten years.
It is appropriate now, however, to make a thorough review

of the current sitfvation, both within the services and in

the communities where military installations are locéfed, to
determine what further measures may be required to assure
equality of treatment for all persons serving in the armed
forces. There is considerable evidence that in some civilian
communities in which military installations are locaféd,
discrimination on the basis of race, color, creed or national
origin is a serious source of hardship and embarrassment for
the armed forces! personnel and their dependents." The

President, in that same letter, asked tRat the following
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questions be considered; two of them. One: "What measures
could be taken to improve the effectiveness of current
policies and procedures in the armed forces with regard to
equality of treatment and opportunity for persons in the
armed forces? Two: What measures should be employed to
improve equality of opportunity for members of the armed
forces and their dependents in the civilian cammunity, par-
ticularly with respect fo housing, education, transportfation,
recreational facilities, community activities, programs and
activities2" The Commission on Civil Rights intends to is-
sue a report in 1963 on its survey of the armed forces.
The intormation which is developed today, and in the coming
months by the South Dakota Advisory Committee on this sub-
ject, will be of value when the attitudes of communities
such as Rapid City are assessed. The Commission will find
it most important to know whether the declaration of police
by the President is striking @ harmonious note in American
communities such as Rapid City which house and accommodate
our men in uniform.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Thank you, Mr. Hammer.

DR. PALMER: Would you like to leave that with
us ¢

PROFESSOR LAYMON: One word about the format be-
fore we commence. We are running behind time. We should,

by this time, have almost completec one area of discussion.
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We had planned and we intend yet fo consider this question
by areas; that is to say, we will first consider and take
testimony on possible discrimination in hotels and motels
and then that which has existed, or is alleged to exist,

in the bars, cafes and night clubs, which will take us up
tc noon. This afternocon we hope toc hear testimony on these
other areas; namely, barber shops and in housing. Now,- |
had hoped to have a list of the people who would g}ve us
information this morning. We don't have it. | don't have
ite. Therefore, | can only ask for volunteers from the floor.
We want you to come forward; identify yourself, and sit at
this table, and at the completion of your remarks, the com-
mittee will first ask questions, explanations or perhaps
ask for amplification of what was said, and then | have
every intention of permitting as many questions as possible
irom the floor because we want it made clear that we want
an open meeting, and we want as many as possible to -- or
rather who can, come forward and comment on the testimony,
to do so.

DR. PALMER: Mr. Chairman, | wonder if we might
suggest that those who have written statements file them
with the secretary, as Mr. Hammer has done with his statement,
so that we can have that in our record.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: That is a very good suggestion.

MR. RAFF: Mr. Chairman, would it be wise to ask
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representatives o7 organizations and responsible government
officials to speak with us first.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | would be happy to do that,
if | knew who they were. | have a list of those who have
signed. May | have that? However, | can't tell from this
whether or not these individuals are here simply as specta-
tors or whether they want fo give us ftestimonye.

DR. PALMER: Why don't we simply ask those who
would want to give testimony on motels or hotels, to begin
wifh,-and take them as they come.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Would you come forward; state
your name for the record, and sit at this desk.

. MARVIN BEACH: MLir. Chairman, members of the commis-
sion, ladies and gentlemen, my name is Marvin Beach. | am
the president of the local Rapid City motel! associafion. |
am & director on the state motel association. | am owner
and operator of Motel Beach in Rapid City, and | am a member
of the air force reserve flight in Rapid City, and what |
have to say mainly has come out of sezveral meetings, both
local and state wide. Sunday afternoon at Pierre we had a
directors?! meeting of the South Dakota State Motel Associa-
tion, and | have a word from them. Previous to this, however,
] would like to state that we in the motel industry in Rapid
City cannot specak 7or the permanent housing, buf | can speak
,for the motels, at least those who belong fo our association,

. and, generally speaking, that is about ninety fto ninety-{ive
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‘ ®
per cent of the motels in the city. We feel that we have
not discriminated in the past, and we don't wish to in the
future. According to your surveys, | bel}eve you have
found very spotty cases df discrimination. This is beyond
our control. And it's far in the minority, considering the
number of motfels, and the possible discrimination from that
number is very small. We felt == three or four years ago
when this problem came to light the first time, we were not
aware of any discrimination whatsoever, and it seemed to
us as though a problem was being created so far as our
business and organization is concerned. Many times we have

asked our own membership if they accept everyone so far as

race, creed, color and religion, and | have yet to sece any-
one. who does not. At least they won'!t publically admit it,

£
T

it they do. To my knowledge, | could not name you one place
that does not accept anvone. There may be. But to my know-
ledge, | do not know of this. Since this problem has come

up, and there seems to be considerable pressure and considerable
adverse publicity toward South Dakota, we would like to take
some sort of a stand. OCur business is ninety per cent tourists.
It's a tremendous business In this state. It!s perhaps an
eighty million dollar industry to the vicinity of Rapid City
itself, which to my knowledge is about three 4o Tour times
bigger than the next largest indusiry in this area. We do

not want adverse advertising for this area, and certfainly we
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don't want to have the label of being discriminators. |If
this should come to pass, we feel it will hurt our industry.
If this industry is hurt, it hurts the whole community and
the whole West River and the whole of South Dakotfta. Sunday
at the South Dakcta motel directors! meeting at Pierre, this
was one of the prime issues that we will probably watch
closely in the legislature. Our stand on that is -- I'm
speaking for a state-wide stand -- and it reflects pretty
much the local thinking -- that we are against discrimination
of any kind; that if and when a law is proposed in the legis-

lature, 17T the wording of that law is according to the wording

that | received from Doctor Munson in the mail == | don't
have it because | left it with our secretary -- which states
Tor reasons of race, creed, color or religion -— | believe;
this law dces not in any way affect us. The wording scems
to be in line. And if this law does come to pass, our main
interest and our lobbyist, if we have one, will be there to

determine mostly the penalty of the law. We feel that the
law should not only be made to protect one side, but it
should be made to protect the other side. By the "penalty
of the law" | mean this: That if a person of degrading
character, such as disorderly, drunken, or in some other
way intends to defraud, we people in this industry as inn-
keepers --

MR. RUDELL: Therel!s a copy of the law there.
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MR. BEACH: (Continuing) |If this thing happens,
and this person is derogatory in their appearance or character,
when they wish to register In our motels, and we refuse them
on basis other than race, creed, color or religion or national
origin -- or whatever the reading of the law here is == if
we reject them for reasons other than that, and they bring
suit against us, we want it to be read into the law that if
they should lose, it would not cost us attorney fees and
court costs; it would cost defendant bringing these charges.
IT we are in the wrong, then we would feel that we should
pay whatever the penalty of the law is and court costs, at-
torney fees and fine. This is equal protection. In order
to see that this is carried out, if we do have someone who
we fTeel is, due fto character of drunkenness or impolifeness,
to the point of being almost out of line, we feel that we
should hold that person long enough to get a witness on our
behalf, and | don't believe that the people in the civil
rights or the Negro people or the Indian people or anyone
could argue this point too far. It!'s simply a protection
so far as we are concerned in our industry, which we have
every right to expecf‘as citizens and taxpayers.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | must limit you to that amount
of time, Mr. Beach, because we have, | think, other people
that might want fo ask vou some questions. | think perhaps

someone might want tc come Torward with testimony to the
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confrarye.

DR. PALMER: Mr. Chairman, there are just a couple
of points that | would like to raise. First of all, | think
that you have pointed to & very important aspect of the
whole problem, as we are going to be discussing it todays;
that is, the distinction of discrimination on the basis of
race, creed, color, national origin, or whatever is involved,
as opposed to judgments in terms of manner of dress or of
social behaviory if they are obnoxious —-- these considera-
tions. | know that, from statements | have seen in fthe
press; not with regard to Rapid City, butf generally on any
question involving discrimination in places of public accom-
modation, there is Trequently confusion on this point.

People do not want to be told that they have to serve someone
who will pick up a glass and throw it against the mirror or
something. Obviously we recognize the distinction here, and
we are inferested only in discrimination that would occur

on the basis of race, and this was one of the things that

we had hoped to establish. Now, in regard to a point that
you made, you said that there was a minority of motel owners
who do discriminate in Rapid City. You say, as | understand
it, that no members of the Rapid City Motel Assoclation would
admit to any discrimination, and you have no knowledge of
such discrimination on their part. Do you have any knowledge
of discrimination of non-members®
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MR. BcACH: No, sir, | don!'t have any knowledge
of anyone discriminating, other than what | read in the
paper survey, and of those -- 1 don't know who they are --
but at least they have never admitted fo discriminating
publically.

DR. PALMER: Mr. Chairman, | think that In view
of this, that we might fhank Mr. Beach for his statement
and ask Tor some statement from anybody who would want to
file an affidavit or something with regard to this question.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Thank you, Mr. Beach. Again,

I would like to reiterate that we are not here to take testi-
mony pro or con on this question of a public accommodations
law, | can appreciate the sentiments of many of you who

are opposed to it. | will not state whether | am for or
against it. But that's not really the basic purpose of our
inguiry here today.

MRS . MARY ZIMMERMAN: | have some material on some
surveys | would just like to file with the committee and
make a statement from them.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Would you identify yourself,
please?

MRS. ZIMMERMAN: I[I'm Mary Zimmerman, vice-president
of the Black Hills Civil Rights Committee. We did several
surveys. In May 1951, we did a telephone survey of motels
listed in the classified section. We don't know which ones
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are members o7 the motel asscciation, so this is just a
listing as the phone book gave it. The question was:
"Do you accommodate Negroes over night? Do you accommodate

them by the week or month; in winter2”

The committee mem-
bers identified themselves. We all told who we were and

whom we represented. The resuvlts were thiss: 1In May 1961 --
the answers were almost invariably the same to both questions
so no separate categories are listeds Those who answered
"Yes," forty-ecight per cent; thirty motels. Those who
answered "™No," thirty-six per cent; fwenty~three motels.
Those who preferred not to answer were fifteen per cent,

or ten. And then in the fall of 1961, September and October,
we did a second survey; acain a telephone quiry, of those
listed in the Elassified seciion of the telephone directory.
This is what was said: "The Black Hills Civil Rights Com-
mittee would like to make a list of those motels in town
definitely willing to serve Negroes., The list will be sent
fo large contractors inveolved in missile construction here.
Would you be willins teo be on the list?2" | might interpolate

that we had had an instance where an cutstanding engineer

from Denver was unable to have further accommodation in a

mofe!l when they found he was a Negro -- Mr. Cartfer. The
copy is attached. Sixty-five per cent answered "Yes." You
sec we got a higher =-- There was a befter result in this

second one. The percentage rose to sixty-nine per cent,
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after copies of the list were sent to all the motels quiried:

so they wanted tc be on this list, as you can sece. No re-

cord was kept of whether there were many motels that definitely
didn't accept Negroes or did not wish to answer. Of further
interest might be this letter. | won!t ftake time fto read

ite A school principal from Eagle Butte, a Negro friend of
ours, wanted to know whether he would be able o find ac-
commodations here when he came to the South Dakota Education
Association. Of course, he is not a serviceman. But the

answer is from the Chamber of Commerce: at the time only

listing seven or eight motels -- | won'!t give the names =--
which she thought =- the staff person thought -=- would ac-
cept hime. OfF course, | think she certainly underestimated. .

That was in September. But | think the Chamber, even then,
recognized the problem. Just one other comment. We were
glad that Mr. Beach stated his feeling against discrimination,
and we want to just say that no civil suit would be allowed
under any proposed law. It!'s a criminal offense; therefore,
all expenses will be borne by the state.
PROFESSOR LAYMOM: Would you like to remain for

a moment. Maybe someone on the committee would like to
question youe.

~ FATHER SIEH: It's vyour impression that you could
pick up a telephone today and call a specific motel, and

they would tell you that they would not accept you, if you .
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were a Negro?

MRS+ ZIMVMERMAN: | think so. Maybe atter this
meeting and the feeling of Mr. Beach, they are going to
ceme in line with the majority now who will accept. |
hope this is true. | am nat sure how to answer that ques-
tion at this pointe.

FATHER SIEH: You think that something like three
in fen would say no, if you were a Negro, they would refuse
you?

MRSe ZIMMERMAN: | think it would go down to
about two maybe, or one.

MR. RAFF: Mrs. Zimmerman, | think we are in-
terested in that communication with the Chamber of Commerce
from -- did you say a grade school principal?

MRS+ ZIMMERMAN: Mr. LeRoy Bogan of Eagle Butte,
yes.

MR. RAFF: Did he receive an answer trom the
Chamber o7 Commerce in Rapid City to his inquiry?

MRS . ZIMMERMAN: Yes.,

MR« RAFF: VWould you read the =- or is it too long
a letter?2 Would you reaé the Chamber of Commerce's answer?

MRS. ZIMMERMAN: | think they weren!t fully in-
formed of fthe number of places that would accept.

MR. RAFF: Give us the date of that, please.

MRS, ZIMMERMAN: This is September 27th, 1961,
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That was over a year ago. '"Dear Mr. Bogan. Ve are for-
warding your requesi fTor accemmodations to the chairman of

the housing committee for the S.D.E.X. == " South Dakota

Education Association ~= "and on the reverse side of this
sheet, you will find listed names and addresses of hotels
and motels, and we have checked those that will accept people

of your color. Mrs. Margaret Austin is chairman of this
comm.ittee, and no doubt you will hear from her. By the way,
there will be others of your race attending this convention.
Those that we are sure of are coming from Pine Ridge, South
Dakota. As you know, the Sheraton-Johnson, one of the

finest places here, will serve you initheir dining room.,"

Need a little money here for a commercial. ™"Yours truly,
Rapid City Chamber of Commerce. Mrs. Marion Tallcott.”
Stamped. The list was of forty~five hotels and motels, with
only the following listed as accepting’ people of your race:"
lensens, lazy U Motel, Motel Beach, Price's Motel, Sheraton-
lJohnson Hotel, Soutk Town Motel, Town and Country Motel,
and we know there are many others now because of our later
SUrveys.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Quésfion from the floor. Mre
Beach?

MR. BEACH: | would just like to state that pro-

bably the Chamber of Commerce didn't go into that thing.

After all, they gave them at least seven, and seven, in my
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opinion, of some of the nicest mofels and hotels in foﬁn,
and they probably didn't have time to make a survey at the
time. F -

MRS . ZIMMERMAN: That's rights But it just in-
dicates that there was a proble& of some sort.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Does anyone else have any com-
ments or testimony that they would like to make with respect
to motels and hotels., Raise your hand and come forward.

Are there any Negro airmen here who would care to testify?

DR. MUNSON: Mrs. Zimmerman, wasn't there a com-
ment made by a motel operator which seemed %o indicate the
general policy of motel operators about the time that Mr.
Carter was retused service at the unmentionable motels?

MRS. ZIMWERMAN: | am not aware of that. Are you?

MRS. CATHERINE SMITH: | can tell quite a little .
about the incident which was at a moftel == the Motor Hotel.
This was r. Douglas Carter, an employee of Martin.

DR. PALMER: -VWould you identify yourself, please.

MRS+ SMITH: Oh, I'm sorry. My name is Catherine
Smith, and | am a member of the Black Hills Civil Rights
Committees. Mre. F. Douglas Carter, an employee of the Martin
Company, was made by a -- | don!t know —-- someone madﬁ, in
advance, a reservation for him at the Tip Top Motor Hotel
in June of 1961. Now, this was reported in the newspaper,
so it can be checkede MNr. Carter was permiftfed to stay one

-D5~ -



night; then the manager said, "We didn't know you were colored.
We will let you stay one night so you Qon'f be embarrassed,

' He was planning to stay six

but we can't take you any more.!
weeks, and he moved over to the Sheraton-Johnson at that time
and stayed for the rest of the six weeks. Now, the people

who were managers of the hotel said that this =- all == "You

will find that this is true of all of the motels Iin town.

! 1

They all discriminate;™ and "I couldn't keep him." However,
when the owner of the chain ;haf operéfes the Timeop dis-
covered this, he, having his office in New York, apparently
conducted a quick survey and changed the policy of the Tip

Top, so that that is no longer a place that discriminates.

However, it does show that there was a lack of information .
and understanding among the motel operators before this situa-
tion became publicized. That'!s all, | guess.

PR@FESSOR LAYMON: Does anyone on this committee
have any questions?

DR. MUNSON: It seems to me that the lady said
something about "™Why are you picking on me."

MRS. SMITH: Maybe so. | don't know.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: 1Is there any other testimony
on discrimina%ion in motels and hotels in Rapid City? What
is your name? .

MR. JOSEPH RICHARDSON: Joseph Richardson. 1 am
from the air base. On November the 24th, a Saturday, at
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around eight ofclock, | went to several motels for general
information purposes. The names of the motels are Freddie!'s
Cabins Motel, on East North; Log Cabin Motelg Black Hills
Motel and Cafe, Modern Motel:and Davis Motel on St. loe --
West St. Joe. The manager or the person in charge of each
of these motels told me that they would not accommodate any
Negroes, regardless of whether they were alrmen or touristse.
| informed each person that this institute survey was taken
for my own general information, and | would like to have
such information in order to give it to ftourists and to new
arrivals in Rapid City.

DR. PAIMER: Mr. Richardson, | wonder 1f you would
Just remain for a moment. Did you, when you approached these
motel managers, indicate that you were performing a survey,
or did you act as if you wanted to rent their accommodations?

MR. RICHARDSON: | told them that this was a sur-
vevye.

DR. PAIMER: This was a suvrvey. Let me ask, in
general, is there an occasion that arises when airmen from
the base in general -- |I'm not talking about Negro airmen,
but airmen in general -- might want fo make use of motel
facilities in the city for any reason whatever?

MR. RICHARDSON: On arrival to the Ellsworth Ailr
Force Base, there will be times when airmen will desire to
accommodate -- the accommodation of motels, before going on
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to the base.

DR. PALMER: Is there any other occasion$ such as
friends or relatives that ever come to visit, and | am in-
terested only in the facts of the situvation?

MR. RICHARDSON: | have been told by several air-
men that they would desire for their sisters or their --
maybe their mothers to come and visit them during the summer
months, but fear that they will not be able to find accommo-
dations for their people.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: But do you know of anyone that

was discriminated against? Were you ever discriminated against?

~ MR. RICHARDSON:z | never was discriminated against,
but Master Sergeant Darius King was discriminated against.
PROFESSOR LAYMON: When did this fake place?
MR. RICHARDSON: This took place on the ning that
he was arriving to Ellsworth. According to him, he decided
that he would rest over night before proceeding to Ellsworth.

MR. RAFF: Mr. Richardson, you have given us the

names of some half dozen motels which informed you personally

that they would not accept Negroes in any case. Were those
the only motels that you approached, or did you approach
others?

MR. RICHARDSON: | approached others.,.

MR. RAFF: And could you give us any insight into
the number of others who said that they would serve and fake

-08=-



Negroes?

MR. RICHARDSON: Approximately thirty-six others.

MR. RAFF: You mean you are talking then about
thirty-six, on the one hand, who said "yes," and what was
the number of the other list? Seven?

MR. RICHARDSON: Seven. Seven that said "no.™

MR. RAFF: Seven who said "no." -

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Anvone else?

FATHER S1EH: Do you know whether any of these
six or sevén that you named -- Do you know whether they have
any relationship to the state motel association or to the
local motel association®

MR. RICHARDSON: No, | dontt.

FATHER SIEH: Could you determine that for this
commiftee?

MR. RICHARDSON: No, | couldn't,

DR. PALMER: Perhaps Mr. Beach could.

MR« BEACH:' The motels Mr. Richardson has named --
I think he named five according to what we goft.

MR. RICHARDSON: Seven. '

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | thought | counted seven.

MR. BEACH: | think all but one belong to our
assocjation. None of them are active in our association.
None of theme So at the —-- When we asked about this problem,
naturally they were never there. They never are. They
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never support us in any way. And | might say that these
are just on the verge of being what | would even consider
a motel because they are not -- and in your opinion, were
they a very classy type motel?

MR. RICHARDSON: | could not say they were Ckass A
motels, but they were decent motels.

MR. BEACH: In my opinion they are Just about
borderline whether they are even a motel or not. I would
like to add one thing while I!'!m up here. At} the outset of
this thing about three or ¥0u; years ago, | think it was
an economic thing with the people at that time, and they
were afraid maybe -- it hadn!t come up =-- they were afraid
maybe their neighbor wouldn't accept them, and so they didn't
think they ought to accept them. You follow me? But when )
they found that everybody did accept them, then they changed
their mind entirely, and believe me, it's an economic thing
with me right now. | need the money, and | don't care how
| get it.

DR. PALMER: Mr. Beach, as long as you are up,
may | just inquireé of one thing. You have now made a dis-
tinction between the members of your association and active
members, and you say that ninety —-- ninety-five per cent of
the motel owners in the City of Rapid City are members of
your assocgafion. What per cent of those would you say are

active?
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MR. BEACH: Forty-five, maybe. Forty-five per
cent. By that, the others will pay their dues, if you go
dig it out of them, but they =- they're members, as dues
paying members; but they are not par%icipafing members. In
my opinion, they are not doing the industry what they should
in order fo claim to even be motels, in my opinion.

DR. PALMER: In other words, when you spoke then
of the fact that you did not know of any case in your mem-
bership of discrimination, you really were referring to the
active membership?

MR. BEACH: Well, | was referring to what | know.
| never hkave taken a survey, but as far as the active members,
I have. And there has never been a one that has attended
these meetings, and the last meeting we had was the largest
meeting we have ever had -- the largest fturn out, and there
wasn't a one who hadn't accepted every kind of race, creed,
color or religion, and wouldn't accept them again. So.fhaf's
as far as my knowledge. | think the Tip Top has changed ]
fhe}r stand a long time ago. | heard about that before. But
I think they!ve changed their stand within the last year or
so, and it was an economic thing with them that they were
afraid of because the operators were new and didn't know.

DR. PALMER: You are satisfied personally that,
as far as the economics of it are concerned, that providing
accommodations to Negroes, in case of motels, will not iIn
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any way hurt the business economically,

MR. BEACH: | feel this way: That | need their
money as well as anybody!s money. 1f there is somebody
from Georgia or Mississippi sitting next to them, which could
be the case, and which people were afraid of at the outset,
if that fellow doesn't like it, he can move because I1!'I] get
somebody else to fill it, in the summer time anyway.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Does anyone else have any Ques-
tions of Mr. Richardson?

MRS. CATHERINE SMITH: Mr. Chairman, | don't know
that this is a question for Mr. Richardson, but we héve pre-
pared -=- because there have been a lot of surveys -- a big
chart here that shows =- certdinly does show that there has
been progress in the matfer of motels., These are all shown
in per cents. In 1959 there was a survey that showed less
than half of the motels were willing to say that they served
Negroes, and there is =- improvement was shown between a six
months period here, and now we see that there is yet further
improvement in the matter of motels, but | think that we
should == these numbers can!t be taken too seriously because ==
as they stand -- because different people will give different
answers.,

MR. RAFF: Are these surveys by the Black Hills
Civil Rights Committee and also NAACP and also the Journal?
These are several different surveys, and they are different
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in time? )

MR. SMITH: Yes, )

MR. RAFF: One of them is 1959, One 1961, and
three of them =--

MRS. SMITH: Two in 1961 of motels here.

MR. RAFF: And three of them here in 1622

MRS. SMITH: These are all in this year.

MR. RAFF: So there is very marked progress, at
least as measured from the results of these different surveys?

MRS. SMITH:2 I think If‘s‘parficularly truve of
motels that progress has been shown. Shall | prop this up
maybe right here?

MR. BEACH: One other thing. These motels that
have discriminated, | think, were possibly more against the
character than the color. Because of the class of people
that they get, they have to watch pretty carefully. Now,
this is my opinion. And one other thing. | think, if Mr.
Richardson had shown the color of his money at any one of
those motels and registered, | think he would have gotten in.
A lot of people are getting a little tired of surveys. If
you come in for that purpose, why, they've got a chip on
their shoulder.

MR. HOWARD KEITH: Mr. Beach == | would like to
direct a question to Mr. Beach.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Would you like to come forward?
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1 think you may stand down Mr. Richardson. Would you come

forward?

MR. KEITH: | would like to direct a question to
Mr. Beach.

FATHER SI1EH: Would you identify vourself, please?

MR. KE1TH: I'm Howard Keith, Rapid City.
FATHER SIEH: Well, who are you?
MRe KEITH: I'm Howard Keith.

FATHER SIEH: But who is this? Whatls your back-

-~

gréund, please?

MR. KEITH: Background?

FATHER SI1EH: Yes.,

MR. KEITH:z I'm here as a spectator.

FATHER SIEH: Where is your home, please?

MR. KEITH: My home is in New York.

FATHER SI1EH: Are you attached to some group? Have
you some affiliation®? _

MRe. KE1TH: No, I'm here as a spectator. | would
like fo direct a question to Mr. Beach, if | mavye.

FATHER SIEH: You camehere from New York for this
purpose? )

MR. KEITH: No, not for that purpose.

FATHER SIEH: You are living here in ==

MR. KEITH: At the time I'm living in Rapid City
at the air base.
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FATHER SIEH: You are living at the air base now?

MR. KEITH: Right.

FATHER SIEH: All right.

MR. KEITH: A fourist that is traveling, when he's
tired, what would his dress be when he come o one of your
motels to get accommodations? How would you judge him as
being of good character or bad character? He hés dri ven
eight hours & day. How would you judge that?

MR. BEACH: Every colored tourist that has ever
come to my place was quite Impressive. They drove a big car.
They had money. They were well dressed. They were polite,
and they were willing to pay the going price, which they
were asked, and many of them came in by Triple A reservation,
and it stated on there that they were colored, and | accepted
them weeks ahead of time, and | think that that is also
typical of Rapid Citvy.

DR. PALMER: Mr. Beach, did | hear you say that
the Triple A application or reservation form carries a state-
ment that they are colored?

MR. BEACH: Sometfimes it does, and sometimes if
doesntt.

DR. PALMER: There is provision on the form to
indicate that?

MR. BEACH: No, it doesn't say it, but sometfimes
they ask that, and | don't know why.
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DR. PALMER: And on occasion these forms do come
with the information that this person is colored?

MR. BEACH: On occasion it does,

MRS. MARTIN BACH: | think Washington D. C. is
the only place that has the sirip across the top denoting
they are colored.

DR. PALMER: The lady that just spoke =-

MRS, MARTIN BACH: 1I'm Mrs. Martin Bach from the
Dakota Motel. — _

MR, BEACH: It is felt also that Mr. Richardson's

testimony of the man -- the sergeant at the base who was

discriminated against, in order to be acceptable, should be

here to state so, rather than to quote someone. .
PROFESSOR LAYMON: Would vou care to identify
yourself and come forward?
MR. CHARLES HARDY: My name is Charles Hardy;
member of the United States Air Force, stationed at Ellsworth
Air Force Base; Chairman of the Executive Board of the NAACP,
Rapid City. As far as this problem of discrimination in
motels, the NAACP made a survey sometime ago, as Mr. Richardson
has explalned here, and we have affidavits signed by persons
that were discriminated against. As you know, he called <
Mr. Darius King, Master Sergeant, as one of those persons
discriminated against on the night that he arrived here In

Rapid City. Now, according to Mr. Beach'!s statements that
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most Negroes that are tfourists and are passing through
Rapid City dress elaborately and they wear fancy clothes
and that they drive big avtomobiles, well, | know Mr. King
personally and | can say that he owns a 1962 Dodge Dart and,
as for his dress and that, | don't know any person who dresses
nicer than he does, and as far as money Is concerned, | am
sure he has the money. This is not the problems The prob-
lem that we are dealing with Is that discrimination does
exist in Rapid City. We know it because of surveys. The
Black Hills Civil Rights Committee knows it because of their
surveys. The Mptel Owners Association knows that this dis-
crimination exists whether they are willing to own up to It
or not. The problem is that we know it because we are here,
and that we are few in numbers, when we like fo invite our
families down or possile even ourselves in return from a
leave or in checking in, we would like to rest for relaxation
purposes before proceeding fo the base. Now, if a man who
is here in defense of his counfry cannot enter a motel owned
by those people we are here to defend, well, | think that
something should be done about it. | feel that you, as the
president -—- if | am not mistaken ~- are you?

MR. BEACH: That'!s correct.

MR. HARDY: | think that you should look Info this
problem, and, as you say, you need the money., | think that,
if you need the money, you should be willing to accept any
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person who is willing to pay the price fhaf you ask to put
them up for the night. Many Negroes have been discriminated
against, and they will continue fo be unless something will
be brought out here that will change this or you or your mem-
bers of your association does something to change it.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: You keep saying that there is
discrimination, but you only mention or specified one in-
stance with respect to this master sergeant. Now, what are
these other evidences of discrimination?

MR. HARDY: Well, we do have -- we have affidavits
that were signed but because the person wasn!'t able to be
here, well, we didn!'t present these affidavits.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: But, again, you haven!t suffered .

any discrimination, have you?
MR. HARDY: Personally | have not but because I

am a member of the organization, and this is part of me,

this is why | have as part of my case --
MR. RAFF: Do you have affidavits with you that

could be given to this commiftee on the subject of motels

and hotels?
MR. HARDY: Mr. Richardson, do you have any available®?
MR. RICHARDSON: No. ’
MR. BEACH: What was your name again?
MR. HARDY: Charles N. Hardy.

MR. BEACH: Charles, the way you spoke to me here
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apparently you == Did you come in at the beginning of the
meeting? Were you here at the beginning of the whole meeting?
MR. HARDY: No. 1| came in sort of late, | must say.
MR. BEACH: Apparently you must have missed my
little talk because | stated that we had gone on record, if
a law was passed, that we were not against it for race, creed,
color or religion or national origin, and that!s the state --
| speak for the state as well as 1 speak for the local, so
apparently you missed out on some of the things | said_be-
cause | would call this a little attack on myself here.
MR. HARDY: For my own benefit, would you mind
repeating the statement? Would you like to read that back
or would you want --
MR. BEACH: No. Briefly, we feel in this state --
the state association and that reflects the local, that If
a law is going to be passed -- in the first place we are against
discrimination -—- i7f a law is going to be passed, according
to the reading of the law that we have, it reads pretty well
as far as | can see because it states for reasons of race,
creed, color, national origin or religion. This we have no
quarrel withe We are a little interested in the penalty of
the law which would say that if someone brought a suif against
us, and they were proven wrong because they were disorderliy
or for some other reason other than the law states that we
would be protected in that we wouldn!t want to pay the court
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costs and lawyers?! fees if we won the case and thaj's Jjust
mutual profecfion‘from any lawe

MR. HARDY: Well, in your statement you were
saying that when Mr. Richardson made this survey had he shown
the color of his money, that he would have possibly been ac-
cepted into a motel or hotel.

MR. BEACH: Yes. | believe if he had come in and
registered, he probably would have gotten a room in any of
those. They probably rejected him just coming in and saying
do you or will you or | want a survey. We have had a lot of
surveys lately, and it gets a little old, really.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | would like to ask why did you
not bring these affidavits with you, Mr. Hardy?

MR. HARDY: Why didn't | bring fthe affidavits?
Well, this is the secretary's duty to have these affidavits
with him, and | see that the secretary isn't here possibly
because of military obligations. We had no way of knowing
that he wouldn't be here.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Covuld you give us the affldavits
later or bring them to our attentlion?

MR. HARDY: Possibly we can.

MR. RICHARDSON: [ would like to add that up until
twelve olclock last night we thought that the secretary
would be here but he was called back to military duty this
morning at approximately eight o'clock.
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DR. PALMER: Would it be possible to contact him
and have those before we finish up this meeting today, later
this afternoon? Is there any chance?

MR. RICHARDSON: | think so.

DR. PALMER: Would you make such an attempt, Mr.
Richardson? _

MR. RICHARDSON: | will make an attempt.

FATHER SI1EH: Is this master sergeant still on the
base, that you speak of?

MR. HARDY: Yes, sir, he is.

FATHER SI1EH: Why is he not here?

MR. HARDY: Because of military obligations, also.

MR. RAFF: Did he indicate to you or to your group
that he would be here?

MR. HARDY: Well, possibly later on this a}fernoon
because he had hoped to be here this morning but something
came up that he knew nothing of.

MRo. RAFF: There is a lady back here who would
like to ask a question.

MRS. EVELYN MERRITT: .The last two questions have
taken care of what | want to ask: Why the fellows were not
here and why Darius King'!s affidavit was not here.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Had the master sergeant planned
to attend this?

MR. HARDY: Yes, he had, but something unexpectedly
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came up, and because he Is in the military, you never can
account for your time, | mean, from day to day or from hour
to hour possibly, | should savy.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | see. Mr. Richardson?

MR. RICHARDSON: Mr. King had planned to be here
to give his testimony.

DR. PALMER: Mr. Chalrman, | would like to pose a
couple of questions, if | may, to Mr. Hardy.

DR. PALMER: You did say that -- or suvggest that --
something fo the effect that you don't feel free, and that
other Negro airmen at the base don't feel free, to ask friends
or relatives to come fto visit because of the anticipation
that you have of the discrimination that might occur against
theme Is It part of the conversation of the alrmen on the
base‘-— I'm talking about Negro airmen -- does it ever arise
in conversation, this consideration that: ™I wish | could
bring my sister over, but | wouldn't be able to find a place
for her, and | can't do 1t2"

MR. HARDY: Well, not so much as to wanting to bring
his people here, but | can remember certain instances before
we started the survey -- we were beginning to make plans for
such a survey, and we know of a couple of hotels that dis-
criminated against Negroes =--

DR. PALMER: Uh huh.

MR, HARDY: And, well, we brought up the problem
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suppose we wanted to do something of this nature; fheﬂ we
wouldn't be able to, and one night, | think, while we were
making some plans for a survey in town, we decided to call
a hotel that we knew discriminated against Negroes, and a
certain party, Mr. Richardson, if | might say, identified
himsel{ as a Negro —-- Mr. Richardson identified himself as
being a Negro -- and expressed concern that he would like to
bring his mother down fo live at this particular motel, and
he asked if he would be accommodated, and they said that he
would, and this sort of was shocking to us because we knew
at one time that this motel did say that they discriminated
against Negroes. There have been other instances where we
would possibly sit down and say: Well, since this is a
resort for most people, and the country is beautiful and
because of the Rushmore shrine anc so forth, we would like
Tor our people to come down and see places like this, but
then we never did go foo much in for this because we knew
all of the circumstances involved, as far as that'!s concerned.

DR. PALMER: Will you be back here to tell us
about any other aspect of our agenda? Bars? Cafes? Are
you going to be here later on? '

MR. HARDY: Yes, I will,

DR. PALMER: | would like to pursue, as a pro-
gressive, and as it seems to be appropriate, this general

questiion of what part of your life is really.affected by either

.
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discrimination or by what you feel fto be discrimination,

and that!s why | posed the question here as == if there is
any conversation that you have had with anybody or any
statements you have made or any feelings that you have had
that you could not de something that a white airman could do
as far as, say, bringing someone to visit because of what
you thought would be discrimination. Do those thoughts go
through your mind?2 Or through the minds of others with whom
you associate? Or is it ever a part of your conversations?

MR. HARDY: Possibly we aren®!t communicating at |
this time. When you speak of the parf-of my life, | mean,
the effect that it has upon my life or any particular part
of my life -— in essence, what are you saying? | mean --
because --

DR. PALMER: Well, obviously, from the standpoint -=
or from my standpoint -- from the standpoint of the com-
mittee, we are interested in how the life of the non-white
serviceman at the Ellsworth Air Force Base might be affected
merely by the color of his skin, and | am interested in any
evidence whatever of =~ evidence that might help me to under-
stand better what effects it might have on you, and | would
like to know =- Of course, we want to know if you are.ever
turned down for service; that side of it is clear, but what
| do want to know, in addition, is what sort of things you
talk about, and is there ahy evidence that you could provide
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to me that Negro airmen on the base are disturbed by Qhaf
they define as differential treatment on the basis of skin
color alone, In regard to motels and hotels.

MR. HARDY: Well, very much so we are disturbed.
Mainly because, | should say -- well, because the amount of
Negroes in this area -=- very few -- There isn!'t any social
activities, as such, | must say. We aren't able to go out
into the community fo visift and to be with people, | should
say, as such, Then, on the other hand, well, we aren't
active in any church or, well, recreational activities mainl§
because many of my people have taken the af%tfude or the
belief that -- well, they are going to discrimingfe against
me in town any way; so why should | go into town and be
further humiliated in to their churches. Although there are
churches here in Rapid City | have visited, and they do ac-
cept Negroes, and they have wonderful service and the hos-
pitality is wonderful, | must accept. But we have these
problems, and it makes for unemotional stability, | must say,
and it has definitely a psychological effect upon these
people. You aren't able fo produce, as far as your job Is
concerned as ofhe; people because you can only think of the
time when you go to work and gef off from workj; possibly
you go to a movie or you go to the service club and around
eight o'clock, if the movie on base isn't what you like, well,
go in to bed. | mean, this is all. This is the dafly trend.
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Whereas people of other color, they can go out. They can
go to the bars. They can go to -- Well, we can attend
movies here in town. They have families that they can mix
with and so forth. And all of this helps to develop a per-
son physically and mentally, | should say. But we are handi-
capped. We haven!t any of these things; so this presents a
problem, and definitely it!'s talked about all the time.
That!s all there is to saye.
' PROFESSOR LAYMON: How many Negroes do you know
that were refused service at a motel in Rapid City? . —
MR. HARDY: How many do 1 know? '
PROFESSOR LAYMON: Yes.,
MR. HARDY: Well, as such --
PROFESSOR LAYMON: We are asking for evidence of
discrimination.
MR. HARDY: Well, we do have these affidavits.
] can't say personally because what | know, and what these
people can cpnfribufz to what | know, can be more helpful
to you and to other people concerned.
PROFESSOR LAYMON: But how many instances do you
know of? _ ‘
MR HARDY: | know of quite a few instances.
PROFESSOR LAYMON: What do you mean "Quite a few2!
You understand, we are trying to nail this thing down, so -

that is to say, give it some dignity other than just hearsay.
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MR. HARDY: What would you like for me to --

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Well, | mean, were there ten,
fifteen, five? Or for example, how many affidavits do you
have?

MR. HARDY: Possibly somewhere between seven and
ten.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Seven to ten? Covering how
long a period?

MR. HARDY: Well, possibly from June up until the
present time.

DR. PALMER: Of this year?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: June of this year?

MR. HARDY: Yes.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Vell, we certainly would like
o see those affidavits, but you, again, were not refused
.service in.any motel in town?

MR. HARDY: No, because | haven'!!t had any need
for the use of a motel. ]

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Well, that!s what | was about
to aske Have you asked for service at %ofels?

MR. HARDY: No, | havent't. I haven{f had any
need for one. ) ’

MR. RAFF: Mr. Hardy, in conversation with others
ot you} group -- your race -= oul there at the air base,

have you heard of other instances, and can you say whether
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vou have heard of two or three of them? What's your im-
pression? Dr. Palmer Is interested Soméwhaf,wand so am 1,
in your ImpressSion. Have you heard of two or three such
instances relevant to hotels and motels, or twenty-three or
forty~three? Can you give some rough ==

MR. HARDY: Well, | can remember possibly maybe
four or five incidents that | have talked with people and
they told me of various things that happened in town.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Do you know that these people
were refused service on the == because of their color?

MR. HARDY: 1t would have to be because of color.
They had to be.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Why do you say it "has to be?2"

MR. HARDY: Well, If they were == If you went to
a motel, and the manager told you he can't accept you be-
cause you are a Negro, then what else could there be?

FATHER SIEH: May | ask this: Is it common know-
ledge on the base, ftoo, that there are certain perfectly
acceptable motels where you can go, and you can be sure you
will get accommodations, if you need them? Is this known?

MR. HARDY: Yes. They are know{, I should say.‘
Well, | think most of the people often refer to the Holiday . )
Inn, if I'm not mistaken, as one that will cater to Negroes.

.PROFESSOR LAYMON: Mr. Beach?

MR. BEACH: | would like to say that in the past
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six ==- seven months, | have probably refu;ed six or seven
people myself in my motel of which none of them were colored
people; none of them were -indian people, but they were white
people and they were not the character of people that | want
to serve because of == | have a nice place and’ | don!t want
it to be torn up, and they were either drunk, disorderly,

or in plain words, a "shack date,”™ that | wouldn't accept,
and in no case were they colored 5eople, and to %his davy,

| have never refused anyone thatl!s colored, if | had the
place for them. Theret!s times l’have been full when they
came by, and this 1 can't control. If they had reservations,
they were held }or them.

MR. HARDY: If I may say -- well, you had every
reason in the world to turn these people away because they
weren!t of the character reputable to your place. But when-
ever a Negro is in this part of the country, | must say, he
either has some business here, or he is a ftourist, and | am
sure that they would be of possibly the best caliber. |
mean, you wouldn!t expect a person who couldn't afford to
pay ten dollars a night for a hotel to come into a place
of this representative and look for a room, I'm sure.

MR. BEACH: Couldn't afford to pay ten dollars a
night?

MR. HARDY: A person who couldn!t afford a hotel
wouldn!t be looking for a hotel, I'm quite sure of that.
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MR: BEACH: Well, of course, if they want a nice
place, why, they pay the going rate.

MR. HARDY: Yah. They would pay the price. 1
mean, they wouldnft want fo -- or get lodging In vour place,
vnless they were able to afford the price.

MR. BEACH: | want to say one thing. | was Branch
Commander at the base for many years, in the air force, and
| had many colored boys working for me. Generally speaking,
they were fine, and | was real proud fq have them. As a
matter of fact, | had one airman of the month from my branche.
I was real proud of him, and he was a mighty good boy, and
| want to say another thing, that those boys -- at the time,
I was quite concerned about how they were accepted, and |
never had a complaint ?rom my own boys =-- that is, the better
boys. | had one or two that you have with everyone that =--
whether they are white, colored or what they are -- you know,
there is one out of twenty that can be the other way, too,
that are problems. | know this is getting off the subject.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | thank you. Just one more,
and then we have to move on to this next ftopic. Yes, sir.

MR. COATES: |'m Mr. Coates, from Sioux Falls,
South Dakota, and | am the president.of the NAACP branch in
Sioux Falls. And | would just like to say that in travel
over South Dakota, we know that there is prejudice in South
Dakota, and we have all been denied the service of motels,
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hotels, and accommodations.

is obvious. Everybody

knows thate. That'!s what welre here for. | came up here

because I'm infterested in human relationships for equal

opporfuni%y, and we know that.

ress here on this mote!l deal

saying that he will, from now on,

Negro, then we have made progress.

But we have made some prog-
by Mr. Richardson. By him

try to accommodate the

Now, from then on, If

we have other cases where =- that we get this thing, we

will have to go from this thing then, but | do respect

Mr. Richardson for changing his mind at this particular time.

PROFESSOR LAYMON:

have been refused service

MR. COATES:

Mr. Coates, may | ask if you

in Rapid City, at a motel or hotel.

| have been refused service coming

from all over the state.

PROFESSOR LAYMON:

MR. COATES:

In Rapid City?

In Rapid City period?

PROFESSOR LAYMON:

MR. COATES:
think that | would be refused,

No, I didn't refuse because | didn't

| had to drive clear to

my destination, all the way through Rapid City to Fort Pierre,

because | had a contract up there.

And anywhere that you

get an appoinftment, you have to have the thing set up before

you come, see, and

have did that because | am a contractor ~--

plaster conftractor from Sioux Falls and | travel all over

the state of South Dakota, and so
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I leave: "Where is the accommodation for me to sleep?2™

If 1 can'fﬁsleep in the town, then | don't want to work
there. So after all day, well]l go to someone's house or
welll do this, and they willafix a place for'ﬁe because my
boss -- the man that I'm contracting from -- he is the one
that pays the way, buf—we know that in Rapid City here,
this has been one of the prejudiced places for years. |
have been in South Dakota for twenty-fwo years, and it has
been, but now since this has came up national wide, I think
that we people are going to get together. Mr. Richardson
and the motels maybe have had a change of mind, and | am
very happy that | came to hear that statement.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | still == My question is:
Were you ever refused service In -- at a hotel or motel in
Rapid City®?

MR. COATES: No, I haven'!t because -- | said 1
haven!t because | didn't stop because | had heard from other
tourists that you didn't have a chance. But one fime | was
up here to bring a person that lives here in Rapid City now
over to -- to the place -- over there at the home -- rest
home, and we did geft a hotel on the other side of Rapid,
but with these white couples that we brought up to take his
wife to this instjtution, we didn't stop because we know we

going to be -~ we thought we going to be refused; that?s the
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PROFESSOR LAYMON: Well, I must move on to another
topice ! thank you, Mr. Hardy and Mr. Coates, and all of
you otherswho have given testimony on one side or the other
on this question of hotels and motels. 1 think we will now
pass on fo this topic of possible discrimination in bars,
cates, and night clubs, and finish out the morning with that.

MRS, EVELYN MERRITT: Excuse me just a moment.
| hate to be rude. | would like to remind the people who
are being -- who are giving testimony that all of us are
interested; that'!s why we are all here, and | can barely
hear them from wﬁere my position issand at the back of the
room, it must be very difficult.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | am real sorry that we don't
have a public address system. | presume that they assvm;d
that we didn'!t need if.v Well, then, we will now fake --

MR. FRANK HENDERSON: Mr. Laymon =--

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Xes. Mr. Henderson?

MR+ HENDERSON: Mr. Laymon, | understand that this
format has been set out in certain specific subjects? s
that correct?®

PROFESSOR LAYMON: That is correct.

MR, HENDERSON: Will there be an opporrunity for
anyone to say anything with reference to the different privi-
leges that are accorded to Negroes in Rapid City®?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: If we have time this afternoon,

-53~



I'm sure.« But we have to cover these certain areas, Mr.
Henderson.

MR. HENDERSON: Well, | have about two minutes
that | would like to say something along_fhaf line,

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Could you save it for a little
bit later?

DR. PALMER: Does it have reference to bars and
cafes?

MR, HENDERSON: It is not --

PROFESSOR LAYMON: That'!s ft. It has no reference
to these categories. )

DR. PALMER: Mr. Chairman, | would suggest that,
inasmuch as he says it will be a brief statement, and would
like to get on, maybe if it!'s of convenience to him, maybe
we could just take that statement.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: AIll right.

MR. HENDERSON: Thank you, sir.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Would you identify yourself?

MR. HENDERSON: VYes, sir., My name is Frank Henderson.
I'm an attorney at law in Rapid City. | have lived in Rapid

City since 1945, | am a Korean veteran. I'm married. 1|

i
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have four children, and | am extremely proua of my city." s
There are certain attacks that have been made on this city,

and as a result thereof, | would like to set the record

straight with respect to some of the privileges that are
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afforded the colored peoplie in this citye | would liké to
point out fo this committee, Tirst: That the Negroes have
free access to our public parks. 1 would like, also, to
set the record straight that they-have the right to attend
all of our public schools and do attend our public schools.
| would like, also, this committee to know that they have
access to our library. | would like, also, this committece
to know that the Negroes can swim in all of our public
swimming pools. We have a public fransportation system }n
Rapid City, South Dakota, and they have a right to ride all
of these buses, and there are no Jim Crow laws with respect
to thetf. They are certainly welcome in all of our churchese.
| would like, also, to point out that Rapid City has a sum-
mer recreational program, supported by a special tax levy,
and that the Negroes are welcome to participate in that.

Ve have a municipal go!f course. They have the right to
golf at our municipal golf course and have. | think that
it can be said that they have the right to go info all of
our stores. They do attend all of our local theaters, and
they are welcome in there. They are likewise welcome and
have attended, and | hope will continue to attend, our pub-
lic concerts here in Rapid City, as well as plays that are
sponsored by local groups, as well as recitals. | would
like, also, to point out that they are welcome fo compete

in all athletic contests and have, and that they are welcome
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to attend any of these athletic contests. | know, for
instance, that our business and professional women'!s club
here in Rapid City has had Negroes in their midst énd In
their organization, and that other civic organizations here
in Rapid City have welcomed them in there. | would like,
also, to point out that they are always =- they have always
gained admittance to our local hospitals. | recall, net
too long ago, being up in the hospital, and seeing a Negro
orderly -— a male -=- attending @ white woman, without any
type of incident or furor, and 1| have seen local Negro
nurses In our hospitals, and because of the adverse publicity
on some of these things, | would just like the commitiee
to know that there are many fields that these people are
welcome in and many places that they are welcome on, and |
want the committee to see the big picture, rather than some
of these isolated instances that'!s been set up on what |
consider this rather limited format. [I'i]l be glad to answer
any questions, if | may, along this line. Mayor Raff®e

MR. RAFF: | want to say that every single word
that Frank Henderson has said is accurate and ftrues more-
over, that as mayor for ninefeen months | have never once
heard any word at all about any Negro being excluded from
any of the organizations or the public facilities of which,
Frank mentions. This is a whole dimension == perhaps the
most imporftant dimension by far -= in Wh}ch the whole subject
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of discrimination against Negroes has no relevance whatever.
DR. PALMER: Mr. Chairman, | would like to pose
a question fo Mr. Henderson, if 1 may.
PROFESSOR LAYMON: Yes.
DR. PALMER: Do =-- You seem to reflect what vyou
define as somewhat general community feeling, or at least
a segment of that community. Would you say that the =--
Vhat would you say would be the attitudes of the Rapid City
people toward the airmen at Ellsworth Air Force Base, with-
out consideration at all of the color of the skin? What
is the attitude of the community so far as you aré able to
sense it, toward the airmen? Are they happy to sce fhem
here because it!'s potential money? Or is it something

they have to pu} up with? Or do you have any statement

on that®?

MR. HENDERSON: I think | would summarize the
community!s affitude in general -- and you must appreciate
I'm taking on a very large thing there == | think so long

as the Negro people conduct themselves in a -=

MR. PALMER: No. | was Jjust falking about the
airmen, Tirste.

MR. HENDERSON: So far as the airmen? )

DR. PALMER: VYah. Just the people oﬂ the base.
What is your -- the feeling of the community, as you sense

it, toward the airmen at the base?
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Mre. Henderson? .

MR. HENDERSON: | think that they are receptive

to them.

DR. PALMER: What do you mean "recepfive?". Is
there a tone of qualification in your voice? )

MR. HENDERSON: Certainly not. | think that
these things that | have brought out here in my statements
to this committee speaks for the general attitude of Rapid
City towards the Negro airmene.

FATHER SIEH: We are not speaking about the Negro
airmen., We're speaking about all of them.

DR. PALMER: Yah, I'm trying to —-
MR. LEO TOSKIN: Ma; | answer that question for

MR« HENDERSON: | would like to answer my own
question, if | can. May | hear it again?

DR. PALMER: What | want to know is since vyou
have spoken here in behalf of at least a segment of the
people of Rapid City; you seem to be reflecting some general
sentiment that you see in the community. | would like to
know what Is the general sentiment of the community toward
the air base and the people on it. How do you view the
air base; that is, you people in Rapid City?

MR. HENDERSON: VWell, | think that we regard the
neople at the air base to be good citizens; to be fellow

Americans; and that they are an integral part of our com-
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munity. | might point out that | am the chairman of the
veterans! committee of this city. As chairman of the Dis-
abled American Veterans!, every year we have a base-community
projecte | sit down. I've eaten with the Negro people.
| have talked with them. | think that our reception to the
people at Ellsworth Air Force Base Eas been warm..

DR. PALMER: You are speaking of the airmen in
generals not Negro airmen?

MR, HENDERSON: Yes -- Yes, sir. Has been warm.

DR. PALMER: Would you say that there Is any
different feeling on the part of the community -- any senti-
ment in any way -- that is different with regard to the
Negro airmen than with regard to the non == or the white
airmen at the air base?

MR. HENDERSON: I think, sir, that éf a time
there was. And | think that was, quite frankly, precipi-
tated by some rather violent crimes back in 19533 '54 and
55 by Negro airmen upon some women in this city, and |
think that that brought about a rather bad relationship
for a short period of time, but I think that, nevertheless,
that the people of the city regarded those particular in—
dividuals in the light of what they've done or what they
did do, rather than all of the Negro airmen.

DR. PALMER: So that since then, you would say
that, from your standpoint, people of Rapid City, in general,
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would not view the Negro airman in any different light than
they would a white airman. Is that correct?

MR. HENDERSON: That is correct, ;tr.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Anyone have any other questions
they would like to address to Mr. Henderson? Way back
there. Mr. Hardy? We cannot hear you up here, Mr. Hardy.

MR. HARDY: Mr. Henderson, may | state that all
of these rights that you have named -- that these are rights
that most people of other races take for granted, and that
there are so many rights that you people have that we don'!t
have that you didn!'t mention, | might say. These are rfgﬁfs
that because they are public in nature that they are derived
from funds that are contributed by the area citizens, living
within a given community, | must say; so, therefore, we
have the rights to these and we should have access, | should
say, but there are so many rights that you take for granted
that we don'!t have mainly because we are Negroes. That!s
all | have to say.

PROFESSOR LAYWON: Thank you.

MRS+ MERRITT: | have more or less a question of
Ruddy, and a statement, ftoo. For the record, my name is )
Evelyn Merritt, and | have been a resident of Rapid City
longer than Ruddy has, and | am Just as proud or prouder,
and always have been, until this series of incidents which
precipitated this investigation in the past few years.
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| am glad of the positive assertions that you have madé,

and | am glad that we don't have this stain on our community,
in addiftion to the fhingstThaf we do have. However, Ruddy,
do you think that because we can offer these things in

these areas to these people in our community is any reason
why we should not be concerned about the areas where we do
not offer equal opportuni ty?

MR. HENDERSON: Certainly note.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Does anyone else have any
questions they would like fo ask of Mr. Henderson?

FATHER SIEH: About the only thing | would suggest
would be: Do you think there is a rather significant ap-
preciation of the problems that Mr. Hardy just mentioned,
and of the fact of being colored, that you can't take
rights for granted? Is that understfood in this community,
would you say?

MR, HENDERSON: Would you restate your question,
sir, please?

FATHER SIEH: Mr. Hardy stated that part of being
colored is that you never know whether you can take vyour
rights for granted. s that something understood in Rapid
City, would you think?

MR. HENDERSON: Well, all | can ftell you is what
the facts are, sir. You are asking me to state something
as to a state of mind, and | can tell you --
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FATHER SIEH: Yes, but this has been asked of
you before, too.

MR. HENDERSON: I can tell you that these are the
facts, and that people are welcome to all of these public
conveyances, and the Negro airmen are.

FATHER SIEH: But | am asking you: Do you feel
that, in this community, that there is any understanding of
what | might call the "colored man's predicament?"

MR. HENDERSON: 1 cerfaiﬁly recognize that the
people of this city feel that the colored people have a
problem whatever city they might be in in the United States.

FATHER SIEH: Thank you.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Another gentleman has a ques-
tion, Mr. Henderson,

MR. JOHN LARSON: John Larson; member of the city
councile.

DR. PALMER: What's the name again, please?

MR. LARSON: John larson. Mr. Hardy called your
attention to the rights that they are considered under, and
he also stated that there are certain rights that they can't
take advantage of. Now, | think he should be able to state
some of the rights that he is denied. | dont!'t Ilike fo‘have
a man stand up and say he'!s denied certain r}ghfs, without
naming these rights. | think Mr. Henderson has named a
vast majority of rights that we concede fto them, the same
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as we concede to ourselves. Now, if he has ;ome rights
that he's been denfed, | think he should name them.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: That is the purpose of this
inquirye.

FATHER SIEH: May I ask you: Do you concede
these rights to him, sir? Do you concede these rights to
him?

MR« LARSON: Well, if he would -- if he would
name the rights that he is being denied, then | would --

! would ltke to -~ | would like to know whether | concede
them.

FATHER SIEH: Are they his rights by your con-
cession?

MR. LARSON: | beg your pardon.

FATHER SIEH: Are they his rights by your con-
cession?

MR. LARSON: Are what -- Are what his rights?

MR. LAYMON: | think that what the Father is =--

MR, LARSON: He didn't name them. He =- then he =--
| can!t determine.

MR. LAYMON: | think that Father Sieh is getting
at this, as | understand the quesfioﬁ here: Are these
colored people simply being given the gift of these rights
which the rest of us have and take for granted. Therefore,
I think he'!s attempting -- perhaps attempting to get yvou to
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state whether or not these are concessions on our part,
or whether it's something that they shouldi,have as a matter
of right.

FATHER SIEH: Yes., That'!s right.

MR. LARSON: When @ man says he's been denied
certain rights then | think he should name them.,

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | quite agree with you, and

that again == is the purpose of this inquiry: To find these

areas where they are being denlied certain rights. Mr. Hardy --

and then let!s move ons

MR. HARDY: May I say that | didn't name these
rights because | am sure that they will be ;ouched on later
on, as we proceed.

MR. HENDERSON: Mr. Laymon, may | be excused?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Thank you very much, Mr. Henderson.

MR. HENDERSON: Thank you, sir.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Then without pausing, let us
consider the possibility of discrimination in bars, cafes
and night clubs. Wel'd be happy to -- We would like to have
some testimony from the people who have experienced the
discrimination or who know of ift, and then the others wil1_*
be allowed an opportunity to contest it or refute it, if
that!s possible. Does anyone have any iaformatlion on dis-
crimination in bars =- hotels. Would you like to come for=-
ward.
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MRe WILLIAM ARRINGTON: My name is William
Arrington. I'm a member of the NAACP in the Rapid City
branch. | am a member of the United States Air Force. On
the night of October 7th, 1961, three days after my arrival
in Rapid City, myself and two white airmen went to the
Casino Bar to have a beer. Now, | am not a drinking man,
and alcohol doesn!t bother me because | don't care too much
for it, but when the three of us sat down, the waitress
came over the said, "I'm sorry, | cantt serve you." |1
looked at her En@ asked, "Why2" And she said, "Because

' And | thanked her ve;y graclously,

we do not serve Negroes.'
and | got up and | left.s On the tenth of Februvary, 1962,

I went to the Leo's Restaurant, and Mr. Toskin, himself,i
personally told me that he would not serve me because |

am a Negro. He met me ten feet inside his door and he

said, "We do not cater to Negroes."” "To colored people”

is what he said, and I, in turn, asked him, | said, Yoy

meén you will not serve Negroes on your establishment?2®

And he said, "No, | will not." | asked him what his policy
was. Was this for today? Did it start last week? Was it
for this month? For two months? Or how did It sfénd.

He said, "This has been his policy since the time he opened
the place. This is the present policy, and this policy would
always be in force. And | feel that, as a man; not a Negro;
nor as any other kind of man, but as a man, in the United
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States of America, | should have the right to go in a
place, and, as long as | act as a gentleman and do not dis-
turb the peace, nor molest any one person or any number of
people, be they black, white, green with orange polka dots,
| want to be able to say what | feel and be able to go
places and eat or drink, as long as | don!t bother anyonec.
PROFESSOR LAYMON: Did you ever refurn o these
places?
MR. ARRINGTON: No, I haven't. T
PROFESSOR LAYMON: | think vou mentioned the

Casino Bar ané Mr. Toskin'!s establishment.

MR« ARRINGTON: Yes.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: You never went back there?

MR. ARRINGTON: No, | didn't go back. I didn't
feel that I should. | didn't feel that | should have fo
face the same humlliation, as a man.

DR. PALMER: Do other airmen go Into these two
places, as far as you are aware?

MRe ARRINGTON: No, | =- | don't think they have.

DR. PALMER: | mean, | am falking about airmen .
In general -- whlf; alrmen® -

MR« ARRINGTON: Yes, they do. Yes, they do. e

DR. PALMER: Do they receive accommodations in

these establishments?

MR. ARRINGTON: Yes, they do.
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DR. PALMER: Are these places located == [I'm
unfamiliar with Rapid City -- Are these places located in
such a way as to -- as to be frequently visited? I mean,
if you were to come into Rapld City, would these be places
that you could-easily encounter or would they be places
where you would have to go out of your way to get to them?

MR. ARRINGTON: Well, the Casino Bar is just
across the sfreet, and Mr. Toskin's -- Leol!s Restaurant is
around the corner, down the street. )

DR. PALMER: Getting back to what was raised
earlier, and that is to say the effect of discrimination
on your life out here. Do you have any difficulty finding
places to go for amusement or places to eat?

MR« ARRINGTON: Until == Until the Friendship
Club opened, there was only one place In town for a Negre
to go for entertainment; that is, unless he went all the
way out to Canyon Lake Park, and that is what they call
Coney lIsland, and | wouldn't go in that place because it
isn't a reputable place.

MR. RAFF: There is another thing -- You talked
about an experience in October of '61 at the Casino Bar,
and you were with two white friends. Were they airmen,
also?

MR« ARRINGTON: Yes, they were.

MR+ RAFF: Did they leave with you at that time?
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MR. ARRINGTON: Yes, they did.

MR« RAFF: It may be some time ago, but do you
recall their names, and could you give thelir names to us?

MR+ ARRINGTON: Well, one fellow has been dis-
charged, and | don't know the other fellow'!s fast name.
His first name is Raymond. That'!s all | know of him. We
meet and we speak and talk on the base, and what not, buf,
since that time | have been married, and | don't come to
town very oftens | had to take an extra Jjob fé try to
take care of fthings.

MR. RAFF: There is a subject you introduced,
1t's of great interest to me and | think of meaning to
the city, depending upon the feeling. How do the == do
the Negro airmen at the air base feel internally? That
they are not welcome in certalin ways in Rapid City and,
therefore, remain at the base in preference fo coming into
town frequently for shopping and for amusement and Tor
church?2 | don't want to load the question now too much,
but | want a proper answer.

MR. LEO TOSKIN: That!s an unfair question,

MR. RAFF: Do these men ==

PROFESSOR LAYMON: [ will recognize you, sir,
just as soon as Mr. Raff --

MR. RAFF: Is a part of the compensation Tor
this the staying at the base, rather than coming here?
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MRe ARRINGTON: | feel that mest of the Negro
airmen on the base feel that there is a small amount of
irritation with us coming here.

MR. RAFF: That'!s just a feeling now. You can't
lay your finger on it and say "factual?2"

MR. ARRINGTON: Welve been —- We'lve been -- Well,
before | got married, the fh}ng that 1 was‘concerned about
was being able to go out and enjoy myself, such as going
to a place and being able to dance and listen fo music
and have dinner, if | =- and if | wanted, a drink, but this
has been == this seems fto be nearly impossible in this ftown.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: You made this statement: That
there was just -- until the Friendship Club came along,
there was just the one place that you could go fto. You =--
On October 7th, '6l and February 10th, '62, you had these
fwo incidents. What did you do in between times?

MR« ARRINGTON: Staved on the basec,.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Vere you -- Were you ever re-
fused service at any of these other places? You make the
statement -- That's a real serious charge: That there was
only one place yob could go to. If you just suffered these
two incidents, and I'm not gainsaying that these happened,

MR. ARRINGTON: That'!s right. Now, | -- [ didn't
have anyone to take with me fo go to places of night club
entertainment. | don'!t think any man wants to go to a place
unless he takes a female with him to enjoy these thingse.
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At least | don't,

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Well, I'!m trving to nail it
down again. There were just the two incidents —--

MR. ARRINGTON: That's right.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: =- that you experienced?

MR. ARRINGTON: Right. Now, as far as I'm con-
cerned, there'!s only hearsay about the Esquire Clus, but
| can't say anything about that. | went there, and enjoyed
myself with my wife and another couple,.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: There are lots of people who
want to get in questions. | don'!t know -- whol!s next?

DR. PALMER: | would like to ask one'quesfion
Tirst, iT | mavy.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Yes.,

DR. PALMER: You said that until the Friendship
Club was established, that there was only this one place.
Where is the Friendship Club located in the city, relatively?
In the center of the city?

MRo ARRINGTON: [It+'s on the western edge of town.
Highway 79 and | believe St. Patrick Street.

MR. RAFF: Eastern,

MR. ARRINGTON: East side of town.

DR. PALMER: | would like fto know == | would like
to know the answer to this question, and it's intended to
be a very simple question. Would you say fﬂaf on the basis
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of what you encountered in terms of refusal of service,
that it cost you money out of your pocket -- additional
money out of your pocket == to get to places where you
could be served?

MR. ARRINGTON: No, not -- not as far as res-
tauvrants are concerned because there are several that |
have been fto, and | don't feel that | could say that the
majority of restavrants in town would refuse a person.

DR, PALMER: What about the night clubs? _

MR. ARRINGTON: The night clubs, 1 don!t know.

I have gone to the Esquire Club on one occasion,qand I have
never had the time nor the money to spend to go out again,
since then.

DR. PALMER: Where is the Esquire Club2 Is that
located in the downtown area? ‘

MR. ARRINGTON: MNo, that'!s also on the outskirts
of town.

FATHER SIEH: - You were welcome there, | under-
stood you to say?

MR+ ARRINGTON: | was at the time. | don't know
about now or anything else. | Just know that when [ went,
| was welcome, and | was ftreated very nicely.

PROFESSOR LAYIAOM: But the Friendship Club didn't
come in operation until this fall, did it? This summer? )
I was out here in August or September; | think | went out
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there.

MRs ARRINGTON: Yes, this was -- this was --

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Well, then these other places
that you've gone to and have eaten at have been since then?

iRe ARRINGTON: Well, | went -- before, no. Be-
fore the =--

PROFESSOR LAYMON: I'm frying to nail down this
statement here.

MR. ARRINGTON: Before the .Friendship Club was
established, |°was out to the Esquire Club. 1 was invited
by a friends He ftook my wife and myself and his wife, and
since then I've heard rumors about change of policy fhe{e,
but | don!ft know about them, so | can!t make any statements
to that.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: But during the interim, vyou
and your wife did eat at other restaurants in Rapid City?

MR. ARRINGTON: Well, my wife has -- Well, vyes,
we have caten at other restauvrants. She -- She expressed
a désire to go to Leo's, but | made the =- the --

DR. PALMER: Why did she express a desire to go
to Leo's?

MR. ARRINGTON: It looks like a pretty nice place
to go to. It will draw your attention when you walk on
the street. When you see the front of the place, It looks
like a place that a man would like to go to, to take his
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wife or his girl friend, or his family to sit down and en-
jov. a meal.,

DR. PALMER: And you say the places where you
get service would not be of the same general appearance;
or the same -- wouldn'!{ have the same --

MR. ARRINGTON: No,/l wouldn't == | wouldn't
say thate. ) )

DR. PALMER: =-- same inviting fTlavor fto it?

MR. ARRINGTON: | wouldn't say that. | would say

that Tally!'s is a very niceﬁplgce,“which will give vou
pretty mucﬁ the same atmosphere, when you see it. It!s
a nice place, also. '

DRe PALMER: Is 1t located adjacent to this other
place®?

- MRe ARRINGTON: No, {t!'s not.

DR. PALMER: Is it conveniently located?

MR. ARRINGTON: Yes, if;s very =—— I1{!'s conveniently
located in town. Yes, it is. ’

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Anyone e¢lse?2 Does anyone else
on the commifttee have any questions before we go to the
back of the room?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Mr. Hardy?

MR. HARDY: | have something | would like fto say
after Lir. Richardson.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Mr. Richardson —-- | don't know.
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MR. JOSEPH RICHARDSON: | would like to say in
reference to your statement to Mr. Arrington, regarding:
How does an airman feel about discrimination in Rapid City?
Many airmen, when they come into Rapid City, if they are
discriminated against the first time they enter Rapid City --
many of them refuse to come again. Personally, when | first
arrived fto Ellsworth, | was told that there was discrimi-
nation in Rapid City, and for three months, | stayed on the
base, and the only reason | came into Rapid City was to do
some Christmas shoppfng, and after that | did not return
to Rapid City until | attended a Brotherhood dinner in
February of '62, and this -- 1 had been on Ellsworth six
months and had entered Rapid City twice because | had heard
of discrimination and did not want to be confronted with
discrimination because | am a man, and | have pride.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Vell, that condition could

very well have obtained at one time, but do you agree that

today there are ample places for the Negroes to attend for
entertainment purposes?®

MR« RICHARDSON: Yes, | do. But, bearing in
mind that a new arrival does not know the places wherein
he can go, and more than likely -- as Mr. Arrington stated,-
Leol's Restaurant is attractive, and it will draw your at-

fention, and because of the sign in the window, you will

more than likely go there,
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DR. PALMER: Mr. Richardson == or maybe I'1]
di}ec% my question rather here to Mr. Arrington --

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Excuse me. | think so.

DR. PALMER: Is there any —- Do you feel that you
have a right to go into Leo'!s Restaurant and to seek service?

MR. ARRINGTON: | feel that as a man | do.

DR. PALMER: Is there any re¢ason why you should --
why you should be denied the right to not go in there and
have the same service as your -- as your white buddies out
there at the air base or any other person in Rapid City®?

MR+ ARRINGTON: No, I don't think so. Not unless =--

DR. PALMER: Do you feel that this is a right
that is being denied you merely because you are a Negro?

MR. ARRINGTON: Yes, | do.

DR. PALKMER: And that, you feel, does not give
you what you might call equal protection of the laws -- or
in other words, you are being treated differently in one
way or another?

MR. ARRINGTON: That'!s right, | do think this,
| think it is very much unAmerican and undemocratic to do
thise.

DR. PALMER: So this would be one of the rights
that you feel is being denied you that everybody else would
take for granted --

MR. ARRINGTON: That'!s right.

-75-



DR. PALMER: =- if they weren!t Negro: That they
could go into Leol!s Restaurant? ’

MR. ARRINGTON: Not only that, but you experience
this in one place, and being a Negro, you go -- You come
into town, you might be refused in one place. You know
there is another place, but you hate to keep going back to
the same place, and if you come in town -- | come to town
and bring Mr. Richardson and three or four other fellows
with mes we are all Negroes. We come into a place and sit
down and have a meal, and sit and talk for a few minutes;
it somebody e¢lse comes by that doesn!t want to be around
Negroes in one place, will refuse fo.gq to this man'!s es-

tablishment.

DR. PALMER: You don'!t feel that you have any
special responsibility for going around fo find out where
you will be served?

MR« ARRINGTON: Yes, | do feel this is a special
responsibility.

DR. PALMViER: But | mean you don!t feel that vyou
should have to have this as a special responSibrlify: To
go around to see where you can be served? '

MR. ARRINGTON: No, | don't think | should. 1
don't think ! should. | #hink | should be able to go any-
where | feel | want fto go as long as | act like a gentleman.

| don't want to feel that | have to go and search out a i

..76..



place to eat, or search out a place to sleep or be enter-
tained.

FATHER SI1EH: Wet!, | think at this point, though,
it!'s still very unclear as to how much searching you would
have to do. There haven!t been very many places named herq.
There have been about fwé places named.

MR« ARRINGTON: Yes, sir. Because | don!t want
to be faced with being humiliated as a man. No one doe;.

FATHER SIEH: But a city doesn!t want to be pub-
licized across the face of the nation be;ause maybe thére

are one or two among many, many establishments who discrimi-

nate. .

MR« ARRINGTON: This is frue. This is true. |1
don't -- | didn't want to go searching for places. There
were a couple of places that | went to to eat when | did

come to town which are right next door fo Mr. Toskin!s
place, and | have no complaints about those, and | haven!t
been back to his place ‘because | Tound some place else to
go when | came to town.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: I think someone else would
like to ask a question.

MRS. EVELYN MERRITT: | have a couple of brief
clarifications that | would like to make of Mr. Arrington's
talk. | am not certain whether you caught this or not, .
Mr. Laymon. He said in kind of a sigh, when he made his =--

-77-



it

)

in parenthesis, as it were, when he made his first state-
ment that unless he wanted to go out fto the Canyon Lake
Club, which is a == Is this not so?

MR. ARRINGTON: This is what | said, ves. Yes.

MRS. MERRITT: You made this reference, that
there wasn!t any other place?

MR. ARRINGTON: Yes.

MRS+ MERRITT: And you later spoke of only one
place; however, there were fwo that he was speaking of.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | sece.

MRS. MERRITT: The other thing, you mentioned

the Esquire Club, as you had heard rumors since. | don'!t

think Mr. Hall is here this morning, but | know for a fact
that he fried to change his policy and did serve Negroes =--
| don't know exactly for how long a period == | do know
that on one Friday night he served two Negro couples and
that they had an enjoyable time, and now maybe you --

MR. ARRINGTON: That was us.

MRS. MERRITT: And that on the following Saturday
night, there was an incident at the Esquire Club, which may
or may not be gone into,which caused him to change his
policy, and | had this directly from him == my husband and
l_—— on the phone.

PROFESSOR LAYiON: Well, | have one -- one other
question. Is there a list of black-listed cafes and night
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clubs around fown now?

MR. ARRINGTON: You mean do we have a list that -=-

PROFESSOR LAYMON: 1In other words, are you telling --
Are the incoming service -- colored servicemen out here told
today that they can =-- cannot get service at A, B or C cafe?

MR+ ARRINGTON: WVell, | don!'t make it a policy
to try to tell anybody that you can’f'gef service. When |
tell them about these things, | say, "I was not served. |
don't know whether i1t's changed or nmot." ™| was not served
at this place.” ' -

PROFESSOR LAYMON: At two places?

MR. ARRINGTON: Well, yes. The two places that
| was at, ves. '

FATHER SIEH: At the present, I'm extremely con-
fused. '

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | am, too.

FATHER S1EH: | mean, | get two stories here.
One: That there are only two places where you can't eaft,
and the other: Téere are only two places where yob can eat.

MR+ ARRINGTON: No. I'm sorry. | don't mean to
make the impression that there are only two plac;s. Itm
saying there were two places at which | went that I wa; re-
fused service. Now, there are places in town that | haven!t
been, and | may never go to, that | will be served there.

PROFESSOR LAYMOMN: Mr. Hardy, you want to shed
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some light on this? Would you like to sit and just =--
thanks very much, ;ir. _

MR. CHARLES N. HARDY: It!'s possible to clear up
some of the mistakes made by Mr. A;ringfon. He was speaking
from personal experience, and these were the two places
that had refused him service. Now, before me, 1 have affi-
davits that were signed by people who met similar factors
as his, | myst say; | think possibly some of these people
;re present,

PROFESSOR LAYMON: |If they are present, | would,
frankly, much rather hear them speak than have the affidavit
read, if we have time.

MR. HARDY: And with me, | have possibly == or

some listings here that was done by myself. | made a sur-
vey over the telephone, | must say, | talked to the pro-
prietors or the managers of these establishments.

FATHER SI1EH: What was the date of yoﬁr conver-
sation == of phoning?

MR. HARDY: Let's see, the da}e. It was a Satur-
day night. Let!s see, this was the date.

DR. PALMER: This Saturday night? Last Saturday
night. ' )

MR. HARDY: | have Dan's Bar who refused to serve

Negroes, and | talked with the manager of this establishment,

and | asked him was it his policy to refuse Negroes and why.
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He say that his customers didn't want to be in the same
establishment with Negroes; so he say that he definifely
couldn't afford to lose his business; so, therefore, he
wouldn't serve Negroes. | think the Esquire Club, who is
run by Mr. Hall == he refuses to serve Negroes. | don't
know why, but he refused to talk with me over the phone.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Could | bring you back a little
bite. Could you first of all give me the instances in which
you experlenced discrimination?

MR. HARDY: Well, before, you told Mr. Arringtfon
that we couldn't possibly bring these remarks against the
city because he didn't have enough evidence, 1 -- |

PROFESSOR LAYMON: No, | didn't say that.

DR. PALMER: VYes. | would like to make a point
onh our procedure here,

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Yes.

DRe. PALMER: | think we have been moving a little
bit back and forth beftween frying to get information from
these people about what they know fto be the case and vyet
being very legalistic In calling for evidence. Now, from
my standpoint, it's legitimate for this committee o hear
the results of conversations on telephones that fhis man
had with the owners and managers of bars —--

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Yes, VYes.

DR. PALMER: So let's == let us proceed with that,
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and then any personal experiences you might want to reveal
after that, okay; otherwise, welll get these affidavits or
have him read the ones for the &eople who are not here, but
| sensed that Mr. Arrington was very reluctant to answer
some of the questions that we were posing about other cases
because just pricr to his testimony, we had been putting
the screws on these people to give their own personal con-
crete experiences, that they would be willing to back up,
and | think we have fo be a little bit consistent here and
recognize that there are these ftwo things we have approached.
I just make this suggestion to the committee. 1If's a feeling
that 1| have developed this mornings So | would suggest per-
mission, Mr. Chairman, if Mr. Hardy might go ahead and re-
port the results of his telephone survey because --
PROFESSOR LAYMON: Yah.
DR. PALMER: Because this is an experience that
yvou had directlys is that true?
MR, HARDY: Yes. Over the telephone,
DR. PALMER: AIIl right. And then we might ask
for affidavits that he has of people who are not here and
then affidavits of those who are here that might read them
themselves and answer questions. Would that be appropriate?
PROFESSOR LAYMON: AIll right. Go ahead. '
MR. HARDY: Esquire Club refused to cater to
Negroes, and | talked to Mr. Hall, and he say that he didn't --
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personally he didn't care to discuss it over the telephone,
but he did tell me that | could come out and see him pos-
sibly tonight and we could discuss 1f, but he was in doubt
as to whether his club would be In operation any more. The
Meadowood Lanes! Lounge; and | talked to the proprietor of
this establishment, and -—- the manager wasn't in, but the
person in charge say that fthey didn!'t serve Negroes. The
VF and W-Club; the VF and W Club say that they would not
serve Negroes because -- well, now this is sort of in
between when | talked to this man because he say that there
are Negroes who are members of the VF and W and on post
nights =- | believe this is whdt he told me =-- that men of
the Negroes do attend their functions. 1 think that this
post night is where the members meet or something like this,
and there are Negroes present, but on open nights that
Negroes were not permitted to enter the establishment be-
cause the whife airmens from the base refused to be in the
same establishment with the Negroes with whom they eat and
sleep and work side by side with deily. Angelo!s Cafe re-
fused to serve Negroes on the same principle fhéf the per-
son at the VF and W say that they refuse: Because simply
his business was composed of the white airmens from the base
and they didn!t want to asscciate with the Negroes on their
free time. Dave's Bar refused fo serve Negroes. | can't

remember his comment.
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MR« RAFF: What is the name of that place?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Davels,

MR. RAFF: Oh, Dave's Bar.

MR. HARDY: Davels Bar. The J and N Corral re-
fused service to Negroes.

DR. PALMER: Is that a bar and restaurant?

MR. HARDY: It was listed as a beer parlor, I
believe, I'm not sure.

MR. IKE CHASE: Three two beer joint.

DR, PALMER: Tavern. A tavern.

MR. RUSSELL MARTIN: It's out of the city.

MR. HARDY: And Johnny'!s Pub, also, which carries

an advertisememt in the Black Hills Sentinel which is the
base paper == Ellsworth Air Force Base paper inviting people
to come and have fun and so forth, refuses to serve Negroes.
Jim's Place, which is a three point two beer joint | beliwve
refuses service fo Negroes. Murphy'!s Bar; Silver Spur -=-

DR. PALMER: “hat was the last one?

MR. HARDY: Murphy!s Bar, and the Silver Spur.

DR. PALMER: Silver Spure.

MR. HARDY: T and T Bar and Cafe == | think this
is where they sell beer and food.

MR. LEONARD PZTERSON: May I ask that he distin-
guish between whether they are three two class D on-sale

liquor establishments®
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PROFESSOR LAYMON: VWould you? Could you?

MR. HARDY: No, because | didn't go too much in
detail. | am not able to establish =- distinguish the
difference whether it!'s three point two beer or hiigh point

beer.

+

MR. PETERSON: | think it's real importante.

FATHER SIEH: Why? Why Is this important, please?

MR. PETERSON: Well, 1| mean they!re -- theylre --

DR. PALMER: Would you identify yourself, please?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Just -- Just a second, please;
Would you identify yourself, please?

MR. PETERSON: My name is Leonard Peterson. I!m
a member of the city council. ’

PROFESSOR LAYMON: All right.

MR. HARDY: Irregardless as to what percentage
of alcohol is contained in the beer, the fact remains they
refuse to serve Negroes. If | may proceed with this.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | think | would like to hear
the list first and then you can go back and ask him about
particular places, after hel!s finished.

MR. HARDY: The Tap Room at the Villa was one of
the places that will serve Negroes.

MR. RAFF: That will?

MR. HARDY: That will serve Negroes. Rustic Inn,
which is a three point ftwo beer jeint, if I'm not mistaken,
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also refused to serve Negroes. The Buffalo Bar refuses
service to Negroes. Whereas | talked with this person,

| asked him why; he say he refuses to service to Negroes,
because == well, in a little short == well, it wasn!t even
a sentence -- he say, "because they mess with the gfrls

and tap my place.®

So this was his policy for not serving
Negroes. And Don's Tavern and Lounge, he also refuse to
serve Negroes. Leo's Restaurant, as you have heard before,
also refuses to serve Negroes. Angelo's Cafe -- | men-
tioned that once before. Now, | do have one, two, three,
four == possibly twelve establishments that will serve
Negroes. If | might read these names, pleasec.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Yes.

MR. HARDY: Palace Cafe, Pancake House, Presto
Cafe, A and F Cafeteria, Kelso Hamburger, Coffee Club Cafe,
‘Iron Kettle Cafe, Keystone Cafe, Murphy'!s Bar -=-

MR. RAFF: Murphy'!s Bar was on your other list.

MR. HARDY: Murphy Bar refused -~ | mean, the
Office Bar =- the Office Bar. Excuse me, I!'m sorry.

MR. RAFF: Office Bar?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | didn't get that.

MR. HARDY: Yes -- Office Bar. The Office Bar,
which is adjacent to the air base out here, Holiday Inn
Lounge will serve Negroes and the Village, Sheraton-lohnson.

This is a survey conducted by myself over the telephone on
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the Oth of this month. Before me | have some affidavits.
Possibly | might call these people. Mr. Davis, would you
please stand?

MR. HARDY: William L. Davis.

PROFESSOR LAYMCON: Mr. Peterson, would you like
to address your questions?

MR. PETERSON: I just thought it would be of im-
portance to the listeners or anybody else here that there
is a difference between == not that it makes any difference
whether they serve the people or not == there is a difference
between the type of place,like a three two place or an on-
sale, hard liquor place.

MR. FARDY: May | ask the difference because |
don!t know.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | can'!t understand why there
should be a difference and why we need to make that dis-
tinction == or why the distinction needs to be made.

FATHER SI1EH: Vell, | mean, there is a factor of
age, but were you asked any questions about your age?

MR. HARDY: No, | wasn!'t, and had there been, I
am sure that people know that this is a problem In most
states, except New York and lLovisitana, I believe, that you
have to be twenty-one in most states, so | don!t think that
they would come down, if they were wunder age, éeeking entry
into these establishments.
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FATHER SIEH: Apart from the age, Is there any

difference?

MR, PETERSON: May I ask: Did you say the Village

would serve or wouldn!t serve?
MR. HARDY: The Village --
MR. RAFF: That will serve,
MR. HARDY: The Village will serve.
MR. RAFF: That'!s right.
MR. LAYMON: You have some affidavits you want

to --.or some people you want fto call?

MR. HARDY: Yes. | would like to call Mr. Davise.

DR. PALMER: This lady here -- Did you want --

MR. RAFF: We ought to let Mr. Hardy complete
what he would like to say, | think. He has a group of af-
fidavits, some supported by people present; some not. I
think we should allow him to go through this material.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | think It might be well if
he did. Would you come up? This is a part of Mr., Hardy?'s

presentation.

MR. RAFF: Perhaps have this individuval read the
stdtement himself,

MR. HARDY: | didn't want to make It so long by
having each of these individuvals present to read their

statements. | wanted to recite certain ——-

PROFESSOR LAYMOMN: Perhaps -- Is this his affidavit®
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MR. HARDY: Yes.

DR. PALMER: May | ask: Would they be willing
to file those affidavits with this commiftee, for our view
then later on?

MR. HARDY: Yes, they would,

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Then we can take up those that
we won!t have time to take up now. Would you like to read
vour arfidavit? Perhaps youl!d like to testify.

MR. WILLTAM L. DAVIS: I would.

DR. PALMER: Yould you identify yourself and
speak up, if you will. You can sit down there.

MRe DAVIS: My name is William Davis. | am a
Negro stationed at Ellsworth Air Force Base, and | have
this affidavit here that reads as suvuch. This is my affi-
davit. "I, William C. Davis, being first duly sworn de-
poses and says: That on March tenth of this year, 1962,
at approximately one olclock in the afternoon, I, William
Davis, along with two other Negroes, loseph Richardson and
lames Francis, by name, entered Leo's Restaurant at, | be-
lieve, 626 Main Street here in Rapid City. We were neat,
we |l l-groomed and complefely sober. We took a seat and waited
for attention from the waitress. After a moment of hesi-
tation, she came fo us and informed us that she could not
serve us. We asked to speak with the proprietor, Leo Toskin,

He came to us in a furious temper and said that he would
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not serve us and stated that it is his policy not to serve
Negroes. After receiving this information, we then left
quietly.t

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Does anyone have any questions
they would like to ask of Mr. Davis?

{No response.)

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Next.

MRe HARDY: Is Mr. Bradley present?

MR« RICHARDSON: He stepped out. '

MR. HARDY: He stepped oute | have an affidavit
signed by Staff Sergeant Bradley where he says he and
Richardson were dressed in neat clothing and completely
sober in mind and character, entered the Casino Bar at
526 Sixth Street, Rapid City, South Dakota between the hours
of seven and eight p.m. on December 24, 1962. We sat at
the nearest -- Ve sat at the nearest front entrance. The
lady waitress dressed in a pink dress seemed somewhat sur-
prised and hesitated momentarily before telling us that they
could not serve Negroes. At that moment, the male bar at-
tendant, Mr. Polaski, | believe, who was wearing a name
plate attached to his white shirt, to let you know that
this was the man's name, came close and confirmed the wait-
ress!s statement. Airman Richardson asked in a calm voice
if this was the policy of the messenger -- of the manager --
Mr. Polaski say, "Yes. He would be back about eleven."
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| say, "Eleven2™ in a questioning tone of voice, while
arriving at the same tone. | say, "Thank you." Ana we
both left and did not return. )

MR. RAFF: Is that --:Are these statements sworn
to as to accuracy?

MR. HARDY: Well ==

PROFESSOR LAYMON: This one has a -- This is sub-
scribed before a notary and has a notary seal on it. This
one has a blank. Ii's a copy. I'm not sure that it!'s the
original. ) ’

MR. RICHARDSON: We have the originals.

MR HARDY: Is Mr. Williams present? Anthony T.
Villiams?

{(No responsc.)

MR. HARDY: This one reads that "on the [6th of
February, 1962, at Angelo!s Cafe, on Sturgis Road; | was
discriminated against that | was asked to leave. The week-
end previous | had been fthere and served when accompanied
by three Cavcasians. The next time | went there, | was im
s party of two Negroes, one Latin and one Caucasian., We
were given no service and heard many insulting remarks. In
approximately fifTteen minutes, the barkeeper came and ad-
cdressed the one Caucasian with us. He'say that they would

never have allowed us there if he, the Caucasian, was as-

sociating with" -- may | use this derogatory term == "black boys."
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"Him, this one, asked if this meant they didn!t serve
Negroes and the answer to the question was strongly af-
firmative, We left and" -- "We left with insults and ig-
norant jeerings." This is signed by a notary public also.
Herel!s another. This is mine, and | might say that -- |
might say that | met a form of discrimination myself at
Angelo!s Bar, the 2nd day of September, 1962, We had been
there once, approximately around seven ol'clock, and we
were served., | was on a party of five, i must say. There
were two Cavcasian airmens and one Caucasian young lady,
myseff and Mr. Richardson back there, and he can affirm my

statement. | think we drdnk in Angelol's for approximately

thirty or forty minutes, and we left to see if Bill Chasels
pbace was open. It wasn't. And we returned back ftfo Angeio's.
By that time, the manager had retfturned, and he came over to
us, and he told us that we would have fto leave, and | asked
him, "™/hy2" | said, "I had been served here,previous this
afterncon.” And he say, "™ell, the airmens from the base
don'!t want you people in here." So I proceeded to go out-
side, and | asked Richardson fo go with me. We sat in the
car, waiting for the rest of the parties to return. VWhile
setting in the car, there were fthree Caucasian airmens who
walked up to the auvtomobile and drew knives on us, and they

told us simply, "We don'f want you here and the manager

doesn!t want you here, so why don't you go before you cause .
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trouble?"™ They say, "And you might get hurt.™ Well, I
told them that we were getting ready to lecave because !
didn't want any violent action on my part or their part,
and we didn't have any sort of protection, so we sat in
the car waiting for the rest of fﬁe parties to return.

DR. PALMER: D.id you report this to the base of-
ficials, as to the drawing of knives by the other airmen?

MR. HARDY: No, as such., But, well, we == |
didn't report this incident, mainly because we have been
working with the base commander for a long time. We have --
We have made him aware of the problem that we are facing
here in town, and also that they are allowing white airmens
to hold part-time jobs in places that discriminate against
Negroes, and, as such, there hasn't been any action on the
base commander!s part. That!s to my knowledge. | don't
know, maybe Mr. Richardson can say something because |
don!'t -~ | don't feel that they are doing their part by
allowing these people to hold jobs in places that will dis-
criminate against us because we are part of the military,
as such, and | didn't tell them of this incident. Mr.
Treadwell, would you mind coming Torward?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Would you identify yourseld,
please?

MR. TOMMIE L. TREADWEZLL: | am Tommie Treadwell;
stationed at Ellsworth Air Force Base. | have here an
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affidavit signed by me on the 9th of December, which states
as such ==

DR. PALMER: That's 19622

MR. TREADWELL: Right. On the 4th of December,
approximately -- well, between the hours of seven and eight,
another airman, namely, Airman Francis, an airman at the
base, and | went to an establishment on Main called the
Orchid Room. We stepped in the door, the bartender --
When we stepped inside of the door, the bartender said he
couldn't serve us; so | walks on to go to the bar, and
asked him if this is his policy, and he say it was the

policy of the National Bar Owners$! Association of South

Dakota.

MR. HARDY: Did he tell you why he couldn'!t
serve you®?

MR. TREADWELL: No. Well, yes. We asked him,
rather, if he didn't serve us because we were Negroes, and
he thought we were foo young.

MR. HARDY: What did he say?

MR. TREADWELL: He said it was the policy of
the Bar Owners! Association of South Dakota nol to serve
Negroes. And | have also here an affidavit signed by me
that: On 30 September 1962, airmens Charles Hardy, lJames
Bates, Joseph Richardson and myself went into the estab-

lishment on Main called Leo's Restaurant. We got In the
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place. We sat down. And, if | may say, | think we were
properly dressed. Mr. Leo, himself ~- the waitress, |
may say, had about twenty-five or thirty people in, of
which they sent out; then Mr. Leo came up to us and say,
"I'm sorry, gentlemen, this restaurant is closed to the
public.™ We, in turn, got up and left. After we goft
outside of the door, Mr. Leo handed us a letter. I['m not
tamiliar with the contents.

DR. PAIMER: Do you have it?

MR. HARDY: Yes. | == I'm not definite, but 1
can give you as close as possible to what the letter says.

MRS. EVELYN MERRITT: We have a copy:6f it.

MRS . CATHERINE SMITH: Excuse me. | have a copy.

MR. HARDY: You have a copve.

MRS . SMITH: Would you like me to read it?

MR. HARDY: Yes, please.

DR. PALMER: We'd like fto keep a copy for the
record.

MRS. SMITH: 1'll give you a copy of the letter
to put In the record; also, a copy of the newspaper clipping
discussing this.

MR. HARDY: This is the note that Mr. Toskilns
handed me on the night of the 30th of September 1962: ™I}
is my intfention to advise you that this establishment Is
closed to the public. Accordingly, | advise you that your
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status here Is that of trespassers. If you refuse to leave,

it shall be necessary for me to call the sheriff to eject

you. If you persist this evening and do not remove your-
selves, it is my feeling that your presence here is that

of malicious individuals who will do injury to my property.

| will take all means to protect it, including force, if
necessary. Therefore, | strongly suggest that you Immediately

leave these premises. Leo H. Toskin, owner of Leo'!s Restaurant.”

1+'s unsigned, but he admits it, so -- ’
PROFESSOR LAYMON: Let me see that. Is that a
true copy?
MR. LEO TOSKIN: I would rather wait until |
come up front, Mr. Chairman, to defend myself.
MR. HARDY: This Is a true copy because | -- \
PROFESSOR LAYMON: We'll hold it then.
MR. TOSKIN: At this time, | would rather not
speak.
PROFESSOR LAYMON: Ve must hurry along here be-
cause !'m sure that some of these people would like o --
1t's almost a quarter to twelve, and welre --
MR, HARDY: | would like to call Herbert L.
Hudson to come forward, please.
DR. PALMER: Thank you, Mr. Treadwell, Identify
yourself, please.
MR. HERBERT L. HUDSON: My name is Herbert L.
-906-
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Hudson. I'm stationed at Ellsworth Air Force Basc.
MR. ROBERT AISHEM: What was the name?
MR. HUDSON: Herbert l. Hudson.
¢ | would like to have you ask them
their age, please. Their age.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: That'!s a good point. How
old are you?

MR. HUDSON: Nineteen. Now, | arrived at Ells-
worth Air Force Base on October 4th, [1960. | was on the -
base for about ftwo months before going to town to look
for any type of entertainment. When | went fto town, there
were Tive Caucasian, airmen friends of mine stationed in
my squadron, who went with me. We went fo the Dakota Lounge
on Main Street, and we spent a few dollars on drinks, and
then, | think it was the manager, !'m not sure == | belleve
it was the manager; !I'm not sure -- who came over to us
and lockec at me and said | have to leave.

MR HARDY: Did he tell you why you have ito leave?

MR HUDSON: He didn't explain why | had to leave.
He Just looked at me and said | have to lecave. So five of
my friends =- my Caucasian friends -- got up and left. On
December twenty-third, 1961, | got married. Now, when |
cot back -- | got back on the base on lJanuvary thirtieth --
| mean, December 30th, 1961. Starting lanvary Ist, 1962,
| started to look for a place to live == started fto look
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for a place to live so | could bring my wife up here. |
went to the USO Club because | understood that they had a
listing of places to == for people to lodk for houses or
places to live.
MR. RAFF: Point of order,
PROFESSOR LAYMON: Yes,
MR. RAFF: Mr. Chairman, we are going to take
up the subject of housing later on in the day. | wonder
if we could make an inquiry --
PROFESSOR LAYMON: We are trying to restrict
this to cafes.
MR. HUDSON: Just on the Dakota Lounge, well, |
suppose -—- | believe he was the manager -- I'm not sure
who he was, but he was a man who walked over to us who
worked there, and he said that we had to leave.
MRe HARDY: And he singled you out, individually?
MR. HUDSON: He looked at me and he said: "You
have to leave.™
MR. HARDY: You were the only Negro in the group?
MR. HUDSON: | was the only Negro in the group. ’
DR. PALMER: Did he ask you your age?®
MR. HUDSON: No, he didn'f.
DR. PALMER: Did he ask you Tor any identification?
MR. HUDSON: No identification, no, sSire
DR. PALMER: Does your affidavit contain references
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to both your Dakota Lounge experience and also your
housing experience? ‘

MR+ HUDSON: Yes, it doese.

DR. PALMER: Woudd you be able to be here later
in the afternoon, when we discuss the housing situation?

MR. HUDSON: | think so, yes, sir.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Then | think It would expedite
things if all --

FATHER SIEH: However, If | have the time figured
out right == you say this happened in 1960 -- this Dakota
Lounge incident?

. MR« HUDSON: Yes, it did.

rATHER SIEH: You are nineteen now. You were
seventeen at the time? _

MR HUDSON: Yes, when | arrived here.

FATHER SIEH: So -- | mean --

MR. HUDSON: Yah, but, still -- ft!'s a —--

FATHER SIEH: I == | realize there'!s two sides --
| mean, there can be two things here, one on’each,,say, side.

MRS. CATHERINE SMITH: What were the ages of
the other airmen®

MR, HUDSON: Well, 1 think this one airman was
twenty-three.

FATHER SIEH: This may be relevent, but his age
is relevant, too.
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MRS. SMITH: Absolutely.

MRe HARDY: The fact remains that the man
singled you out and told you you had to leave?

MR, HUDSON: This is true.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | think we better --

MRe HARDY: Well, I would like to —--

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Could you draw yours to a
close because --

DR. PAIMER: He has affidavits that he's still
presenting. | think we should just read them and file
them now,

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Yes.

DR. PALMER: These are two signed by Joseéh
Richardson and both with regard to Leo's Cafe. Is that
correct? Or lLeo's Restaurant?

MR. HARDY: Yes.

DR. PALMER: And is there any particular thing
that we would need to know, Mr. Richardson, beyond what
is in these atfidavits?

MR, JOSEPH RICHARDSON: Yes. One thing that I
would like to point out in one of my affidavits is fhat |
mentioned that | had been to Leo'!s Restaurant prior to my
second affidavit, and | was dressed in my Class A military
uniform, US Air Force, and | was under the impression that

Mr. Leo would not refuse me service at this time, i |
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would go there dressed in my military uniform because he
was once stationed at Ellsworth Air Force Base himself.

MR. TOSKIN: First sergean%. )

MR. RICHARDSON: First sergeant.

MR. TOSKIN: Sergeant major.

DR. PALMER: That statement is in your affidavit
that you were wearing the airman's uniform?

MR. RICHARDSON: Class A uniform. Mr. Davis
was along with me, and he, also, was dressed in Class A
uniform. And we were not drunk. )

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Are there any other affidavits?

MRe HARDY: There are no more affidavitse | '
would like to make a few closing remarks.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: AIll right.

MR+ HARDY: In closing, | would like to say:
To deny equal rights fto any citizen or person because of
race ahd color of skin Is morally wrong. It is also an
illegal abridgment of the Negroes! constitutional rights,
and according to the President of the United States ~- In
his State of the Union Message in 1962, he states that:
"America stands for progress in human rights, as well as
economic affairs, and a strong America requires assurance
of full and equal rights to all citizens of any race, or
of any color.™ | thank you.

MRS. EVA NICHOLS: Mr, Chairman --
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PROFESSOR LAYMON: 1 think =- Yes, Ma'am.
MRS, NICHOLS: I'm Eva Nichols. I'm a Sioux

Dndian, and 1 would l1ke to sdy a few remarks, but, of

course --

PROFESSOR LAYMON: I'm sorry, Matam, but we are
attempting to restrict this foﬂ-- ]
MRS, NICHOLS: Negroes? L
PROFESSOR LAYMON: -- Negroes.
MRS. NICHOLS: 1 see. ’ .
DR. PALMER: "And to servicemen, in this instance. -
PROFESSOR LAYMON: Now, 1 -- 1 think that per-
haps we ought to --
MR. ARRINGTON: Mr. Chairman =-—--
PROFESSOR LAYMON: Yes.
MR. ARRINGTON: | don't see why you just want to
restrict it to Negroes because discrimination against any
people is what my concern is; not just myself and my people.
PROFESSOR LAYMON: We're -- | know. | -- That's -

a point very well taken, but we will hold other inquirie;

with respect to other races and groups, but this inquiry

is restricted to Negroes. ) ; =
MR. RICHARD RUDELL: Non-white. Your statement T
reads non-white.
DR. PALMER: | wonder if | could suggest that
the lady leave information with me regarding the substance
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of her statement so that | might have it for later con-
sideration when we get on to the Indian problem.

MRS. NICHOLS: 1 =-- 1 would object to thate.

IT this is an open meeting for discrimination, | think 1
shou[d have been heard.

MR. RAFF: Mrs. Nichols, the agenda for this
meeting is quite specifically laid out. The subject of it,
és well advertised, is: To determine the extent of dis-
crimination against non-white servicemen in the Rapid City
area. This committee can't look at all aspects of this
particular == of the entire subject of discrimination.

In order -- For purposes of contfrol and expedition, It
must be narrowed on this subject. There are going to be ,
many other hearings of this group, I'm sure, in which sub-
jects relating to the American Indiaﬁ are going to be dis-
cussed, Tor, as our chairman has stated, and stated for

the press, it's our feeling that very likely == very likely =--
the problems of discrimination with respect to Negroes are
more serious than those we are considering here and more
widespread.

DR. PALMER: You mean Indians?

MR. RAFF: Excuse me. Against Indians, I'm
sorry. You see, this is not at all == our meeting this
morning and today is noft at all to say that anyone denies
the terrible importance -— the great importance =-- of this
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other subject. Excuse me for =-- for stating that.

FATHER SIEH: You were not _speaking of .non-white,
non-Negro service people?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: See, we must f{e up this as-
pect of discrimination for the purposes of a report, but
we do plan to make exhaustive inquiries into the area in
which you are interested. | think that, Inasmuch as

Mr. Toskin's name has been brought up so many times this

morning, we should allow him the £Loori | think -that any

L S ] - —x T - —_—

other course would be unfair. ) _
MR. LEO TOSKIN: | am Mr. Toskig. Now, Mr. Chair-
man, do | take this chair to defend my stand? Or do 1 _— -
take this chair to defend the stand of Rapid City?2 How do
| come up here on both cases? | think I'm entitled fo
defend my stand, for one fhiné, and a second thing, 1
think I'm entitled to defend the stand of Rapid Cify; Now,
we have got a lot of affidavits here, but there'!s not too
many places named. Leo'!s Restaurant scored abo;f eight
times. Casino Bar scored a couple. Angelo's scored off

and on. And that's really the three places. Let!s look

at the lournal SU}vey. Bars-night clubsj serve N;groes: o

AT
o A2
B SRy

Il do not: 1l. Restaurants: Ninety point seven per "~ i, %@Qﬁ@

cent. Ninety point seven per cent. So, | don't think that!s

a =--
DR. PALMER: Ninety point seven per cent what?
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Serve Negroes?

MR. TOSKIN: Yes. Ninety point seven of the
Rapid City Journal Survey. The Rapid City Journal made
a thorough and complete survey.

DR. PALMER: | was Just interested in what it
was the percentage figure referred to. Thank you.

MR. TOSKIN: So in this field, | don!t think
that welre -- | don't think that itl's a mass d}scrimina-
tion. Now, let!s gé over here to some of their statements,
from which 111 defend myself, | would like to submit
that somewhere around the 4th of December -~ 1t wasn't
the 4th of December; it was September 30th, 1962. [
would like to submit this to the -- '

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | would -- Just one second.
Mr. Toskin, | imagine that you are going to have quite a
bit to savy.

MR. TOSKIN: Yes. 1| would rather go have lunch.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | was just about to suggest
the same thing, that we adjourn until one thirty, and
then welll return to this topic.

MR. TOSKIN: Very good, sir.

{The hearing was adjourned.)
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AFTERNOON SESSION

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | would like everyone to get
seated.s We have got a lot of ground to cover this after-
noone. | would also like to announce that we must close
this at four-thirty, insfead of five, as it shows up on
the agenda. We have, as a carry-over from this morning,
Mr. Toskin's statement; so, without further ado, would
you lfke to take your place, sir? Would you limIt your
presentation, and whatever questions we have fo ask you
to thirty minutes? -

MR. TOSKIN: Well, do you want me to start,

Mr. Palmer?

EROFESSCR LAYMON: Start right in.
MR. TOSKIN: Sta¢t right in.
PROFESSOR LAYMON: VWhere you left off this
morninge Well, | would like fo repudiate some of the
statements made here this morning, to start all over again. .
| believe | read a newspaper item that this commission was
called -- commiftee was called to examine the facts as to

the extent of discrimination here in Rapid City, through’ y

that report that was made in the Associated Press by

Mr. Janson, | believe. If | may, | would like to start
right in with this report.
PROFESSOR LAYMON: | don't want the report read. -
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MR. TOSKIN: No, the repori Is not going to be
read. I'm going to repudiate the statements in It and
then match it with our latest Journal survey, just to
show the difference here, Mr. Chairman. It says 90% of
the bars, barber shops and 30% of the restauvrants. The
Rapid City Journal in their latest survey shows that --
that!s 90% discriminate -- Rapid City Journal Survey shows
that 90.7% serve Negroes. 22.2 that's beer establishments --
straight three two beer, serve them, and 50% of the bars
and night clubs. That's the first one. 1 would like o
repudiate then that we have here these gentlemen coming
vp and making their claim of this gross discrimination we
have in Rapid City -- this large number of discrimination
there == or whatever you want to call It =~ the extent of
ite As | said before, there is only I, 2, 3 -- approximately
five places mentioned we have been charged of.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | counted about fifteen, I
think.

MR. TOSKIN: Actual affidavits. Hearsay. Hearsavy.
Telephone conversations. Let's just take the T & T Bar,
for instance. A phone call was made Infto there. The walft-
ress picked up the phone and answered It. That!s notfzan
accurate survey, and | challenge anything on the telephone.
You don't know who you are talking to on the telephone.
Anybody could pick up that telephone. Even a customer
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could pick It up, because these phones are out in public
places. They are out in the reach of the people. And

then let's go to the extent of night clubs. Coney Island

was brouéhf up here. Said it!'s not a place to == 1t!s not

a place where a gentleman would like to go. Coney Island

-- 90% of the business, | believe, is colored people; so

1*1! let them fight that out with the proprietor of the

Coney Island. And during the Issuvance of thls license to

Mr. Chase, a Mr. Shackelforth == Shackelford -- something -
of that nature, was then a figure on the civil rights ‘ tfrg 5
committee, and at the council meeting when this came up, —‘ lgéf
Mr. Shackelforth got up and opposed this llquor license :
for Mr. Chase. | would like to bring that before this

committee.
DR. PALMER: On what grounds, may | ask?
PROFESSOR LAYMON: What does that have to do
with discrimination?
MR. TOSKIN: He said It would discriminate.
PROFESSOR LAYMON: How do you mean?
MR. TOSKIN: | don®t know what he meant. We

couldn'!t understand it eifhe;.

MRS. CATHERINE SMITH: | was present at that
council meeting and | heard Mr. Shackelford. The city
council spoke of this new liquor license to be a place
for Negroes to go. He did not want a place fo be segre-
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gated for Negroes, any more than the bars that are now
segregated for whites are segregated. That was his point.
MR. TOSKIN:z Then all of these incidents that
were made directly against me. Let'!s go over some of
these incidents. | refused sefvice to a number of them.
That | do not deny. The Legislative Research Council of
this state, at one particular time when they were making
a survey of this, asked for particular incidents just
like you gentlemen have done here ftoday. And | believe
in this one afternoon that they come marching in there In
4's and 5's and didn't even bother to sit down, some of
thems; so ! just went up and give them thelir answer they
wanted? | don®!t serve them. | do not cater to them.
Now, lei!'s go to the incident here on Sunday, September
30th that gentleman brought up. Sunday, September 30th,
1962, a planned demonstration, sanctioned by certain city
officials, was conducted against my restavrant. | sub-
stantiate this by presenting these pamphlets that were
passed out in the streets of Rapid City discriminating
against myself and three other places of business. Af
this time, | would like to make the charge of discrimination.
DR. BEN MUNSON: Will you point out how that
discriminates against you, Mr. Toskin?
MR. TOSKIN: VWell, the laws clearly read that we
have never at any time published any pamphlets -- o my
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knowledge, the citizens of this town has never published
any pamphlets or anything else depressing the Negro popu-
lation of this aeea, and here you are, you are publishing
pamphlets criticizing our places of busines;.

DR. PALMER: Who Is publishing pamphlets?

MR. TOSKIN: Right here, sir. NAACP. )

DR. PALMER: | thought you said, "You were."

MR. TOSKIN: | said we never had.
DR. PALMER: | mean, | thought you were saying,

"You," in reference to this committee. _
MR. TOSKIN: No. No. No. | says we never had.
PROFESSOR LAYMON: One point to make it clear,

so we don!'t have to go back to this. You did say3 did

you not, that you do not serve to Negroes or cater to them?

MR. TOSKIN: No, I didn't say that. Let!s get

the record clear. 1| said | told thes$e Negroes | wouldn'$

serve them.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Oh, a -- Jjust on a particular

group#® )
MR. TOSKIN: On a particular individéal basis.

-
=

| say this under the rights that 1 reserve the right to -

refuse service to anyone whom | may think may Impéir my - .

business in any way, shape or form.
DR. MUNSON: Exactly what does this paper of
the NAACP do that you say injures you? How does it injure
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you? What does it do? '

MR. TOSKIN: 1 didn't say it injured me, Dr.
Munson. | say they passed out pamphlets, | didnt't say
nothing about it injuring me. -

DR. PALMER: You said you were being discriminated
against.

MR, TOSKIN: Discriminated against.

DR. MUNSON: How?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: How?

DR. PALMER: How?

MR. TOSKIN: Right there. They tell people not
to go there.

DR. PALMER: It doesn?!t say that on the sheet

Itve got.

DR. MUNSON: |t does not say that.

MR. TOSKIN: Let!s read the sheet for the record,.
"All over the country Negroes are assuming full responsi-
bility as American citizens. We want all the privileges

of citizenship, including equal treatment in business es-
tablishments open to the public. We ask no favors. We

only want to be Jjudged on our merifts as individvals.™

And then it reads the so-called law. "No person or business
offering goods or services fo the publfc..." | skipped a
few paragraphs there, fo go on with it. "...shall deny

such goods or services to any person' -- or "of good deport-
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ment, Solely on the basis of his race, creed or national

origin. Violators are guilty of a misdemeanor and are

subject to fine." Now, gentlemen, I!'m being discriminated

upon there. Theyl!re asking for passage of legislation to
make me guilty of a misdemeanor, if | == if | stand up to
my rights under the Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitution,

which I will get fto later, if you don!t mind in my little

talk.,
MR. RUDELL: Read this next paragraph there, -

please.

MR. TOSKIN: Which one do you want, sir®

MR. RUDELL: Right below the statement about
the law. Read that next paragraph.

MR. TOSKIN: "Laws like this already™ -- "Are
already in effect in fwenty-nine northern sfafés, I&cluding
Nort+h Dakota, Wyoming, Nebraska and Montana."

MR. RUDELL: Thank you.

DR, MUNSON: What does it say about you, please?

MR. TOSKIN: "These are some of the restavrants™ ==

"These are some of the business establishments of Rapid ¥

- PO —

éify that refuse to serve Negroes: State Barber Shop, "

4 apde
_ ls RIEET
- PN

Leo!s Restaurant, the Red Barn, Casino Bar and Esquire Club.™ .- by

I 4

~

DRe MUNSON: Is that untrue?
MR. TOSKIN: No, it's not untroe.
DR. MUNSON: AIll right.
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MR. TOSKIN:z | just made —— I've just made the
claim here, Dr. Munson, that we have never, in any way,

published anything in any derogatory way at all about these

people.

DR. MINSON: Can you not --

MR. TOSKIN: We stood on our individual rights.

DR. MUNSON: Can you not take this as derogatory
or praise? It just simply says you do not serve Neg@roes.

MR. TOSKIN: That'!s right. Passed out on our
streets. ]

DRe MUNSON: How can you say itdderogates against
you?

MR. TOSKIN: It derogates against my individual
rights.

DR. PALMER: You mean the fact these people
handed out these handbills has hurt you?

MR. TOSKIN: No, it hasn't hurt me.

DR. PALMER: ®But the content of it == the content
of == if it were frue. --

MR. TOSKIN: | say it could have hurt me.

DR. PALMER: Yah. So you were not discriminated
against. You say you would be, 1f such a law were passed? -

MR. TOSKIN: That's right. ‘

DR. PALMER: That's the essence of it.

MR. TOSKIN: That'!s right. That'!s the essence
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of Ite.

DR. PALMER: So that you_would retract the
statement that the passing out of this discriminated
against you? Right? .

MR. TOSKIN: Right.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: I would like for Mr. Toskin
to go ahead and comptete his statement because in about
ten more mrnutes welre going to have to open to questions.

MR. TOSKIN: Then Mr. Harding ==-or--whoever- It

a

was == | can't pronounce his name. T didn'} get it quite =

clear. Stated his rights under the Cons+1tutlion. Now,
gentlemen, | have a'prepared statement that | will submit
to this committee, explaining my viewpoints and a lot of
other people maybel!s viewpoints, to take this stand.
"Gentlemen: There is no doubt that a few isolated cases
of selective patronage exist in Rapid City, but the ex-
tent of it has been exaggerated out of proportion and has
gotten outright ridiculous. It Is discouraging, too, to
find that influential news media has distorted facts and
slanted the good name of the state and its people to

— =

further the cause of the NAACP."™ | will leave this next
paragraph out, but I will submit it for the_record. "I fﬂ
deplore the tactics used by the NAACP, the plaqned sI;-ins
and the disregard of our Constitutional rights;™ at this

point, | would like to stop right here and explain this
-1 14-




planned sit-ins, which followed the passing out of these
pamphlets. A planned sit-in was scheduled, | believe

it was Sunday night. Sunday, September 30th. These
pamphlets were passed out Saturday, September 22th, and

a planned sit-in was scheduled Sunday night, September 30th.
Now, | make this charge on planned sit-ins, and | believe
our law enforcement officers will back me up on this; our
records in the Rapid City Police Department will back me
up on this. | was phoned =- | was phoned approximately
three hours before the proposed incidents would occur,
and if anybody recalls the night of September 30th, | be-
lteve you will find that that night the President of the
United States was making his speech on Mississippi. |
was phoned by the city attorney at that time, who was

Mr. LaFleur, telling me that there was going to be a
demonstration at my restavrant. Approximately an hour
later, the chief of police called me and informed me that
there was going to be a planned demonsfration, and, con-
sequently, an hour later, four men walked in, at which
time we took the right, and we closed up our restavrant
and removed everybody; not just the Negroes, but the white

people, too. That is a planned, well-organized movement .

oo
xa

against me. That was planned. And | believe if the re-
cords were checked, you will see that there were other
phone calls into the city police department stating that
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there were other phone calls into the city police depari-
ment stating that there were going .to be.other such demon-

strations, but I don't believe any took-place, other than

mine. | will continue now if there is no further questions

on that.

MR. RAFF: May | make Jjust a brief comment?

MR. TOSKIN: Yes, you may, Mr. Raff.

MR. RAFF: One of the members of the NAACP,
whose name | forget entirely, == - -- .- . -

- L e -~ o o — -

MR. TOSKIN: KirtdollS 7 °~ =~

MR. RAFF: ~-- called me that evening; ftodd me
about their plans, and my action then was fo immediately
callithe chief of police and ask him to contact the at-
torney, as well as yourself. | thought 11 was -- 1
thought i1t was very good to have you know about it and
have the police know about It, so long as | received such
a telephone call myself.

MR. TOSKIN: May | go on?

MR. RAFF: Oh, vyes.

MRS. EVELYN MERRITT: Are we open for any dis-

CUssioné
) PROFESSOR LAYMON: Not quite. == not quite yet.
He has another five minutes or so.
MR. TOSKIN: | defend my stand on selective
patronage under the Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitution.
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! point to our rotten -- our written constitution as a
guarantee == well, it's almost gettin! that way. I[t!s
almost gettin! that wéy. ] defend myﬂsfand on selec%ive
patronage under .the Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitu=-
tion. | point to our written constitution as a guarantee
of the right of the individual. Every man has a inalienable
right to decide for himgelf with whom he will do business,
whether it be in the sale of merchandise or any other pro-
perty. | deplore the use of power by the NAACP to impose
their will upon me by proposing legislation that would
deprive me of my Individval rights as a private business
that is neither subsidized by federal or state funds. |
denounce that this city is an "Island of Prejudice." |
defy any man to say that we deprive any minority gr;ups
their rights under the Fourteenth Amendment of the Consti-
tution. Must we take these insults because of -- our

legislators in the past have courageously upheld our con-

- stitutional rights and refused to take refuge In the

questional doctrine that the end justifies the means? It

is disheartening to find that influential news media ﬁis-
represent a position, taking on principle as really an
opposition to civil rights. Are the people of this state
going to allow this form of extortion and blackmail from
foreign newspapers to help a foreign organization pass
legislation in fthis state that would impair our constiftutional
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rights? The civil righters have admlitted the fact that
progresg has been made in Rapid City. Even they repudiated
the article that appeared in the Denver Post. It Is casy
enough to call anyone a Negro hater who disagrees with

the theory of forced intragation. 1t is easy enough to
call the people of this city enemies of the Negro, though
the facts of our relationship in the past years do not

bear out the accusation. Not once have the people of this

city tried to enact legislation that would deprive the

e e

Negro of his equal rights under the Fourteenth Amendment
to the Constitution. Nor has there been any general custom

or practice of segregation in Rapid City. Yef the NAACP -

exhort the majority in our midst to force the Issuve of

the minority to deprive us of our civil rights. | say
again =- | won'!t say that. But I'Ill submit it for the
record. |If our constitution is to be ignored, then no
laws can stand free from doubt, and no citizen would be
safe from his neighbor. Let the people of the state and
the city be our judge. It lies In their courage to accept
these laws with which they disagree, as those with which

they agree. The eyes of the nation are upon them and upon, -

all of us, and the honor of their city and thelr state |
are in the balance. | am certain a great majority of the )
people will uphold that honor, for they now have a new

opportunity to show that they are men of Integrity. The z
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Tenth Amendment to the Constitution clearly points out

the powers not delegated to the United States by the Con-
stitution; nor prohibited by it to the states, are re-
served to the states respectively, or to the people, and

it has always been assumed that a people of a sovereign
state can, by majority vote, choose their own way of life
and manage their own social functions without diminishing
in any way the opportunities of the minority. How can

the defenders of the anit-bias bill ignore the sociological

consequences feared by the people of this state? 1t is
important not fo try to abolish over night what éenerafions
of experience and customs have implanted., For we sece
legislation of this type as the first step in the vltimate
goal of the NAACP as hastening the day of intermarriage

of the two races. Now is the time for the people of this
state and city to become aroused and take the time to

learn the whole story, for it is the assumption of the
NAACP that the people can be fooled; that they will not
take the trouble to find out the facts. Where is the pub-
lic interest which is so much talked about but so little
respected? Only informed people can persuvade our elected
officers fo be courageously guided when voting on this

type of legislation. This is why, in this speech, Mr.
Chairman, | challenge certain members —-- | didn't know

how the vote was taken, and I'I]l go -- 1'd Iike‘fo ask
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that after this speech is completed. But the speech, in
essence, now goes on as saying that if the people of this
state belfeve my position is wrong, then let them encourage
the legislators to pass this anti-bias bill, and if they
believe, as | do, in their constitutional rights, then let
them encourage the legislators fto be brave and vote against
the lawe Now, if | may, | would like to ask this committee
how it arrives —-= how it arrives at a -- at a decision

after all the facts have been presented here, if 1-may;

1f I1'm not out of.order In doing that.
PROFESSOR 1AYMON: We will review the transcript

of this as carefully as we can and come to our conclusion -

based on that, as well as appearances and observafionsi

insights which, | dare say, are too numerous to attempt

'fo defail-

MR. TOSKIN: Yes, sir. Is this taken by a vote
of the committee?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: No, we have no plans in that
respect. We haven't discussed that. Do you have -- We
have about ten mianes for questions, if anyone would like

to direct questions of Mr. Toskin.

MRS. EVELYN MERRITT: | have one question, which”

| hope I'll getiaround fto.
PROFESSOR LAYMON: Your name, please?
MRS. EVELYN MERRITT: Evelyn Merritts member of
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the Black Hills Civil Rights Committee. There are so

many things that | could ask and say In rebuttal that

I'm really almost lost. One thing 1 would like to say

for the record -- and you spoke of some foreign organi-
zation -- | suppose you mean the NAACP., | don!t see hardly
how this applies, but | will ftake that to be yéur meaning;
however, the Black Hills Civil Rights Cammiffee was In
being long before the NAACP was established or organized

in Rapid City, and | think wherever you have put the . words™
"NAACP" in that dissertation, you can also put Black Hills
Civil éighfs Committee and not forget that they are mem-
bers of Rapid City and the State of South Dakota. | also
would like to have you tell this group of people how you
prepared to meet this onslaught of four NAACP members.

How did you meet them? What was awaifing them when they
walked into your restavrant?

MR. TOSKIN: What was awaiting them? Nothing
was. They came in and saf down, and | closed the restaurant,
and | says, "Gentlemen, this restauvrant is closed.™ )

FATHER SIEH: Mr. Chalrman, | would Itke to
point out that some of this Is rather lost on quite a
few members of the commifttee. | mean, you are speaking
of something that is quite local. A lot of us don't know
a let about it, you sece.

MR. TOSKIN: Gentlemen, that is my -- That is
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" teenth Amendment to the Constitution. | have an inalienable

my problem, gentlemen. This national -- This thing we
have received nationally Is not deserving of this city
and this state. That is why youlre 5up§;sed to be here.
This problem could have been hanéled locally with the
facts that have been presented here today, but there is
only five or six of us that are actuvally discriminating.
This should have been handled locally. This national ad-
vertising should have never been gotten. That'!s what I'm

trying to say, Father. This is == this is ver;‘ferriblé -

A .o -
SN e g

to our city and our state. It should have been handled

in the administrative branch of our city government.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: There are several other people - -

that would like -~ say this lady -- What'!s your name, please?

MARY GOINGS: Mary Goings, and I'm a member of '
the Mayor's Committee, and | would Ii ke to ask Mr. Toskim
why he doés not serve Negroes.

MR. TOSKIN: | claim my rights under the Four-

right to sell or purchase merchandise, and do business

with whoever | see fift. - »
MARY GOINGS: On what do you place vyour judgmeﬁf . ~§
of fitness? A person's color? il

MR. TOSKIN: |f | feel, in any way, that the

‘color of a person or the behavior of a person, or the dress

of a person could deteriorate or could cause a scene in
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my place of business, | will remove him immediately. Let!s
go back a few years to the incident of the doctor and his ,
wife. Let!s go back to that incident that was mentioned
in the Denver Post,

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Is that germane to this dis-
cussion?

MR. TOSKIN: Yes. She asked me what | judge
my decision on, Sire.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: All right. )

MR. TOSKIN: The doctor!s wife was a white woman.
She entered the restavrant; sat d;wn, and she was thrown
quite a few nasty remarks to the woman, which isnl't fair
to her. 1t's her business what she wants to do, and at
which time, instead of trying to quiet people down, throwing
nasty remarks, | just went up and | says, "l don!t cater
to colored people,™ or "Negroes." When 1 refer o the

word "colored people,®

it refers”sfricfly to the Negroes.
Let!s get the record straight. That's how | was brought
up. We called our constituents colored people in the
east; not Negroes. When 1 say "colored people" that don't
include Indians, Chinese, Japanese or any of the other i
races.

DR. PALKER: Ddid you come originally from the
ecast, sir?

MR. TOSKIN: Yes, sir.
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PROFESSOR LAYMON: There is another question in

- the backo

MR. ANTHONY T. WILLIAMS: Mr. Toskin, can you

see me clearly?

MR. TOSKIN:z | can see you.

MR. WILLIAMS: Do you recognize the uniform

which | ==~

recognize the uniform that | wore -

for many vears. :

E— ——

MR. TOSKINs: |

-t -

4 - " EES

MR. WILLIAMS: Do you believe in the heroes of . . o

America, more or less, George Washington, -Abraham Lincoln

and these sort of people?

MR. TOSKIN: Yes, | believe in Abraham Lincoln

very, very much.

- MR. WILLIAMS: Would vyou say that Abraham Lincoln
was a liar when he said that "All men are created equal2®
MR. TOSKIN: Well, no, Abraham Lincoln wasn't 4
liar, but -- . )
PROFESSOR LAYMON:

I == 1| would like to resfrict

this to discrimination, pleasc.

MR. TOSKIN: I7 we want to get on Lincoln, we

could really get into It here. ] ’ T ET

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Rather than to get off on to
philosophical considerations.
MR. WILLIAMS: Well, Mr. Toskin, one night I
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entered your restaurant in the company of two Caucasian;,
and | was served, and the following afternoon, | went by.
there, and | seen =~ or | saw two Negroes being turned away.
Can you explain this?2 s there any logical reason for this?

MR. TOSKIN: Sure, | can explain ite Yes, ! can.
Like | says, ecach incident =~ each case Is judged at the
fime. | gquoted before, there Is no general custom in this
city. Each incident that has occurred was through my judg-
ment at the time, and when I'm not there, the waltresses
and my help will not serve them because they're not qualified
to make the exact judgment. 1| make the judgment. | deter-
mine at the time just whet will be done. If | feel that it
will be a hardship to my business at that time, | refuse
them. If | feel it won't be, | serve them.

FATHER SI1EH: Mr. Toskin, if 1| understand you
correctly, you state of yourself and about five other es-
tablishments, you do discriminate. You don't deny this?

MR. TOSKIN: No, | don't deny this, Father. 1
don't say -- | don't like the word "discriminate."” Let's
use the word "selective patronage, please. | don't like
the word "discriminate.” Let's use the word, "selective
patronage.” )

FATHER SIEH: Well, be that as it may, welre not =--
I'm not here to deal with an isolated instance of you and
other people. I'm concerned about the City of Rapid Citvy.
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\MR. TOSKIN: That's what- I'm trying fo bring out:
These are Isolated Incidentse .. .. —. - —_
FATHER SI1EH: If you are not representative of this
city, that!s what I'm Interested in. If you are representa-
tive, all ;ighf. Are you claiming to be representative of
the City of Rapid Clty? _
MR: TOSKIN: 1 couldn't claim that. Only fthe _ .

mayor of this city could be rep;esenfafive, and | challenge

-
43t

" his representation because hels blasedriq_hts*+h1nklnga‘?f!:f=;~wt€%

- FATHER .SIEH: Well, I fhoughf fhaf you j-zi”+H§Z§ﬁ¥—“7ifT§§
that you more or less said that you did nof clalm to be ;gf‘ :ihﬁg
representative of the businesses of this city. ~ - -

MR. TOSKIN: No, I'm not. No, I'm not. | come

vp here =- | have had =-- most of the charg;s here today
, were against me, personally. They were here against me,

personally. They out-number everybody else three to onec.

DR. PALMER: Mr. Toskin, now you admitted serving .
this air force boy back here when he was in the company of
two Cavcasians.

MR. TOSKIN: Righte.

- — —

DR. PALMER: And you made the declsion at that _

Fe= =

time that it was proper and fitting for him to be servedg
Right? '
MR. TOSKIN: Right.
DR. PALMER: And would you agree that If you had -
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made a -~ told him to go out, under those circumstances,
it would have been an injustice to him, under those cir-
cumstances., Right?

MR. TOSKIN: Now, youl!ll have to restate that,
sire | don't quite get the essence of that duesfion.

DR. PAMER: | say, you made the decision that
it was proper for this boy to be served and If you had -=-
if the circumstances were entirely the same, and you had
instead said, "o, you can't be served," then it would have
been an ]njusfice to him. ARIghf? )

MR. TOSKIN: That's right.

DR. PALMER: Now, when you leave the establish-
ment and leave fhe.fnsféuchOns with your waifresses %haf
they must not serve Negroes, then you will admif that
possibly there are circumstances that, in your judgment,
would be an injustice to the individual? |Is that correct?

MR. TOSKIN: That could be very well correct.

DR. PALMER: Al!l right. Thank vyou.

PROFESSOR LAYMOM: There is one other gentleman
back there. -

MR. ROBERT ASHEIM: Bob Asheim, and I'm an alder-
man for Rapid City. —

PROFESSOR LAYMON: VYhat is your name, sir?

MR. ASHEIM: Bob Asheim. And | would want to
ask Mr. Toskin -- I've been in his restaurant on a number
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.of occasions when he has served colored people, and | want
to know roughly what percentage you furg away?

MR. TOSKIN: 1 turn -- I turn away -- Oh, well,
as far as percentage goes, Mr. Asheim --

MR, ASHEIM: | don!t want an exact figure. Is
it 10%2 Is it 20%2

MR. TOSKIN: Other than the planned incidents;
let?'s put it that way, it would probably be a -- Oh, I!d

say-abouf 3%, Other than the planned incidents that H;vef .

‘,
|

been planned against me, | would say apﬁroxjmafe]y 3%.

i
i Pi"l‘

MR. ASHEIM: 1 have two other questions | would

1

l'ike to ask while | have the floor, and | was here this

morning and | would Just like to have this information.
Roughly how many Negroes are there at the air base?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Could someone come up Qifh that
information in rough figures? )

MR. TOSKIN: Nine hundred.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | wouldn!t have the faintest
notion.

MR. ASHE IM: Five hundred and twenty-five a year I
ago. Roughly five hundred. Would that be about right?
Somewhere around five hundred? ) ; o ";%%

MR, TOSKIN: Be closer to eight hundred.

MR, ASHEIM: Eight hundred.

MR. ANTHONY WILLIAMS: It would be a lot more than
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that. There would be approximately between eight hundred
and a thousand there now.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: All right.

MR WILLIAMS: Thét includes civilian personnel
there now,.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: - All right. Does that satisfy
you, sir?

MR. ASHEIM: Yes, sir.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Ore other question. We have
about three minutes left. Yes, sir. What!s your name?

MR. WILLIAM ARRINGTON: My name is William
Arrington. Mr. Toskin, on December ~- February 10th of
this year, | came info your restavrant. | was alone. |
was dressed pretty much the same as | am nowe | had been
doing s ome shopping. | didn'ft have any packages. | came
in and you met me at the front door. You told me you did
not cater to colored people. | asked you if this meant
" that you did not serve Negroes, and you said, "Yes."™ Why
wouldn't you serve me? | was alone. )

MR. TOSKIN: You being alone has nothing to do
with the circumstances that may be in the restavrant at
the time. You, as your color, or you as an individual,
or you &8s your presence has nothing to do with i, or the
way you present yourself, or the way you're dressed has
nothing to do —- You see, we'lre more or less judged ourselves --
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of | should say: We make our judgments on the desires ;nd
the prejudice of our customers, as owners of private business.
We make these decisions on those basis. No other basis is
made. That is 1t. You being properly dressed, or you
being a colered man had nothing to do with it. You as an
individval had nothing to do with it, but the presence of
you in that restauvrant may have caused some kind of chaos. ~
MR. ARRINGTON: Well, there wasn!'t time for any
chaos, when | walked in. —
MR. TOSKIN: No. | stopped you at the door.
PROFESSOR LAYMON: I think your question has been
answered.
DR. PALMER: Mr. Toskin, are you saying fh&f the
people in the community that patronize your establishment
are prejudiced people who have desires not fo sit with
Negroes; to be served in the same esfablishmenf with them,
and that you are acting in their behalf? Is that what
you are saying?

MR. TOSKIN: No. Just a minute, | want -- | want

to correct that statement to a certain degree. You put

f
v g

¥
r2ca
Hod il &

in the "people in this community.” | would rather not

t

have fh;f put in that question, if you don't mind, sir. 5y
Let!s say the people in that restauvrant at the particular
time may have those prejudice.

DR. PALMER: What do you mean they "may2" How
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do you know this?

MR. TOSKIN: They == They show it in different
ways. When you know your people, you can look into vour
restauvrant and see. You can hear a remark from the back-
ground. You can hear something, but, as you are saying
the "people of this community," no. The prejudice does
not lie in Rapid City, sir. The prejudices here Is not
the people of Rapid-Cify. The prejudice are the white
airmen. This is something we can't control in Rapid City.

DR. PALMER: You mean that it's the white air-
men, when they are in your restauvrant, that they object?

MR. TOSKIN: That'!s right. Yes, sir. They are
the ones that object, and they are most likely to be the
égifafors.

DR. PALMER: So that -- So that whenever you
have a circumstance where there is a white airman in the
restavrant, then'!s when you feel if!'s necessary to refuse
service to the Negro?

MR. TOSKIN: Onily when | hear a remarke.

DR. PALMER: Only when you hear a remark?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Reverend Hayes? )

REVEREND ARDIE HAYES: In other words, Mr. Toskin,
you do this to protect the Negro?

MR. TOSKIN: W¥ell, that's pufting it very liberal,
Reverend., | do it to protect myself and my property. In
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one state of the thing, you could say the Negro -~ In the
case of the doctor and his wife, | didn't want to see the
woman go through great embarrassment, a;d 1 was well pub-
licized on that, if you recall.s 1 really didn't want tbe
woman to go through great embarrassment, and she would
have been put through great embarrassment. After all,
we cannot -~ we cannot rule the feelings of all the --

you know, some people, but as for discrimination, or as a

¢
|
i

whole, as a customy, | == | == | have to repudiate it be- -~

cause the facts and the figures here just —- Just don't

~

,
Bl ol e

show it, gentlemen. It Just don't show it.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: One more question, and then
we must =-

REVEREND FREDERICK JESSETT: | am the Reverend
Frederick lessett. [I'm from the Department of Christian
Social Relations of the Episcopal Church. | live in Mission,
South Dakota. Since this inquiry is into discrimination
against Negroes servicemen here in Rapid City, | thought

we might find out i7 this is Mr. Toskin'!s general policy

toward all people. That is to say, if you were to over- - %
hear remarks from people in your restavrant which indicated - 'E
to you that they were atheists, and |, as a priest, walked - *ji7§

in, would you serve me or not?
MR. TOSKIN: | refuse to answer that. | am not
going to get into religion here, Mr. Chairman. | will not
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do it. | will not get into religions. | am a Catholig,
and | won'!t argue religion. That'!s against my religion.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: 1 think then I shall simply
have to terminate this phase of our inquiry. Thank you,
Mre. Toskin, for your remarks. Again, | am very sorry we
couldn't take up more questions, but if we did, we simply
wouldn!'t get any further this afternoon.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: The next area of discussion —--

MRS. CATHERINE SMITH: Mr. Chairman?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Yes. -

MRS. CATHERINE SMITH: | have somg material to
present on this aspect of bars and rgsfauranfs on behalf"
of the Black Hills Civil Rights Committee. May | present
it in about three minutes -- or four minutes, if | can?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Well, 1 == | dare say welll
have to receive it, iIf you can be very, very brief. _

MRS. SMITH: Well, I will. 1'l1l skip most of 1T,
and just give it fte you.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: If there Is anything that you
could just simply submit for the record, why --

MRS, SMITH: Well, In the first place, it'!'s ob-
vious from the information that Airman Hardy gave, in com-
oarison with the lournal survey about bars, that the figures
don't tally; so | don't think that the matter of surveys
tfells a great deal, | have here some information about
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previous surveys made of bars and restauvrants 1n Rapid
City both by us and by the: Jaycees .in .the-past. The other
thing | would like to say Is that fheﬁgzlforial pél!cy of
the Rapid City Jlournal has been -- well, | think if's of
interest here -- because it both reflects the attitude

of the business community and no doubt has influenced ift,

and | submit for the record copies of three ediforials, R

and | want to quote very =- or say very quickly that one

on December 20, 1960 urges the establishment  of a segregated ‘t T
PR S b : e hadas-PUE ™ ST AT ;.‘::_Z;J_:%é

bar for Negroes in the town, and it was the appearance of e

Hills Civil Rights Committee. We couldn!t see what business e

a segregated bar had in a community in this part of the
country: in this area. A later editorial suggests that -
the incidents that were publicized were simply provoked

by communist stooges and were well planned. Others simply

say that violence by a few Negroes has caused all Negroes

to suffer in this area, and 1 have -- at another time in T

the summer of 1961, a series of long == or questionnaires ~

were submitted to a number of married Negro airmen at Ells-

F e o
£ g

worth asking them to relate their experiences In bars, fﬂ

S o

looking for housing, and restauvrants,. barber shops, and . : .

*

housing -- all sorfs of public accommodations, and so on.
] have here a summary of some of the remarks they made
about bars and night clubs; however, most of their remarks
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about housing are most pertinent gnd most in feresting to
you, | should think, and so all of the questionnaires will
be submitted under the discussion of housing. | will just
give a couple of remarks here. One: "Refused service

1

in Deadwood in all of the local bars.” The Flame Bar --

"I went in one night alone just to see if | could be served,”
and so on, and so on. "l wasn't put in jail because |

"l went

left before the police walked %hrough the door."
into the Westwood Club on Eighth Street, and the manager
told me he didn't mind colored people coming in, but he )
didn't want fhe'place to turn into a hangout."™ Another

one says, "Refused by Bronco Bar. That'!s the only one |
trieds™ "I was informed by telephone that the Esquire Club
did not cater to Negro personnel.”™ "Refused service at

the VFW Club."™ And this is a copy of the questionnaire

that was submitted. There is also a police report here --
complaint report -- telling about a colored woman and a
whitfe woman == | think the colored woman was the wife of

an air force man stationed at Ellsworth =- who came --

the report simply says she was =- "this woman was not served
at the Casino Bar and was asked to leave by a Bill, who

was a bartender at the Casino. This was witnessed by the
white woman who was her friend. Both subjects, at the

police department, were observed and were not intoxicated.

Could not detect any intoxicating beverage smell on their
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breath." They were there at ten minutes after the fnc}denf
occurred, according to the police report.. The woman was-

given the phone number of the city afforn&yland advised to

contact him and a more detailed story about that incident

is here. Here are some of the incidents that have appeared

in the Rapid City lournal. One, two, three. And a list

that was prepared by the Civil Rights Committee of a num- -
ber of incidents. | have circled in this case, the ones ‘
relating to bars and restauvrants. There are also some in= " B

cidents referring to housing and to motels. Som%haf's

~

the material that we have to submift. e

DR. PALMER: You are offering all of those for T

our files?
MRS. SMITH: AIll Tor vyou.
- MR. TOSKIN: Mr. Laymon -- Mr. Chairman, may!l
ask a question, please? She made a serious charge here
on the Rapid City paper here. She claims them as being

prejudiced. Is the editorial that she wrote —-- or she

/ mentioned here on Thursday, June 22nd, 1961 submitted as
her -- her notes to this commitftee? £
MRS. SMITH: Yes, it is. _ o
I ‘lr““::;;":%
MR. TOSKIN: If not, 1 would like to read it -

into the record.
MRS. SMITH: It sure is here.

MR. TOSKIM: There is a charge here made on our
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Journal being prejudiced.

MRS. SMITH: It says, "Now, it seems the inci-
dents are prepared. Educated mea have come to Rapid City
and can Tind a place to be refused., |If creating unrest,
for no reason other than calling attention fo five res-
taurants in Rapid City which do nof serve colored people
aids world peace, we have had the communist stooges in
town." This editorial =- | think that's the mildest of
them. '

PROFESSOR LAYMON: We will read them, and de-
cide whether or not =- '

MRS, SMITH: So you can go over these. There S
is also a radio editorial and our reply.

DR. PALMER: Is that enclosed, too?

MRS. SMITH: Svure.

FATHER SIEH: | would like to ask Mr. Toskin a
question. You take the stand, do you, that as a business-
man, you have a right to choose who you will serve, with=
out having to have criteria for that? | mean, you have a
complete right to choose who your customers will be?

MR+ TOSKIN: Yes, Father. | believe as aﬂ in-
dividval citizen | have individual rights whether it be a
businessman or not.

FATHER SIEH: B8ut as a businessman you have =--

MR« TOSKIN: As a businessman, | feel that, in
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order to keep peace in my place and to further my business,
| have to make certain decisions, -

FATHER SIEH: And you don't have to explain to
anybody who you do serve and who yo; don!t serve?

MR. TOSKIN: And I don't feel, as long as | have
broken no law, that | should be called to actually explain
why. As a -- a businessman | haven't -deprived anyone of
their constitutional rights. What 1m trying to say, i;
essence, is this: It all boils down to .someone's trying =~ ) =
to get a bill passed to make me do ?hing&.*l dontt == | T
don'!t want the bill.e | know you gentlemen ;re n;f heré for~
that. | realize that. | accept that, and | acknowledge
that. But there are other people who are, and where else
can myself, as a citizen, speak out, as in the minority

- group now, which | have been placed in? There is only five
or six of us or twenty of us out of hundreds of them. Ve
are placed in a minority group.

FATHER SIEH: Well, | would like to ask if there

are others in the business community and in Rapid City who

take the stand that they can be arbitrary in who they admit -

-—

or who they reject from their places of busine§s. -7

MR. TOSKIN: We have talked to == Mr. Kirtdoll

| believe was the NAACP president before Mr. Richardson
there -- we have asked him, and | asked him in the presence
of a federal judge, Judge Frank Batista, from Youngstown,

-138=



i
£l

Ohio, =- we asked him if e would take a slower approach

to intragation. We pleaded with him fo knock down the
barriers that may be there amongst a great number of people
and to come in =- to come in that door and not the door of
forcing theirselves in; not to make us criminals, and that!s
exactly what we would be under the last bill that was in-
troduced in the state legislation. Under Sendie Bill 189,
| was subject to sixty days in jail; five hundred dollars
fine, and | had to hire my own attorney while the taxpavers
of this state had to furnish the afforne; for the accuser.
We tried to go in this -- in this direction. We have --

we have ftried that, but to no avail. These people are
pushing us. This is what welre mad about, Father. Welre
not mad about the idea of a -- ]

FATHER SIEH: Well, I'm not really interested in
you at this point. I'm wondering about =--

MR« TOSKIN: This is the only place | have a
chance to speak, Father. | haven'!t got all the news media.

FATHER SIEH:z I'm wondering about the City of
Rapid City.

MR. TOSKIN: | can'!t speak for the citizens of
this city. Like | say, the only people that can speak for
the citizens is the citizens.

FATHER SIEH: Gavel me down here.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | think | will do that, Father.
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IT we have time left, after-we finish discussing these
other two items on the agenda, welll happily return here,
or unhappily. i

MR. ROBERT HENNING: I'm a bartender., | would
like to know one thing on the colored situation. They
are blaming the proprietors of not service in the bars --
of not serving the colored., They are blaming the proprietors
of not serving the colored people?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: We afe gof blaming anyone. =

MR. HENMING: Here's the sitvation: You get
five colored people comling I;fo your bar and you have got
fifteen, twenty people standing up there ready to tear — ~
their heads off., Now, what are you going to do?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Well, I'm sorry yoﬁ didn't
bring this information to us sooner.’ ) )

MR« HENNING: Well, fhaf‘s what we have.

FATHER SIEH: Will you identify yourself?

MR. HENNING: Robert Henning. H-e-n-n-i-n-g.
One night | had fto close the bar at ten o'clock on account
of that. There was twenty colored people standing outside _

waitinge There was seven of them inside, and there was 2
about fifteen, twenty people ready, standing up fto go i;fo .o ﬁ%
this fight, and so | locked the bar up at fen o'clock and
went home, and three or four days later there was another

fight started from the bar down there. 1 got the colored
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people out of the bar, and a bunch of these other guys
followed them out. One guy was stabbed out on the street
in front of the fire station, and that's what welre havinag
to contend with on this. Now, what can we do?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: That'!s a very serious problem.
May we =~ again, if we have fime,—we will return fto this
because | understand there is a tremendous interest in ift,
but we have to consider these other items on the agenda,
In order to expedite things, does anyone have any affi-
davits to == affidavits or testimony to present with respecf
to discrimination in barber shops? Would you come forward
and identify yourself?

MR. WILLIAM DAVIS: My name is William Davis,
and | would Itke to testify at this time that | have been
discriminated against in barber shops. To name one is

the State Barber Shop. | believe it's on Main Streets; I'm

not sure. To name -- I'm sorry, | can't name the other
barber shop that -~ that | was discriminated in, but | can
go there now and will be discriminated again, | believe,

because | am a Negro. | was told by the barber at the State
Barber Shop that he was sorry but that he did not cut =~
Negroes! hair. 1 asked why -- Kirtdoll and myself == and

he said--- he gave an answer something in the wording of,
"I+ will ruin our business. Our customers won't agree

with ite" 1 received the same type answer from another
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barber shop. It, too, is on Main Street. And | can séy,
though, for the city, that I did finally get a haircut
that day. It was at a barber shop down town.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: 1t was?

MR. DAVIS: Yes, it was. |It's Ed!'s Barber Shop,
I believee On that same day, when | wés fr;ing so hard to
find a place -- to get a barber shop, | asked Dr. Munson

here if he could refer me to a barber shop that would cut

hair, and of all of the barber shops that are in Rapid City, -

the doctor, at that time, was only able to name two =- or
refer me to two. Since then those surveys have shown that
there are more barber shops in town that will cut hair, -
but | believe that the survey -=- our survey that we took
shows that the majority will not cut Negroes! hair.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: When was the latest survey?

MR. DAVIS: | am not sure if we have‘fhe recogd
of this survey, but the survey was taken, oh, two or three
weeks ago.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: And what, again, did it re-
veal? Can someone assist? |Is that what you want to do
back there? -

MR. CHARLES HARDY: Yes. t

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Will you also identify your-
self for the record?

MR. CHARLES HARDY: Charles Hardy is my name.
-142- -
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Executive Chairman of the NAACP, Rapid City Branch. This
is a survey conducted -- a telephone survey conducted Satur-
day night, December the 9ths; 1962,

PROFESSOR LAYMON: VWVould you read it or summarize
it, at least, for us?

MRoe DAVIS: Yes. The slip of paper that I have
before me is a copy here of the survey that the NAACP
took a few weeks ago -—- a few days ago -- | forget when
it was. --

PROFESSOR LAYMON: The day before yesterday.

MR. RUDELL: The Oth.

MR. DAVIS: At any rate, the names of the barber
shops that we surveyed were taken from the yellow pages of
the Rapid City telephone directory, and we surveyed ten
barber shops and our report here shows that it Is a fifty-
fifty sitvation, | believe. Yes, it Is. If it's necessary
for the record, [ can name these different establishments.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Does anyone want to hear them?

DR. PALMER:z Lett!s just ask that it be filed,
if they will.

MR. RAFF: So long as you will submit it and
lqave it with us, we can just pass that by, )
PROFESSOR LAYMON: You will have a chance to answer.
MR. DAVIS: Ve will submit the paper.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Do you have any other comments?
' -143- -
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MR. DAVIS: No, sir.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Would you.care to submit to
a question or would someone like to ask a question or sub-
mit another comment?

MR, LEWIS GRAY: - Mr. Chairman, I'm Lewis Gray.
I'm the manager of the Look Well Barber Shép, and here 1
have the survey that the Journal come out with, Sunday,

| believe it was, and it looks like 66.7% do, and when was

~

this survey taken you said you fook? R - .

o

. P e - B -

DR. MUNSON: December 9th. = ‘ TR
MR. GRAY: What day was that? w
MR. DAVIS: Saturday. ‘

MR. GRAY: Saturday. And what time?

MR. RUDELL2 December 8th is your correct date.
- MR. HARDY: For the record, may | say that this
was a —— a telephone survey conducted at approximately
five thirty to seven thirty.
MR. GRAY: Well, just how did you reach these -
people after six, since all the shops close at six, other .

than about two? CE,

MR. HARDY: Well, undoubtedly they weren't - o
closed because we talked to them. o . ) - w;ﬂﬁg%

MR. GRAY: Once again, did you know for sure who )
you were talking fo®

MR. HARDY: |If, as Mr. Toskin say, that you allow -
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anyone to pick up the phone in your establishment, well,
perhaps | was speaking to the wrong person. | asked whether
you are the proprietor, and | assumed that!s who | was
talking tfo.

MR. GRAY: You assumed.

MR. HARDY: Well, | have no other way of knowing
who I'm talking to.

MRS. CATHERINE SMITH: The Journal also assumed
in their survey.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Another question. Another
comment?

MR. JOSEPH RICHARDSON: | would like to say, for
the record, that it is possible that the people whom the

n

yes ™

Jou}nal appreached would have given a answer to the
Journal because theéy fear publicity, bbf, being Negroes,
they would definitely tell us "no®" if they == if they do
have the policy of discriminafing”againsf Negroes.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Well, let!s nail this down,
if we can. Are you then stating that 50% of the barber
shops refuse the service? ‘

MR. DAVIS: That is the per cent according fto
the recent survey that we took.

DR. PALMER: Telephone survey?

MR. DAVIS: It was a telephone survey, ves.

DR. PALMER: They contacted ten. There were five
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that said "yes™ and five that said "no." May | just ask

a point ofainf;rmafIOn. How many c;sesiwere reported in
the Journal article? Would you mind -;:Donyou have the
information? *

MR. GRAY: Well, right here. The ones that

served colored people are sixteen. The ones that do not

are eight. That!'s 66.7%. This was an &nterview faken In

person$ not by felephone. _ i
DR. PALMER: And this one was obyjouslysmalier, - T

and it could explain the drfferznce.'wéfég}e Your figures ‘?

show eight. Their figures show five +hat di§cfiminafe.': o

Right? e
MR. GRAY: Right. '
DR. PALMER: AIll right. Thank you.
FATHER S1EH: May 1| ask: What Is your policy
in your shop?
MR. GRAY: Well, my policy is:z | will serve them
and 1 won't serve them. | will serve them until | sece
they're interfering with my other business == with my regu-
lar clientele, and then | can't serve them.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: How s that manifested?

FATHER SIEH: Why would they in#érfere wI{h you; Eek
clientele? Why would they interfere with your business?
On whaf»basis?
MR. GRAY: On the basis that maybe -- If my client -~
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IT | saw that my other clientele would go elsewhere.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: How? How does that appear?®

FATHER SI1EH: Why? Why would they?

MR. GRAY: This is what | says | don't know
that they would. But I will, until | see that they will
go ¢lsewhere.

DR. PALMER: Do you know that they -- that they
go because of the fact that you have cut Negroes' hair?

Do they tell you this? )

MR. GRAY: | haven't had any == any problems
with this. | have never eneﬁ had a Negro in my shop. |
have never turned fthem down. | have never had them in
there,

PROFESGQOR LAYMON: Then you have never served
Negroes?

MR. GRAY: No. No. But | have never turned
them down, either.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | see.

FATHER SIEH: Is there anything about the barbering
sitvation that would --

MR, GRAY: The main problem there is most bargers
don't know how to cut their hair, iIf you want to get right
down to it. Now, would you want to go in there and pay a
dollar and seventy-five and get your hair ruined? Or
would you rather go out to the base to where they're used

- 147~



- — — - s

. - - e v SRR gl 2 TEAT—— T et - — B el :‘—\:-::g

b s - AL g e sy Pt WA ettt A B WAATWG T 1l P P T Sl 7 - = e
FA e Tt B iR S o ,.:...‘»——x_ . :‘--{_-—., Ty o e

L. e — FES—
B e T —
[T g =S ey -
T -

J(’-’;'?’lx
o -
i

to cutting your hair and know how?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Do y;u == Do you know how to
cut their hatr2 ~ - '

MR. RUDELL: It wouldn!t be too difficult fo
learn; would it? You learned how to cut white peoplel!s hair.
Couldn't you learn how to cut a Negro's hair? )
) MR. GRAY: 1| suppose you coald, yes;
MR. RUDELL: Thank you.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Gentleman-over here, "I believe. ™

- fMR. ORVILLE TRUESDELL: My name is Orvilie Truesdell,
and | live here in Eapid City, and 1 have been a master R .

barber for thirty years. | haven!t been barbering at it

all the time, but | have always had a barber shop or two.

Most barbers won!t admit that they can't cut a Negrol!s hair.

- They haven!t had the experience. | coﬁld count prac%ically
on my fingers the number of Negroes that | have cut thelr

hair up here In this northern country in thirty years. All

you gentlemen are familiar with how many barber shops you
/ have to go to to even get a shave and It don'!t make any

difference what color you are. So, most of these fel lows,

<
2

(SR RS — Seoe
£

)

it would take them twice as long to give a colored boy a I

e w2 AR
Y

good haircut, which he probably can'!t even do in the first o s

place, and the man wouldn'!t wanf¥t ——‘fhe colored boy wouldn!'t

want to get a lousy halrcut, and he only needs one barber

to cut it, and after you find your barber, anybody, whether
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he's colored, black, yellow, brown or green, if he finds

.that barber, he usvally goes back to the same barber all

the time. Now, most barbers won'!t admit that they don't
know how to cut a colored -~ to give him a good haircut

to their own satisfaction, and barbering is a profession.
It's like doctoring, and now most doctors aren't qualified
to do certain things that they don't do. In fécf, [Tve

got to have an operation, but | got to find a doctor that

¥ill do 1t. The one | have gone fo won't do It. There is
all kinds of barbers that will not glve‘a man & shave.
Personally, myself, I'd rather shave a man than cut hair,
and I'l]l make just as much money doing that, but | call
myself an expert in shaving. | was shaving back when no-
body had a safety razor, thirty vears agoj so I will take
shaves. | would prefer them. | would send all the haircuts

to an apprentice, and probably he could do a better job on
the haircuts than | can, but | will take the shaves. Now,
it's the same with the barbering. There absclutely is no
problem with barbering, except where there is planned in-
cidents, and they want to find out.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Do you cut Negroes! hair?

MR. TRUESDELL: | say that | haven't cut enough
Negroes! hair inmy lifetime to give a Negro“a good haircut.
| have a son here who is a barber, who has given lots of
them, and he will fake every Negro that ever comes to his
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place because he can give a good haircut.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Here in Rapid City?

MR. TRUESDELL: When he wenf +o == He has just
now moved to Rapid City and he just took his barber exam
for this state yesterday in Pierre. Now == But in barber
school, whenever the colored boys come into the school he
went to, in Saint Paul, he took them, and they always sent
them down to Harold because he wanted to practice on them,

and he'!s more or less made a habit of not only that because

J— PO VS — mmm—ar e

his dad was an expert on shaving, or | cddim to be, hefs -

the fellow that took all the shaves he can get, but most

barbers -- how many -~ l've got a son-in—-law fthat's a bar-
ber and he will not shave a person and he won't cut a woman's’
hair, but still he has a license fo do it. He would lose

money doing it. He can cut three white peoplel!s hair while
he would probably cut one Negro's hair, and he—c0uld cut
two heads of hair while he's shaving one man. Now, this

is the true picture, and | think anybody can see {t. [fTs

common SensSee.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | think that's very well put.

Mr. Hardy?

-~

MR. CHARLES HARDY: Your name, please. 1 didn'ft

catch it. "
MR. GRAY: Lewis Gray.
MR., HARDY: How'!s that?
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MR. GRAY: Lewis Gray.

MR. HARDY: Now, Mr. Gray, may | ask vou, please,
according to the survey that you related to the people here
from the Rapid City Daily Journal, am | correct? Well, 1
think, like most of the surveys that the Journal has con-
ducted, that this is over exaggerated to an extent, |
should say. According to our survey, and the one the Rapid
City Daily Journal published on a Saturday -- Sunday, |
think there's an overbalance of possibly 17%. Now, we
aren't saying that there aren't any barbers in Fown that
won'!t cut Negroes! hair, but we do have the percentage
here, and this was the survey that was conducted by us,
ourselves, and so, therefore, we know. Now, may | say,
according to your statements, we only want to know: Would
you be willing to cut a Negrol!s hair, regardless to your
skill or your ability to cut his hair?2 We want to know If
you would be willing, if a Negro enters your shop and say
he needed a haircut?

MR. GRAY: As | said before, | would, if | sece
he isn't going to hurt my class -- my clientele, as it
stands now.

MR. HARDY: And what means did you -- | mean,
what do you mean It canm hurt your clientele? '

MR. GRAY: That's a very good one right there.

If they don't stand for it, they'll go somewhere where fhey
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don't. Now, I'!m not saying they!re not going to stand
for it, but if | see they do, 1 will —=_1 will stopa

DR. PALMER: Are you wi]!Tngw;é put this to the
test once? This is all bikpothetical you are talking about.
He asked the question: Would you be willing?2 [If he asked
you to cut his hair, would you do 112

MR. GRAY: Yes.

DR. PALMER: You say that you have never cut a

Negro!s hair. No Negro has ever been in your office, : -

~ [

Would'you do it%?
MR. GRAY: Yes. _
DR. PALMER: You would. — s

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | think this is enough. |
think this ==
- MRS, EVELYN MERRITT: 1 have one thing to add
that might help to show the picture. According to that
chart thatt!s up there, and a laycee survey that was taken,
I think, I& 150, at that time there was reportedly from
this survey only one barber shop in fown, which was a

Robbinsdale barber shop, so things have progressed quite

8 measure now.

MR. HARDY: | would just like fto make this be-
fore | leave: By what authority has the Rapid City Daily
Journal been given approval to make surveys? Adso, If
people can question our surveys, why can't we question the
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paper'!s ability to make surveys?

MR. TOSKIN: By what auvthority? They have the
auvthority of the people of this city. |

MR. HARDY: They do?

MR. TOSKIN: My God, the Rapid City Daily Journal
was Just accused over there of being unfair.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | don't think therel!s any
question but that the Rapid City Journal -has fhe“righf to
make surveys. )

MR. TOSKIN: What'!s the trouble here with the
Rapid -- )

DR. PALMER: But the point, gentlemen, is that --
Mr. Chairman -=-

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Yes.

DR. PALMER: The point of the gentleman, Mr. Hardy,
is that -- that his group has just as much right to make a

survey as the Rapid City Journal, and there should be no

" particular distinction as to the right to do this.

DR. MUNSON: Precisely.

MR. RUDELL: Or the validity of the survey.

MR. HARDY: Thank you.

MRS. CATHERINE SMITH: Mr. Chairman, may | submit
to the record the information that we have collected about
barber shop surveys in the past; also, @ very recent tele-
phone survey of beauty shops which shows a slightly different
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response from the lournal survey, simply because we asked
whether the beauty shops would be willing to be on a Iist -
of places that would be puvt at the USO and the Family Ser-
vice Center as places where the colored women could go --
could feel free to call and ask for appointments, and only
a little over 50% of the beauty shops were actually willing

to say, "Yes, they can call us."™ And some of them said,

MJell, we don't know how, but fﬂey will have to fell us.

[f they will tell us, that!s fine." Ofhers will say, "Yes, - s

- o A ———a

we are happy to do it." And l, algo;g¥3; vour information
and tabulation, all of the surveys that have been taken --

PROFESSOR LAYMON: 50% of all the beauty shops? .

MRS. SMITH: Well, how did it come out? 52%
said "yes™ and 48% said "no," or didn't care fo aﬁswer
the quesiion, but 1| think that -- that we know that you
can't take anybody!s percentages exactly at face value on
these things. The only way you can find out is for a
colored person who is of good appearance and deporfment fo
go in and ask for service. And there aren't enough colored <

people to do this In all of the business egfablishments

in Rapid City. So | think that if's Just a general tfrend.
But | do think that the frend In barber shops has improved

greatly over the last years, as this has shown.
PROFESSOR LAYMON: This gentleman here.
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MR. LEWIS GRAY: One other fhiég.
PROFESSOR LAYMON: ldentify yourself.
MR. GRAY: Lewis Gray. Now, one other thing.
Now, down there where | am at, | have quite a trade with
the air base boys. I'm referring to the white fellows
right now. And in questioning them, they secem to reject
this idear of selling == of serving Negroes in there. They're
definitely against it, the ones that come in there. The
majority of them that 1 talk to. Now, | was out at the
base myself, like Mr. Toskin here, not quite for so long,
but | know that problem exists out there.
PROFESSOR LAYMON: Would someone like to ask him
-- Just @ second.
DR. PALMER: Once again, | would like to raise
the question there: Are you asserting that, from vyour
standpoint, it's the white airmen at the base that cause
the difficulty here?
MR. GRAY: No, not ~- not altogether, no.
DR. PALMER:. That'!s all | wanted to know. Thank
youU.
MR. GRAY: Not -- not completely. 1;
SERGEANT BRADLEY: 1 would Ilike to ask a question . %
of the barber here.
PROFESSOR LAYMON: Your name, sir.
SERGEANT BRADLEY: I!'m Sergeant Bradley from the
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alr base. My experience on getting haircuts, and there!s
a white man who cuts my hair at the base, Mr. Janosek,-
and 1 think he is one of the big wheels in the barbers!?
association in South Dakota, especially Rapid City -=- ff
does not take him any more time to cut my hairs in fact,
sometfmes he cuts my hair quicker than he cuts another
white man's hair, and | can't understand why it takes longer -
to cut a Negrol'!s hair than a white mant!s hair.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Well, not being a barber, [—— - -

il
ﬂh

- - - IR REF -

cant't -- - ‘ T
SERGEANT BRADLEY: Because many Negroes have :
straight hair and it don!'t take as long. | can't see why

it would ruin the clientele =--

PROFESSOR LAYMON: There are several people who
want to answer you. Just a minute.

SERGEANT BRADLEY: -- if a barber is skilled in
his profession.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: That gentleman way back there.

What is your name?

MR. CHARLES RANGE: Charlie Range. | have been K
in Rapid five years, and | have cut three colored pe;ple's 'éé
hair, and they!ve never been back. - B . - *4;%

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Yes.
MR. ANTHONY WILLIAMS: | have a little bit of

barbering experience. I'm not a licensed barber, and | have
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not completed any courses in barberfing school, but | do
have =-- 1| have cut hair, and when | first joined the air
force, the fellows in my flight found that 1 could cut

hair, and they said, "Why don't you cut our hair," you

know, and "We'l] save that money from the barber shops.” .
And | said, "Okay." Well, the first three or four Cauca-
sians, whom | had occasion to work on, they didntt parti-
cularly appreciate the way | did it either, but thereafter
my skill improved so that | can say that | can cut anybody!s

hair, no matter what kind of hair they have, and | #hink

that a man who has been cutting hair for years, a master

barber, an apprentice barber, or anyone, try it sometime,
and you will see that he can, just as easily. You take a
comb and run it through any of our hair, and it will go
through just as easily; so, therefore, the clippers will
clip your hair just as easily.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Well, let!s see, | don't know
how we're going to resolve this issue.

MR. RUDELL: Let'!s hear from the expert over here
who has been cutting hair for -- How ﬂongé How many months
now? . .

MR. ORVILLE TRUESDELL: Thirty years.

MR. RUDELL: No, not you. Your son.

MR. ORVILLE TRUESDELL: Since 1932, Well, here,

I'et my son tell about it.
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MR. RUDELL: You said he was skilled in this
particular -- - _

MR. ORVILLE TRUESDELL: He's cut many more of
them than | have, and he's just new in the business, a
couple of yearse.

MR. RUDELL: Would he give us --

HAROLD TRUESDELL: What do you want to know about

what.
MR. RUDELL: How difficult it iIs to cut a Negro's

- X - TAE-

hair, compared to. -- |

MR. HAROLD TRUESBELL: It isal't -- |t {sn'f, if
you know how to do it. 1 don't know how to do it. T1tts
tight kinky hair, and u5ually-you have to work =-- like‘on
a regular man's hair, you work up; on a Negrol!s hair you
vsvally work éown, and It works much simpler if you furn
the clipper upside down.

MR. HAROLD TRUESDELL: | can give a haircut in
two minutes to any Negro, but he might not like it.

MR. RUDELLz But it!'s possible for any skilled
barber fo learn to cut a Negro's hair? 1s that correct?

MR. HAROLD TRUESDELL: That is true. With enough |

experience.
MR. RUDELL: Assuming that he takes the time and
energy to do if,.he can do it? _
MR. HAROLD TRUESDELL: Anybody could cut it. Svure.
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MR. RUDELL: And can come up fto the same speed
as a non-Negro'!s hair?

MR. HAROLD fRUESDELL: If he cuts enough of it,
he can come up to the speed.

MR. RUDELL: If he cuts enough of it. Thank you.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Well, I think we will pass
on to the question of housing.

MR. TOSKIN: Mr. Chairman ==

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Yes.

MR.‘TOSKIN: -- before you go on to the question
of housing, may | add one more thing?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: With respect to what?

MRe TOSKIN: With respect to bars, resfaﬁranfs -

PROFESSOR LAYMON: No. We'!ll come back to those,
Mr. Toskin, that!s why I'm going to --

MR. TOSKIN: With respect to the whole agenda
here, before you get into housing.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Well, please. Again, | want
fo get through this other item on the agenda, and then if
we have some time left over, I'm sure that there are other
comments ==

MR. TOSKIN: This is a very important statement,
though.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Does anyone have any testimony
or affidavits with respect fto discrimination in housing?
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Mr. Richardson. Come forward and identify yourself.

_ MR. JOSEPH RICHARDSON: | am Joseph Richardsone.
| am stationed at Ellsworth-Air Force Base. 1 am also
the president of the local branch of the NAACP. Inasmuch
as there has- been found discrimination in housing, | have
before me notarized affidavits signed by persons who have
been involved, and at this time, | would like to call upon
Mr. George Waters, air force personnel. | would like for
him to come forth and give his statement. )

MR. GEORGE L. WATERS: | am Alrman George L.
Waters. |I'm stationed af Ellsworth Alr Force Base. And, .

let!s see, my affidavit here, should | read i+ or would

you ==
PROFESSOR LAYMON: Why don'!t you read it, if
- you want toe. _
MR. WATERS: This is my statement. "I, Airman
First Class George L. Waters and Mrs. George L. Waters,
being first duly sworn deposes &and says that: During the
/ period of the 3lst of October through the 20th of December,
1961, we were refused housing in and around the Rapid City

area because we were simply Negroes, and were fold such. -

In severél instances, we had made arrangements with land—.,r
lord to rent houses and apartments through telephone calls,"
which | checked out through the ads in the daily newspapers
here, but after the races -- our race was made known, we
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weren'!t permitted to move into these houses. Simply a%fer
talking to a few landiords over the phone, they say, "Yes,
we have houses availabie,"-and after we showed up at a few
of these places, well, they said, "No, we cantf...” |
won!t take you,"™ or "I+'s been rented.”™ This one place at
1822 VWest Saint loe, | &idn’f bother about calling that one.
| went down because they listed trailers and houses and
aparitments and what have you, and upon reporting to the of-
fice, this lady told me that she just simply did not take
Negroes and Indians. That is the one place that | was

told in person. A couple of other places | can remember Is
this gentleman on 516 West Omaha Street. | talked with

him on the telephone, and he told me he simply didn't deal
with Negroes at all. One other gentleman, and this one
kind of touched me a little bit, | should say, at 1219
South 5th Street, he had apartments there. | went and
talked to him, too, In person, by the way, and he told me
he had all white airmen there, and he would not let us move
into his apartment because they had told him they would
leave. | don't remember his name, but this is his address,
as | say, 1219 South 5th Street. This other gentleman 1
talked to on the phone at 516 West Omaha Street; well, he
owned the house there where these apartments were vacant,
plus the lady at 1822 West Saint Joe. | haven!t gone into
any of these bars or Jjoints around here becausé we don't
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take to them too much In the first place.

DR. PALMER: | wonder if we.mlght take an op- — -

ot -

portunity to ask him some questions. =% S
PROFESSOR LAYMON: Svurely. .
. DR. PALMER: Mr. Waters, Is it Lee Waters or --
MR. WATERS: George Lee Waters.
DR. PALMER: Lee Waters? T
MR. WATERS: VYah. ‘
DR. PALMER: Now, you camg~19'Rag{d:Cva“afiwpgfq‘“ﬁ-

g el ;_':,L"—‘:j e

time? When did vou. first come fofﬁég;ﬂ E??;?ﬁﬁf'”;. s

~ o f

MR. WATERS: On the 3Ist of Ocfober, 1961, .-
DR. PALMER: Were you married at that time2- — --— —=—2astl
MR. WATERS: Yes. '

DR. PALMER: And your wife accompanied you --
. MR. WATERS: Right.
DR. PALMER: -- here?

.k

MR. WATERS: Right.

DR. PALMER: And where did you spend your first
/ night? <o

MR. WATERS: My first night was spent at the BOQ,

which is known for -- well, it is the Bachelor Offlcers’{;

kA
-

Quarters at Ellsworth Air Force Base, whereas eyeribne re:

ports there. And people reporting in with their families;
they have quarters set up there for them on a five-day basis,
where it say that you can stay there four or five days, aft =
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which time, you must move out.

DR. PALMER: It costs you =-- You'have to pay
while you are living there?

MR. WATERS: Right. At that time, we paid four
dollars and fifty-five cents a day for one room. 1[It was
just that. One room.

DR. PALMER: Where was your wife at this time?

MR. WATERS: She was with me in the BOQ. '

DR. PAIMER: She was allowed to stay there, too.
What happened at the end of the five-day period?

MR« WATERS: At the end of the five-day period,
we were informed by the NCOIC at the BOQ to  vacate our
quarters. However, we didn't, simply because of this prob-
lem here that -~ | may state to you that | am eligible for
government quarters. | am an airman first class which en-
titles me to government quarters, and after -- | was having
this problem here, | went to my commanding officer and he,
in furn, contacted the OIC in charge of this housing, and
had my five-day limit extended.

DR. PALMER: For how long?

MR. WATERS: For thirty-five days, we ended up
living in this BOQ. And during that thirty-five days, |
was faced with this very problem of not geftting & house in
Rapid Citvye.

DR. PALMER: VYou made inquiries for eental?

-163-



MR. WATERS: For rental. Right.

DR. PALMER: And you were -- You found =-- Did
vou find anybody that was willing for you to live some
place == they were willing to show you the house, and you
could have, say, signed a lease, and had that? Did you =--

MR« WATERS: | found a lady that owns a place
here -- one of these little motel quarters right off Omaba
Street -- that said she would let me have this place, if
I would take it, but it -- It was a == it was so small
that you just couldn!t be comfortable in the place. It
was a one-room building right on Seventh Street, right
off Omaha Street. Well, it's north of Omaha on Seventh
Street. It was formerly a motel court or something.

DR. PALMER: Now, at the end of this thirty-five
days, when your renewal of your contract at the == or the
permission was granted at the BOQ, what happened then?

MR. WATERS: At the end -- Well, 1 goft =~ | be-
came a == Well, there was a house that was vacated at the
base, at which time | moved in.

DR. PALMER: At the base?

MR. WATERS: Right. #

DR. PALMER: GCovernment quarters?

MR, WATERS: Government quar%ers. Right.

DR. PALMER: Did you want fo live on the base?

MR. WATERS: Well, at that time --
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DR. PALMER: Or did you want your wife to live
on the base at that time? .

MR. WATERS: Yah, it didn' matter. I mean, I
have lived on the base in base housing before, foo, but at
that ftime, | had no choice. | wanted to take anything
that was made available, and there was none available at
the base; therefore, | had no choice but to seek out housing

here in towne.

DR. PALMER: Have you confronted this same situa-

..
&

tion, since your marriage, at other bases?

MR. WATERS: No, no. No. '

DR. PALMER: I would just like to get some things
straight in my mind. When did your marriage occur, in
relation to the time that you came here?

MR. WATERS: We were married in 1957 in Alexandria,
Louisiana. My wife was not from Alexandria. | was assigned
to a@ base there. In the meantime, we were engaged, and 1
had no problem. At the time | come up for our marriage -
date, | went down ftown and I picked out a house in the City
of Alexandria, Lovisiana, and my wife came down. We got
married, and we moved In without any problem whatsoever. ;

DR. PALMER: Was that in a Negro section of fown? jdé

MR. WATERS: Yes, it was. You probably know
this: That in Louisiana, they have different sections
like that. Therefore, | had no problem. | knew where to
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go; when to go, and | got the house.
DR. PALMER: Where was your home, originally? -
MR. WATERS: In Newcastle, Pennsylvania. ’
DR. PALMER: You were born and raised there and
went to school in Pennsylvania?
MR. WATERS: No, 1 wés not born and raised In
Pennsylvania. | was born in the State of Alabama, and we,
in turn, went to the State of Pennsylvania.

DR. PALMER: And did you attend school in Pennsyl- -~ ~

= - Lond - 3 hmm

vania then?
~ MR. WATERS: Yes, for one year and a half, [ =< |

attended school in Pennsylvania. ) LT

DR. PALMER: Vhere did you graduvate from high
school?

MR. WATERS: Well, | didn't. | gradvated through
the service here, in the alr force. | lacked a year and
a half from completing high school in civilian life, and
after coming into the service, | took the extension courses
until | worked up to my high schoo!l diploma. -

DR. PALMER: Where was your wife from?

MR. WATERS: My wife was from Wichita, Kansas.

DR. PALMER: 1 sece. The point is fhen: That ™ =
in this thirty-five day period, normally, an airman coming
to this base would expect o have found some housing, even

if it was temporary, --
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MR. WATERS: Right.

DRe PALMER: =-- outside of the base, if he
sought 1t%

MR. WATERS: Right. Absolutely.

DR. PALMER: And you fee! that you were not in
that same position, as an airman, to secure such housing
because of certain situations that apparently existed?

MR. WATERS: No, | was not aware of the fact
that we have all of this discrimination as to where he
goes here in this housing deal. | was expecting to come
here, and if | wanted == if there was no government quarters
available, which there Is normally not -- | mean, you al-
ways have a wait list, | mean, that is governed by regu-
lations; so no one individual conf}ols this. But | was
expecting to come here and walk down fown, as an American,
and say, "™Well, if you have something available for me,
| would like to take 1f."

PROFESSOR LAYMON: VWhere do you and your wife
now live?

MR. WATERS: Ve live now at the base in govern-

ment quarters.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Is it possible to find a place
out there? Have you given up trying to find an apartment?

MR. WATERS: Oh, definitely so. | don'{ fry fo'
find any more places.
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MR. RAFF: Dvuring that thirty-five day period
that you were living in the BOQ with your wife, you made
attempts and efforts in Rapid City then, through the --
somehow to find rental properties. Now, did you use the
services of the -- something out there at the air base
called the Family Services?
MR. WATERS: | sure did, sir.
MR. RAFF: Any luck there?
MR. WATERS: No, sir. And —= If -- | wrote my
statement o that .effect, too, because - at one time, o i ;
about five months or six months ago, maybe, there was some ;

people here from Rapid City == in this very hotel, | under-

stand -~ from the Civil Rights Commission in Washington, D. C., .
or some place like that, and they took statements to that

effect, and they were asking me about this Fami{y Services

at Ellsworth Air Force Base, and they had some listings

there -= they asked me about it -- somehow they came upon

the information that they were handling these listings for

housing on a -- what you may call segregated basis, more or

less, whereas they would say, "™Well, | won't take Negroes,”

-~ =, “;:‘u;

or "] will take all white,"” or something ITke this, and
fhe; asked me my opinion on it, and | gave it to theme | _ RS 3¢

don't think the Family Services should handle them on suche.
MR. RAFF: This is one thing | wanted to get at.

1 wanted to ask you If the Family Services group at the air
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base find it == Do they find it necessary to have a speétal
card file on landlords who will rent to Negroes?

MR. WATERS: Well; 1']] == my opinion)of it is -
Vell, | know that in the military service, there Is not
supposed }o be any segregation, whatsoever -~ segregation
or discrimination, or what have you; however, this Lieutenant
Johnson, who was the housing officer out there explained to
me like this: He said, "It!'s best that we list them this
way; whereas, it may save you a little embarrassment, once
you go to these people houses. You know now whether they
will take you or not when you get down there,”

FATHER SIEH: In other words, it's your opinion
that the housing officer on the base censiders housing in
Rapid City to be on a --

MR. WATERS: No, no. Now, don't misunderstand me.
This was not the housing officer. This was the Family Ser-
vice officer that was handling these listings there.

MR. RAFF: But does that Family Service officer
consider the problem in Rapid City to be such that he must
make Inquiries as to whether or not a landlord will take
a Negro?

MR. WATERS: | don't know if he makes the inquiries
or not, sir.

MR. RAFF: How about the USO here in Rapid City?

MR. WATERS: The USO. | found the same thing fhére.
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They have listings there stating if they will take Negroes
or if they won't. )

MR. TKE CHABE: 1 can't hear. | wanted to hear
that about the USQO,

MR. WATERS: | said, the USO carries -- Well,
they carried listings during this time last year, fto the
effect that if some of these places would take Negroes or

if they wouldn't.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: There is a lady here that has™™ . _ 3
been pafienfl; waiting frying‘fo—gef a aZesto:A{n. - T wir%
MRS. WARNER GHERE: I'm Mrs. Warner Ghere, and I . g

have got a couple of aparfmen+s-and one house that we had

for rent, and | would just like to have it brought to you
gentlemen's attention that at this particular time last

year, housing was very hard for everyone to find; not only
the colored fellows but everyone else, because of the missile
men that were here. Now, | know that when we had our apari-
ment up for rent, we had just scores of calls after it was
rented, and the Tirst people that saw it rented it., And

as far as these small places that he had tried to get iInto

also, which is true, but there were men that were renting

these places for a large amount of money. So as far as ™%~
when these fellows would come to the landlord, and they
would say they were rented, chances are that they were pro-
bably rented because with the missile men that we had at
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that time, there were -- there were hardly any places for
rent at all.

MR«. RAFF: A very good thought to keep in mind.
Yes, it ise.

DR. PALMER: Mr. Waters, you made a comment in
vour statement that | would like té inquire about. You
said, as an airman first class, that you were entltled
to government quarters.

MR. WATERS: Right. ; -

DR. PALMER: Does that mean that 1f you were not
an airman first class that you would not be entitled to
government quarters?

MR« WATERS: | would -- | would not be.

DR. PALMER: And does that mean that you would
not be entitled to BOQ quarters?

MRe WATERS: Oh, yes. | would most certainly
hove into there, upon reporting to this base. | sure would,

DR. PALMER: For that period of time. You would
not move into government quarters?

MR. WATERS: 1Into government quarter. o

DR. PALMER: Into government quarters?

MR. WATERS: No.

DR. PALMER: So, what would you have done in a
sitvation like that? | mean, | realize that's a hypothetical
question.
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MR. WATERS: Heaven only knows. If | had come
in here less than an airman first class, | don!t know.
Maybe | would have had to take my family back Eome or —--
| don't know what | would have done.
MR. RAFF: Do you have any personal acquaintance
with married couples who have come here under the same
circumstances you did and who were not high enough In rank

to get government quarters? Can you tell us if you have

personal awareness of their problems? ciw

MR. WATERS: No, sir, | have not. There was
about, 1 know, five -- flve families that reported in along . a3

with vus.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: There'!s a gentleman that!s
been standing patientiy back there. ’

HOWARD KE1TH: Mr. Chairman, |1'm Howard Keithe
The airman here is subject to two ftypes of law the people
should know heres Civil law and military law. They are
bound by what they can say. The question directed to
Mister -- the airman there now -- about family housing -- P
why not have somebody call the Family Housing and get the
reading on it to be sure as to their policy, Instead of - ‘CS
directing the question fto him. He doesn!t work In housing“i-ﬁ* :
Family Services. The housing service Is—a charitable thing

by the wives of the airmen anc officers, and they give that

service freely, and they work there freely on their off fime.
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They have the different listings. As to whether the
listings are categorized as to who will or who won't, why
not call the Family Services -- they!re open fhere’-- and
get a reading, instead of directing ;he questions to one
individugl because hel'!s bound by law to state certain facts
that he don't know if he can state or can't state.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Another gentleman.

MR. MANUEL COREY: 1I'm with the USO, and | would
like to come forward and present a letter as well as make
some statements,

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Would you identify yourself by
name, please? .

MR. MANUEL COREY: I'm Manuel Corey; the diredtor
of the local USO. 1'd like to say, to begin with, that 1
have been here since October of 1961, and at the USO we
have handled quite a few housing listings in terms of people

calling in, and we would fry fo get prospective tenants

" through the service personnel that were requesting it. At

the time that | came here, we had one word on the applica-
tion formes The question was asked the individuals Whefher‘
or not that they would take colored personnel as tenantse.
This particular list at that time was separated from the
others, running about [0% of the total amount of applications
that we received. We're running something like a hundred
now., However, the interest that | had in it is the fact
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that we =~ In the USO, we are a non-segregated organization.
We =-- We were also approached by the. civil rights group »
here in town with the idea of removing this letter or this
statement == the word "race™ on our application. This was
done. Since then == This was done about three months ago.
Since then we have no way of finding out exactly, unless
the colored personnel come back to the USO and tell us
that they have not been able to find housing. There has
been only one instance where a boy ha§ refurned'fo the ~  o=um- TTUETE

USO, as far as the colored personnel is concerned. He = -

contacted approximately twenty-five families. HIs state~ Vi
ment was that —-- When he came back to the USO, that they - .-

had made the statement that this particular house that he

had contacted -- the twenty-five of them, rather -- wefe
rented. We felt that 1t would be necessary, in order to
keep our files up to date, that we would call those pros-
pective landlords and ask them whether or not the rooms

or houses, were available still. Three of the twenty-five
had been rented. The rest of them were still asking to be
taken or kept in the active files so that we would be able
to rent them for them. | have here a statement that was

-

written by the chairman of the local USO commitiee that L ....l.ii8

would like to read. It is to the State Advisory Committice
of the US Commission on Civil Rights. "Gentlemen: The
United Service Organization of Rapid City is not in a
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position fo be of much value to express an opinion on ¥he
degree of discrimination that exists for non-white service-
men of this area. The USO does work in locating housing
for military personnel whenever called vupon. House and
apartment listings are handled by us. There are a few
non-white servicemen and/or their dependents who request
this service at the USO. In the past several weeks there
has only been one instance reported where it had been dif-
ficult to find proper housing facilities. Sincerely,
Edward L. Tullis,.Chairman of the USO Commi}fee.®
MR. RAFF: Mr. Corey, there is one -- there 1s
one thing | would like to have awfully clear in my mind,
personally. Did you tell us that within the last couple
of months, one Negro airman was given a number of addresses;
went out and contacted them and returned to you saying that
he had contacted twenty-five people and that all twenty-
five had told him that their places were already rented?
MR. COREY: That is ftrue. ‘
MR. RAFF: And that subsequently, sir, you, to
see if your files were accurate about the current situvation,

made a telephone call to all of those twenty-five, and onl;

z;fé&

three of them told you that they had rented their properties, -

and twenty-two of them, in other words, despite what they
had told the Negro applicant, still wanted to be on the
open file?
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MR. COREY: This was done by the USO office.

That's right. ~ ._ . - B}

-

DR. PALMER: Do vyou have:aﬁy"réasoh to believe
that the statement fhat this person -made to you relative
to his contacting these people was misrepresentative --
misrepresented to you?

MR. COREY: | don't think so.

- s

DB. PALMER: You believe he actually did contact

these places? - e gess Lo L
MR COREY:™ 1 would s3y; Vés." " BélTeve ke dids
DR. MUNSON: Just one-+hi;§,jw;.'¢oseyi Do ;ou;

have a -- Does the USO have a =~ have a tenfative plan in

any way for removing from the list those people who had

theoretically said that they would not discriminate, or at
least said they would accept applicants, ané then turned --
turned around and denied them when they were Negroes?

MR. COREY: No, sir, there!s nothing been done
as far as policy is concerned in this direction. 1t hasn't

~

been discussed by any of the committee.

hY

MR. RAFF: When you were -- During the first six

months that you were in Rapid City, sir, you éerfafﬁly>were - .

acquainted with the broad fact about rental housing that,.

Mrs. Ghere mentioned so well; that is, that there was a
great demand for such housing and that rather fabulous rents
were being offered, and would you agree with her that, at
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least back in that time, it would have been difficult for
anyone to locate a home, ) - -

MR. COREY: No, sir. The housing, as far as the
USO is concerned, up to, say, three months ;go, as | say,
was listed -- it was scarce, so-to-speak, but at no time,
up until the time we removed the question -- the word
"race® from our questioning of the prospective landlord,
has fﬂere been, you might say, emptiness of the file, from
the standpoint that there was always housing for -colored
personnel, even though they migﬂ} have been sub-standard.
| don't know. We don'!t go into that.

"~ MR. RAFF: A little bit earlier, you said that --

You mentioned the figure "10%."™ By mentioning that, did
you mean that those cards on houses where Negroes would be
permitted were about [0% of the number of the cards that
would -- that would take what, sir?

MR. COREY: | would say that was about what they
were running, yes, sir. About 90/10.

MR. RAFF: About 10% of your rentals?

MR. COREY: That's right. About 90/10 at the
*ime. But | don't know now what i+ is. We have no way
to check.

DR. PALMER: Were you -- Did you have any awareness
at all of the nature of the places which were open to Negro
servicemen or the areca of town? Was there anything that
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would say that -- would lecad you to believe that 1t was
sub-standard? - e — -
MR; COREY: At the parflc;TSf’}Tme, the only
street that | was familiar with, in one sense of thinking
of that =-- that they might have been sub-standard housing
was the fact that several on Rapid Street were listed for

colored personnel, and that's by the raillroad track, but

s _

other than that, 1| don't.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Does anyone else have any = -- -~ = g

—— = g e o e < PR S SO . )
- e TW T R ST i ~ASEET I

= P e AN

questions? Yes, Ma'am. l - = T . -
MRS. V. R. WASHBURN: l'm:Mrs: V.&R.‘W%Shbbf;,:__a

and 1'm secretary of the Mayor's Commitiee on Human Relations, ——_ -

but !'m a landlady. Five and a half years ago, we rented .

three tourist cabins that we had been getting twelve dollars

a night for to colored people. | called the Famlly Ser-

vices at the base and had it listed, and In that five and

a half years, | have never had one referral from the base.

Sometimes | will have a vacancy for two or three months,

and 1 will call the Family Services and say, "We have one -

vacancy, and if we cannot get it filled with colored people,

weltre going to ask the ones that are there to move out,™”

and they say, ™Well, I'm sorry that's your .problem. We rom %:Q

can!t help you:" So evidently the Family Services is not
doing their jobe. And then this last time | called the USO
they toldime they could not list my place for colored be=
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cause the NAACP would not allow it. So, for the next day

or two, no matter where | was on the place, and the phone
rang, why, 1'd answer it, and they!d S;y, "May | ask you

if you rent to colored.™ Now, I can't see that that is
helping the colored sitvation. WVe have even == You will
hear people say that there is a lacé of housing for colored
people. At times when we have had housing, and welre on =--
at 1727 West St. loe Street, across from the West Side

Safeway, which, | think, Is a good location; we have even

advertised on Smoke Signals so it would be put out over

RN

the air. We have read the paper. And if anyone says --
this minister says, "We need housing for colored people.™ -
| call the minister up and say, "We have a place vacanf,’
and do you know anybody that needs one?" He would say,
"™No, I don't know anyone, but you will sure get it because
we hear that there are needs." And that's my situvation.
DR. PALMER: Ma'lam, may | poszﬁa question fo you?
Matam, are you saying fha% the only way that you can rent '
your apartments is on a segregated basis? That you cannot
rent your =-
MRS. WASHBURN: No. ' »g
DR. PALMER: =-- and that you cannof rent your |
apartments on a integrated basis?
MRS . WASHBURN: No. We do it because we think

that they == See, there are three places fairly close to-
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gether there that Is just the width of a car in between.
We figure there are so few places they can go in town, -
they would enjoy each other more if all three were rented
o colored,

DR. PALMER: Have these people indicated }o you
that =-- that if you were to rent one gf these apartments
to ==

MRS . WASHBURN: No.

DR. PALMER: -- to a white person, that they- - TR

would want to leave?
MRS. WASHEURN: No. We have had white people . .
offer to move in with the colored,
DR. PALMER: But vou do not allow them to? .
MRS. WASHBURN: We say that we think they would
enjoy more being by themselves.
DR. PALMER: That is, you tell them that you
think that fhey would -- that the --
MRS . WASHBURN: So we are discriminating against
/ the whites.
PROFESSOR LAYMON: How do you know that they
would feel that way? How do you feel about fhis, person;l1y?
Do you think that fﬂey would actuvally be happier? - Zih
MRS . WASHBURN: Well, they visit back and forth
from place to place from six ofclock in the morning until

twelve o'clock at night.
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PROFESSOR LAYMON: But do they ever tell you
that they prefer}ed -- they prefer it the way It is?

MRS . WASHBURN: No. .

PROFESSOR LAYMON: You just think that they
would be happier?

MRS. WASHBURN: No. We have discussed it with
them. They haven!t been -- made any vocal preference.
William Chase was one of our renters, and he told us that

they preferred to associate with their own kind., He was

gt

one of our firstrrenters,
PROFESSOR LAYMON: That is a very interesting
observation.
MR. CHARLES HARDY: Your name, please, so | can
address you, if | might.
MRS. WASHBURN: | am Mrs. V. R. Washburn,
MR. HARDY: Do you think one person can speak
for the masses of people? Do you think that?
MRS . WASHBURN: | wasn't trying to. 1'm Just ""

speaking for me.

Y g

MR. HARDY: You say that you think that they

i3
e,

would prefer living together and that they socialize with -

o

m
SRR

7
A

one another info the wee hours of the night. - L i

A -
JE Y

MRS . WASHBURN: We did ask Mr. Chase, and he

said, "Yes, we prefer to go in restavrants with our own

e

people. We prefer to go to movies with our own people.
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We prefer to live with our own people.”

MR. HARDY: 1 think that Is possibly because
the problem is so real and so pressing vntil fthere are
no other means of social activities or recreation available
to these people. They have nothing else to do but socialize
with each other.

MR+ ANTHONY WILLIAMS. Mrs. Washburn ==

PROFESSOR LAYMON: We can!t get your name. _ <

MR. ANTHONY WILLIAMS: My name s Anthony Willfems. = ~“of
Mrs. Washburn, is it not true fhat you own mE?e«}hSE"?EFégf‘&rﬁzzw%§
houses == those three cabins that are there? - - e *E%

MRS . WASHBURN: No, sir. We own the whole two _5

acres there, other rental property, but 1f's not housing.

MR. WILLIAMS: Is it not true that you tfold E
Mrs. Carter -- Mrs. Dallas Carter -- that you rented the
other properties only to whites?

MRS. WASHBURN: No. We don!t have anything,

except those three cabins. -— —

MR. WILLIAMS: You have no other house§?
MRS . WASHBURN: No. We have Harry!s Custom

Lighting and the Liberty Oil Station and our own ;esidé;ce.j A?

MRe WILLIAMS: | secem to be misinformed.. Mrs.;‘

Carter did tell me that the reason that she moved was be-
cause the apartments there were too small for her family,
and she said that she knew that you had other properties, -"fg
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and she said that she asked you, and you had fold.her
that they were not for rent for colored people.

MRS. WASHBURN: That's all we -have. And she did
not -- She did not ever ask fo; anything else. In fact,
she came up fwo days before they moved and said, "™Welre

leaving in two days.™ And that'!s all | know.

MR. WILLIAMS: Do you have any vacancies now?
MRS. WASHBURN: No, sir.

A

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | think we might —- welve - ——-= = -

- - =T T -~ -

pretty well beat that topic out.
MR. WILLIAMS: Mr. Chairman; | have one more bit

of information that | mighf pass on to Mayor Raff. He

was wondering whether Family Services did lisf.fhese things

as to racial preferences -- these rentals == and | can tell

him that they do not because air force regulations do not

allow these things fto be done this way. They have a pre-

scribed format for all correspondence, forms and written

communications and these must be strictly adhered to. B
PROFESSOR LAYMON: Any more statements with

respect to dlsgrimlnafion? | think this gentleman here was --

MR. LEWIS GRAY: May | ask the airman there a

question? ' . ] Lpm -

- s,
- 1-“.‘5‘ o "

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | think so.
MR. GRAY: You said when you were looking for
housing that you come across this place where there
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were several white airmen living there with their wives?
MR. WATERS:. Yes. S
MR. GRAY:™ And the landlord sald that he couldn?t
rent 1t to you because they would move out? )
MR. WATERS: Right. |
MR. GRAY: Now, isn't that white airman =-- ln'
that instance, isn't that the white airman discriminating _
against you?

.DR. PALMER, May I just == ¢ -o—sg

S e £

MR. WATERS: You see, the white airman dontt - . ..

own the place. | don't see how he could tell his la;dlordj

who to let in and who not to let in on his place. But -. = =

you can interpret it to mean whatever you like.

DR. PALMER: This is a problem. May | just
say for clarification that it!'s a real problem in relation
to the whole area. Namely, that it!'s awful hard to pin-
point discrimination. Now, this gcﬁfleman talked only to
the owner =- or the renter, and he is in no position == 1
mean, you are assuming that what the person said is frue}

that they are the ones who would, say, move out, and this

is something that is a very gray zone as far as under- o

standing Is concerned, and == and | think we have fo’be:; e

carefu! not to make assumptions on ecither side that are
unwarranted. He can only go by the response he gets from
the person that he talks to, as would be the case with all e
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of us.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: The lady =--

MRS. EVELYN MERRITT: Evelyn Merritf agains |
cannot say what the Family Service policy ‘is, of course,
but we do have a small rental unit in the lower income
bracket, and | did call Family Services. | opened the
conversation by stating that we would rent to Negroes. As

a matter of fact, with the existing problems, we understood,

we would prefer to because of the-s.ituation. -They,closed .z

the conversafion by'sabﬁn§:$;Ahdlyou wIJng;n?sféiNggrSg§??
A question. Whether this is"alwaQS done'oé’nof,jl don't g
know. i

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Any other observations or
statements®

SERGEANT BRADLEY: I'm Sergeant Bradley from
Ellsworth. Back cduring last yéar there were about seventeen
or eighteen substandard units on base for personnel who
were sort of financially embarrassed.

DR. PALMER: Would you come up front, please,
so we can get that on the record. And state your name

once again, please.

SERGEANT BRADLEY: I'm Sergeant Bradley™from

Ellsworthe Back last Aporil onufhe base there were about
seventeen or eighteen substandard units on base. The
majority of the personnel who lived in those units were

-185-



Negroes; most airmen second who were not entitled to
government quarters. The 26th of April, | believe, there
was a letter sent to them from the base commander telling
them that these units would be closed because they were

not up to standard. Most of those Negroes who lived in
those units either -- could not find housing in Rapid City.
They had to send their wives home §ecause they could not
find sufficient quarters in the Rapid City area. There

Is one gentleman there now, Airmin First Class Herbert - -

Ukley, he has sent letters to the base commander and con-
tacted the USO and the Family Services. His wife had to

go home. She is at home right now. | know he has spent

time on end trying to find units in this area. Still he

does not have a place fto live. His wife took sick. Shels
in the hospital, and hel!s still trying to find a place f;

live., He has four children. And right now he is still

in the process of looking for a place to live.

DR. PALMER: May | ask a question? Do any of
those Negroes living in those units == Do you know that
any of those persons were forced to buy a home?

SERGEANT BRADLEY: No, I do not. '

MR. JOSEPH RICHARDSON: I think I have one af-
fidavit to that effect.

DR. PALMER: | would like to turn to that, if
we could.
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PROFESSOR LAYMON: Would you bring it forward.
Do you have it present?

MR. RICHARDSON: - I think se. T'm not sure.
The affidavit which | have here states that Sergeant T. We
Gray and his wife fried to buy a house when they first
arrived here in Rapid City in 1959 in September of that
vear, due to the fact that most people who had places to
rent flatly refused to rent to Negroes. "However, the
manager, head renter, of Private Homes keﬁf putting us off
for nearly a month. Then one day he called and said he
was sorry he could not sell us a house. When I asked him
why, he did not give a reason, but he said that he just
couldn?!t sell us a house. | finally got him to admit it
was because we were Negroes." Now, it is to my under-
standing that since that fim;, Staff Sergeant T. We. Gray
has bought a home. | think if's about four miles north
of the base -- air base.

DR. PALMER: He Is not present today? -

MR. RICHARDSON: No, he isn't., But if necessary,

5,1

I'Tm sure that we can contact him and Be will come in at

£
5

a'lafer date -—- | mean, at a later time this afternoon;

that is, after ke have completed his military obligations.

PROFESSOR L[AYMN: Are there any other comments’
or questions?
MR. RAFF: His contact was with Private Homes
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Tncorporated in Robbinsdale? Is that Tight?

MR. RICHARDSCN: | am not sure.

MR. RAFF:” Private Homes is-the name of the )
company of the ménager?

MR. RICHARDSON: He did not name the =-

DR. MUINSON: | thought he did.

DR. PALMER: Yes. Private Homes.

MR. RAFF: He was not seeking to —- Was he

i

i seeking to rent property or to buy? = s ey
MR. RICHARDSON: He was;gééfﬁng fombu§:;:m;%%é?r?fﬁqéfféé

DR. PALMER: And you sald that he sought o buy  =» =% 20

because he could not rent? ) ) ;;

MR+ RICHARDSON: Because he could not rent.

DR. PALMER: | wonder if we might ask, if it e

- be possible, to have this gentleman -- ask 1f we could =
get him here because | think it would be interesting to H

inquire a liftle bit Into what kind of a sitvation, par-
ticularly financial, he was put in to by virtue of the — - — ——
circumstance. Would it be proper for us to request that

an emissary be sent to contact him and see If we could

[EUS— ————

get him here before our meeting is closed?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: We only have an hqu;'anﬁl,

fifteen minutes. Mr. Chase.
MR. IKE CHASE: | wonder if | can clear up
that point. | wasn!t going fto say anything -- everybody -5
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wants -- My name is Chase. I'm a former member of the
civil rights committee and I'm a landlord, and | took up
a similar matter with PrIvaf; Homes once, being on the
Mayor'!s Committee. If you want me to, I'll clear the
thing and maybe give you a little light on the subject,
| don't know.

DR. PAILMER: About this case?

MR. CHASE: In about three minutes. Yah, about
that case or any other.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Would you like to come up?
Yhy dont!# you come forward, Mr. Chase? ’

MR. IKE CHASE: Well, it!ll ;ave you sending an
emissarye. My name is lke Chase. i been on -=- | was on
the == on your committee until properly | was pﬁf of f when
the Democratic Party came into power. 1| have no quarrel
with that. We had a hearing here and --

DR. PALMER: | would like to straighten out the
record on one thing, and that Is that this is a bipartisan
or nonpartisan, more appropriately, —-- commitftee, and the
question —-= .

FATHER SIEH: I think this is most important.

DR. PAIMER: =-- and the question has never been
ralsed by committee members about political affiliation --

MRo. CHASE: Oh, 1| know that.

DR. PALMER: And the second —-— The Second thing
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is that this comﬁiffee Is constituted by an act of congress
on a two—-year basis periodically, and every time ihaf there
is a reconstitution of the committee by congress, then
appointments are made in accordance with the rules and
procedures of legislation. And | think it's unfortunate
that there be introduced into this session‘any implication
whatsoever of political involvment.,

FATHER SIEH: There are some of us who would not

be on this commitiee, If we felt that we were compromised

-

[}
1

lon W

in political terms -- or | shouldn'} say Mcompromised.™ .
MR. CHASE: Gentlemen, lhshouldn'f have said Tt.

] == | == We used fo'say the same thing. We didn't care
what Republican was elected, we were bipartisan, too. |1
want to take up this one question. When | was on the com-
mittee. You asked about Robbinsdale. 1 fook it up with
Robbinsdale. Said, "™Will you do this?"™ And they agreed
with it if == ™Will you try selling a house to a colored
man or two colored men, and we, in return, will agree with
you that if anyone next door or in your project says, 'l

want my money back.! You ruined my value of my house.!

y
|

f
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We will refund you ;our money.” And they said, "All r?ghi.

Co- ,;’;.

Wetll try it, Chase.™ And so they did. And we were up =%t ~.mh;1

against immediately refunding the money, and what was amusing

to me was that the Private Homes agreed with me -- when they

checked into the thing further, they said, "We won'!t ask
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you for the money;" they said, "That fellow!s only paid

a hundred and fifty down. That's all he's paid, that!'s
complaining, but, Chase, we want to giveryou the facts of

the matter now, and we want you to see our position,” and
before | was through, | agreed to it. Now, | want to make
this general statement that as a member of this committee
before; as a member of -- been working on this. | been
working -- worked on it for many years because every city
meeting | came to in any part of the country, this issuve
voulre talking about ftoday came up. lf-always wound up e
this way in my opinfon: The people to blame for this are-
not the landlords. They are not the barber. They are not
the bartender. It's the people themselves., That!s what
voulre up against, Isithe Elame. | have rented o colored
people. | have twice -- you know, Mr. Rudell == | tried
to get public housing In this town, and every time -- |
wasn'!t defeated in the city council. | was defeated by
the people, and I've quit. Now, you'll verify that, will
you not?

MR. RUDELL: I'Il! verify that.

b e

MR. CHASE: That'!s what youlre uvp against. No&;_
as far as calling Private Homes -- . - ;;

MR. JOHN LARSON: | think the record should show,
Mr. Chairman, == I'm John Larson. Mr. Chase was born in
Rapid City and lived here all his life. Hel's been mayor
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of Rapid City for, | think, three or four different terms,

and he'!s been on the city government =-- a member of the - —

clity g;vernmenf for the last fwenfy-ffVe or thirty years;
served on the draft board with the United States Army
during all of the time that it's been In existence, and
his opinions should carry a lot of weight.

DR. PAIMER: Do I understand the essence of this
to say that fﬂen: Essentially you could not get a home

here because the people next door would ask for their-money

-

- e e - e — - - -~

back? ‘
MR. CHASE: That's what happen ed. B
DR. PALMER: The people of the community essentially
-- essentially are opposed to living next door to Negroes --
Just the color of their skin. 1Is that == Is that speaking
the sentiment of the community?®
MR. CHASE: No, the péople aren!'t == The people
don't object, | don't think, to the color of the skin or —
that -- the people object because they think it lowers the
value of their house. Now, that's my opinion. And, actually,

in this Private Homes deal I'm félling about where we of-

fered to refund the money, i+ was a captain at the air bgse:‘

that was the first that demanded his._money back. e%yr;ff;}

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Has there been any evidence
of lowering of property values from this®%
MR. CHASE: My own personal opinion in this town
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and other towns is: |[If the whites wouldn't get panicky,

you know. For instance, on Colorado Boulevard —- I spent

a couple of .days down there on this same issue now, and

I've been in St. Paul on this same issue == that it's the

panic of the whites that -- the whites flee, and then that

lowers the value. You can read that in the Saturday Evening

Poste You don'!t need to take my word for it. But my own

opinion that | want to put across to you Is that -- after ‘

many years on this -=- the fault lies basically with the - .-

L

people; not with the businessmen or the Tandlords. He . 777

would be glad fo. He don!t care. Go ahead. .

MR. RUDELL: lke, would it be putting words in
yoﬁr mouth to say then you agree that prejudice is wide-
spread in Rapid City? )

MR. CHASE: The only place == In my opinion, the
only place in the United States where there i8n'ft any race
prejudice is where there is only one race. | can say that.
i MR. RUDELL: You agree with the New York Times
statement then that Rapid City is prejudiced?

MR. CHASE: Why, certainly. There is prejudice

e Sk b e 4 P

everywhere, vyese. o st

MR. RUDELL: Okay.

MR. RAFF: Anatole France once said that, "The
man who claims he has no prejudice is himself guilty of

the greatest prejudice.”



Erabiwva -

MR. CHASE: That's right. Thank you, gentlemen.

MR. RAFF: Thank you,-lke.- - e - - -

DR. PALMER: Llet's go back to those affidavits.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Mr. Richardson -- Well, just
a second -~

MR. STEWART STEELE: [I'm Stewart Steele. | have
the civil rights == I'm Stewart Steecle, president .of the - -

civil rights committee —- Black Hills Civil Rights Commitiee.

I have the civil rights file on houstng, which 'l will SUb- e T
mit to you and will summarize rafﬁér”b;Iefly. The ques- z ) é%
tionnaires which Mrs. Smith mentioned, in the bars and m.:' e m

cafe category, also dealt with housing. There were nine- -

teen questionnaires submitted fo married Negro servicemen
or their dependents at Ellsworth, Of those nineteen, nine
listed housing problems and four of them said that the
main problem as far as racial discrimination in this area
is concerned is housing. That included oné statement that
racial discrimination, and this was the instance fﬁaf

Sergeant Bradley was pointing out, that racial discrimina-

tion by landiords was responsible for creafion of a Negro

neighborhood in housing at the base because fhe respondenf
said that Negro servicemen had a harder time finding housing,,d
therefore, they were concentrated in this one area of sub-

standard housing at the base that was used for hardship

cases. That has since == They have since been forced to
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move, as Sergeant Bradley said. There is one report which
Sergeant -- or which Airman Richardson has covered by an
affidavit concerning the refusal of a home developer not

to sell the housing by race. That is covered in these
questionnaires. There is a8 -- one questionnaire here from

a woman who said she spent thirty-three dollars on long
distance telephone calls before finding two places In

Rapid City that would rent to Negroes when she learned

that her husband was going to be transferred to Ellsworfh:"
There is a complaint in here from one respondent to fheszﬁx h
questionnaires that a list of rentals supplied by the USO
was oTf places, and these are the words of the questionnaire:
"ot fit to keep pigs in." Or, "With rent so high they

were out of the question.™

Two of the respondents said
that there was fear on fh; part of the landlords about

what the neighbors would think if they rented to Negroes.
Now, in addifion to the questionnaires, we have some other
information here -- several other cases which have been
brought to the attention of the civil rights committee. In

August of 1961, a case reported in the Rapid City Journal

was of Airman Williams Hardy who, with his wife and four

children, were forced to live in these temporary .quarters .- T

at Ellsworth for more than three weeks while searching for
housing. He was told by several property owners, including
one who had agreed to rent to him before finding he was

~-[95=
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Negro, that he couldn!t -- that they couldn!t rent to-
Negroes. Then in‘Apr}l 1960, a.Negro.szrge;nf who, with -
his wife and four children, were told” fo move from their
home in the Robbinsdale areca of Rapid City by the property
owner because of telephoned, anonymous threats, and in
December 1959, a Negro serviceman and his wife, who had
just been released from the hospital with a six-day old

baby, were refused admission to an aparitment on Signal

. Heights in Rapid City. Now, in addition to the complaints —— =~ . %
on housing, we do have one very bright +hings EE;;;Ty"f;M;:*_ 7

after the civil rights committee was organized, it ran a -3~

!
i
i

small blank in the Rapid City Journal and submitted peti-

Ve e

tions through the churches in the Rapid City area asking
people to pledge that they would welcome, as néfghbors, on
- an individual basis, all persons without regard to ra;é.
Ve have collected this list of names which is twelve hun-
dred eleven signatures. Some of -- Quite a few of them
are of couples and not of individuals. That is =-- these ~
/ were collected in == voluntftarily, of course, in a rather
short time. There is the file. If you have any questions,

| would be glad to answer. It's all a matter of the re=-

L8 F

cord of the civil rights committee, and .I have. no personal g

knowledge of i1t, beyond the compiling of it.
FATHER SiEH: | would Itke to ask Mr. Chase

another question. There was a hand of applause for you,
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Mr. Chase, after you made your statement that where --
the only place you don'!t have discrimination is where there
is only one race. Now; this would imply that discrimination
is a very widespread thing. Right?
MR. CHASE: Correct. Yeg.
FATHER SIEH: Do you ever approve discrimination?
MR. CHASE: Personally, | admired these colored
men when they testified this morning, and personally, | =-
1 =- | don'!t -- It doesn!t make sense to me. Now why?
Only it's hard for me to say why there is. Now, I want to ™
fell you another story | =— | heard in a hea;ing of yours,

if you want fto hear of discrimination. | was sitfing in a

civil rights committee meeting on the Hutterites -- ecastern
South Dakota -- This is your committee, and a neighbor --
a white farmer -- | can't see why -- but a white farmer got

" He said, "Can rain

up and says, "Couldn't we have --
making influence hail storms2?" And |.remember that. And
somebody said, "Yes." Well, he said, "™ow, | wish we

could have rain making in our area and have all the hail-

stones fall on the Hutterites."™ Well, now, that to me was

an illustration of -- | couldn'f see any reason == In the

farmer or that white -- not white -~ it wasn't a question
of white =-- but why that farmer took that -- | rang door
bells in a block on Colorado Boulevard in Denver. [ was

-197~-
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taken out there by the mayor's committee of Denver and

told where to go and | askedqfhe question, "Now, why is -
there a 'for sale sign! on your house?d?-Ana'fhey said,
"Because look down fhe‘sfreef. They have sold out to a
colored man and this house will only be worth half."

Now, in Massillon, Chio, a town of this size, an Industrial
case, | asked -- | went out to where there is the same --

to the colored district, and | said to a white man who

wanted to sell his house, | said, "™Why are you selling ====7 -y

" e

=T T

your house?2"™ And He told me the dSEBsr}é. He said, MBe o

- *

= B e S e T,

- = = g
-

cause it's near a colored district. I+ will bring a Tot

of money because the colored people can buy it." Sece, _

it doesn!t make sense to me. You see what 1 mean? There
in Colorado Boulevard one way, and Massillon, Ohio an-

\
other way. Minneapolis == St. Paul we were in the same

here == a little == You better get me -- You better shut

me up.

FATHER SIEH: | was just going to ask this:

The fact that discrimination is widespread does not, in A

your mind, excuse it?

~
-

MR. CHASE: No. No. But I think it's also ——

rFor

If == 1f =='1 think it is also in a colored.district, they .7.

wouldn!t want to see a white man move in the colored dis-

trict. | think.that!s true.
MR. WILLIAM ARRINGTON: | don't think thatt!s true,
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myself.

MR CHASE: | do. We established twenty acres
for Indian people and resiricted it to Indian people. We
had p;ofesfs because an Indian lady wanted to move a white
husband out .there.

MR. HOWARD KEITH: Mr. Chase, you say that the
only place where you won!t have discrimination is where
there is one race. The human race -- welre all of the one
race, are we not3 the human race? EveryBody? ‘

PROFESSOR LAYMON: We have -= Would you Iike to --

MRS. MARY ZIMMERMAN: 1 would like to make one
statement on housing. | think this has been the most dif-
ficult question. In states where | have lived, we have
had public accommodations laws -- Washington finally got
an omnibus law to protect the one that is not prejudiced,
which is the majoritye. Sociologisfs have proven in their
studies that the bigoted person is in the definlite minority,
which is about eight to.ten per cent. The rest of the
people are undecidec until they watch and see what thelir
neighbors do. When the law protects the decent law-abiding
citizen, you have very little broblem. [ could cite vyou
this whole ten-year study of civil rights in Washington
State since they have had a law against discrimination in
employment and in housing and in accommodations. 1f!s
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very interesting. And you will find that people are
laboring under false impressions about property values.
This has been corrected., 1f you want to get the recent
movie put out by the San Francisco Fair Practices Commis-
sion: 1f's called "Property Values in Housing,™ and this
has provea what man; people have notlced, that ;here is
no rhyme or reason on this thing, but iIn most cases, the
property values do not go downj; they go up after integra-

tion of a neighborhood, unless there Is panic, as Mr. Chase

has pointed out, and may 1 sa;a{haf,-falang*gb;bf ";oﬁr
own kind," and having lived in many parts of “the cdanfrv, N
| recognize no one as being of "my kind" because of the

color of my skin. My kind are people who believe in the

American ideal, the Christian or the lewish religion or

some religion that recognizes that we are all brothers,

and that we all have a definite patriotic duty to promote

the Christian or the American ideal in our cowotry. That

is my kind of person, and that's the kind | want to associate

with. ey

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Mr. Richardson has a few affi-

- - TSy

davits to pre;enf.

MR. JOSEPH RICHARDSON: 1 would like to say at. =

this time, | will call upon Mr. Elmer Palmer. He Is a
personnel who is stationed at Ellsworth Air Force Base and

he's not eligible for government quarters.
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MR. ELMER PALMER: My name is Elmer Palmer. |
am an airman stationed at Ellsworth, and | have here an
affidavit which was =~ has been stamped by the notary pub-
lice. "I, Elmer Palmer, being first duly sworn, dispose
and sgy: that on September 2th, 1962, | was refused housing
at Bertelsen's Trailer Court." That'!s adjacent to the
air base. "On the above date, at apbroximafely four p.m.
Mountain Standard Time, | arrived at Ellsworth Air Force
Base, South Dakota, accompanied by my wife and two éaughfers. s
| called Bertelsen's office and the lady said immediately
she had a trailer for rent. After inquiring about the size
of my family she asked," and | quote: "What race are you?"
Unquote. "After telling her that | was Negro, she stated,"”
and | quote: "The owner of this trailer a;ked us not to
rent if.fo colored people. | am sorry. | don'!t know why

' Unquote. "I made 1+ clear

they won't rent to Negroes.'
that this was an emergency and that I neéded housing des-
perately becavse | had an infant baby with me only six weeks
old, but the lady said she could not rent it to me.” )

MR. JOSEPH RICHARDSON: | would like to ask Mr.
Palmer a few questions. Mr. Palmer, where did your wife
stay during the time that you arrived on base? ’ Y

MR. PALMER: This was on -- This da{e was Sep- 7
tember 9th,which was a Sunday. My wife and ftwo kids spent

the night with a sergeant on base. | won'!t call his name.
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And | lived in the bachelors! quarters on the base.
MR. RICHARDSON: Why? - . S
MR. PALMER: Bécause I cogidnff'?ind -~ At the

BOQ they didn't have anything that was ;pen. They were

filled up, ané | couldn!t Tind a place == any other place.

| didn't come to town to check with any motels because we

were short on funds at that time. 1| had an accident on

the way up and destroyed my avtomobile and so fortha

MR+ RICHARDSON: I understand that you sald thats:~ —
they were filled up. ) T TR T i:ﬁifﬂ?;r~?:r

MR. PALMER: Who was that? ] T

MR. RICHARDSON: The BO -- BOQ.

MR. PALMER: Right. That Is the statement he

gave me: That they were filled up and they couldn't ac-

™
o

commodate ényone else.
MR RICHARDSON: Did you explalin to them the
sijvation? ~

MR. PALNER: 1 did. T

MR. RICHARDSON: And what was their answer fto 7
that? - ) _ :
 MR. PALMER: The same thing. "We are filled.
[Tm sorry.” - - e :
MR. RICHARDSOMN: In other words, they could care )
less?

MR. PALMER: Well, you have to make that interpre-
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tation.

MRe RAFF: Thaif'!s possibly a very --

MR. PALMER: That's the interpretation | —-

MRe RAFF: =~-- faliaCiOUS interpretation. This
would be highly subject to question.

MR. RICHARDSON: Mr. Palmer --

MR. PALMER: VYes.

MR. RICHARDSON: Knowing the circumstances, did

they advise you as to whether or not you could find housing

in Rapid City, or that some friend wouia put you up for
tonight -- or that night? -
MR. PALMER: There was an airman third, CQ, I
. guess you might call it, and he made no.statement to that
' effect. He only stated to me that, "We are full. 1'm
- sorry. Ve cannot accommodate anyone else." And | told him
that | hadn't -- he asked me: Was I alone. 1 said, "™No.™

He say, "Well, if you were alone, we could put you on the

second floor of the building; but womens are not allowed up

4

/ there." And | say, "That's not the problem."™ | wanted a

place for my wife and kids to sleep. And he"said, Hlin

P — [FUGEURIIE UL N

sorry. Welre full."™ And that is all there was said. het
DR. PALMER: So what did you do? - --- - % ?ng
MR. PALMER: Well, I went back to the housing )
area —- 3 sergeant -- staff sergeant in the housing area

that | knew, | went to his house, and | left my wife and
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the kids there where they could get warm and get something
to eat, and me and sergeant went to three other places, -
and we also called down town trying to find a place to live,

and we inquired at the Villa Trailer Court which was full,

and the V and H, | believe, Trailer Court, which is near

the base, and we called the Uso. They didn't have anythinge.

And he called two landlords t+hat he knew do&n town, and -
they didn'ft have anything. And the next day, Monday, I

tried to éef of f duty fto look for a house, and | wasn'f = .
able to get off duty because | had just signéd?in fro;
teave, and they wouldn't allow me the time off, and after _

getting of f work, I went to the -- to Bertelsent!s, who had -

refused me Sunday, and the -- it was a man there that I
talked to this time. | talked to a lady over the phone.
And he told me that, "We don'!t have anything, |'m sorry.
We had two trailers yes%erda; but we rented fhe& today."
DR. PALMER: So what happened? )
MR. PALMER: Well, | drove down town. Well, 1|
/ got the Rapid City Journal, and | started to calling the

different places that had houses for rent, and every one

] called, just about, told me that they had just rented,

and this one == | don!t remember the address or anyfh]né =5 .

n

said, "o, Come on down. So | came down town, and after

getting there -- | think it was on New York Street; Ilm

not sure right now -=- but the lady said, "I'm sorry. Ve
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have just rented it today." So | called another lady
that was listed and she said she had rented fhe house she
had advertised, but she had some cabins "that she would
rent, and so | asked her, "How much,™ and she said, "Eighty
dollars a monthe™ So | went to this place at 27 Sf.-Joe,
and she had a young man working for her there at the of-
fice, and | asked him, and he asked how many of us was
there, and | told him, and he showed me the cabins, and
told me that they rented for a hundred dollars a month, .. - -
and the lady had just told me that they were eighty dollars, .
So | told him | couldn't afford that, and | called this v
lady again and told her what he had told me, and she told
me to come down to —-—- that she would call him and fe&l him .
that the cabins rented for eighty dollars. So | paid him
eighty dollars, and the next evening, | =-- which was Tues-
day evening -- | moved my family there. That'!s where welre
living now at the -- at a tourist cabin =-- afgfhe Siesta
Motel. We have been.there since September the Ilth.
DR. PALMEZR: VYho'!s the gentleman living in the
government quarters that we talked to a moment ago? What
are you == What -- Is there a standard rate out fhére on -
rentals for those government quarters? S R
MR. GEORGE WATERS: WNo, there'!s no standard rate.
DR. PALMER: V/het kind of variation is there in

rent? What are you paying®
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. home, | would have the same thing, for the same.

MR. WATERS: That Is determined by your allowance;
the amount of dependents you have, and rank.

DR. PALMER: | mean, can you glive any Tdea of
the approximate amount?

MR. WATERS: Well, In my case, I'm forfeiting
seventy-seven éollars and ten cents a month.

DR. PALMER: How much?

MR. WATERS: Seventy-seven dollars and ten cents
a month, ) T — e I

DR. PALMER: And what kind &F accommodations do .

-

you have out there? . . it

MR. WATERS: | would have == presently 1 have a

fwo-bedroom homé. IT | needed a three or four bedroom
DR. PALMER: What kind of accommodations do you
have in your -~ in your trailer court?
MR. PALMER: In the fourisf‘—- | live in the
Siesta Motel, tourist cabin.
DR. PALMER: Tourist cabin. - B
MR. PALMER: I+'s —- Well, fwo rooms, a kifchen —-. £

kitchene¥té, is what they call It == a bath == or showery

And, in essence to the rate of rent for government quarters, . 7 .0

it!'s -- this == it depend on the number of dependents that

you have.

DR. PALMER: Do you know what you would have to =
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pay if you were eligible for government quarters?
MR. PAIMER: Yes. | would have to pay-ninefy-
six ninety now, and after the first of the:year i1t would
be a hundred and five dollars, but | will get a much
larger house.
DR. PALMER: There secems to be some disagree-
ment there. May | take the liberty, Mr. Chairman, to call
on Mr. Arrington to clarify this one point?
PROFESSOR LAYMON: Yah. _ :
MR. WILLTAM ARRINGTON: My name is William Ar-
rington. Now, the price they take -- the money that the
government gives you for housing allowance -- for quarters
allowance == IT | was living on base now, it would cost me
fifty-one dollars and thirty cents for housing allowance.
That'!s according fo what the government gives an airman
for housing allowances Fifty-one thirty is what they give
an airman for one dependent.
MR. PALMER: That'!s right. | have three dependents,

so my allowance is ninety-six dollars and ninety cents. For

one dependent you get fifty-one dollars and ten cents. Right? -

-

 JO SO

MR. ARRINGTON: Right. - o

B
ek

Sha,

ar
E it

MR. PALMER: For two dependents you get seventy-:
seven dollars and fthirty cenfs, and for three and over, you
get ninety-six ninety. That's the standard government al-
lowance, and after the first of the year that'!s changing.
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DR. PALMER: So you are within your housing al-~

lowance or your quarters allowance with—your-dependents; -

T

are you, In this circumstance? 3 ‘
MR. PALMER: Well, the pay rate, yes. But living
quarters, no.
DR. PALMER: They are not comparable?

MR. PALMER: No.

S
PROFESSOR LAYMON: Do you have any other affi-
davits, Mr. Richardson? - s - ‘B
’ ) - — e — - = — -c"-—r-’~-"‘;l%:i
MR. JOSEPH RICHARDSON: Yes. _ " “ ;éé

PROFESSOR LAYMON: "If you would bring them for- ~

ward. Welre going to have to move along here. _ -5

'MR. RICHARDSON: | have one affidavit here -that
I would like to mention at fh§$ time, and it is the affi-
- davit of Mrs. Mary Elizabeth lefferson. She is the wife
of an airman -- air force personnel. It reads: ¥On

November 23rd, (963, | was given a list of possib]e rental

vnits from the USC In Rapid City. We selected approxi-

/ mately fifteen names and addresses which were listed., After

bk

trying twelve addresses, we were told by ecach that the

:} N J-«
ik

rental units had been taken. At one place on Eighth Street, -

g E )

St

Ny

the lady answering the door bell stated: ™No Vacanciés.’é‘g“}%?%{,
Her son ran from the back room announcing,—'Yes, we do have
a place.?! But after seeing Mr. Jefferson, he changed and

said, 'Oh, | was wrong. The place is taken.! Because of
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increasing discouragement, we were forced }o buy a trailer.”
| have here other affidavits which at+ this +ime | will not
take the time to read, but | will present them before this

committee,

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Someone mentioned that we have
another witness,

DR. MUNSON: Yes, she is due momentarily.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Momentarily. Why don't we
take a ten mihufg break. | have about fwenfy minutes to e
four. Let!s adjourn again; let!s say at -= very shorfl; :
affér ten minutes of four, and then we can take some com-
menis, not only from this lady who'!s going to show up,
but from other people who haven!t ﬂad an opportunity to
speak but perhaps could bring some more insights into this
discussion.

(Short recess taken.)

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Mrse. Gray?2 Is Mrs. Gray here?

MRS. THEOPHILES W. GRAY: Yes. |

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Someone indicated that you

have some testimony which would be helpful to us. Would

|

H
ofrd

H

you care to come up? ’ . . ’ -
‘ - . ” * o 3‘:,%.:
DRe MUNSON: Your affidavit was read. Now, we .+ &7 8%

5
ekt

would just like to have you verify some of the details and

talk about them. Mr. Palmer, you wanted to ask some ques-

tions of Sergeant Gray, you said, Well, this is Mrs. Gray.
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DR. PALMER: Let me ask: When you =~ When did
you come fo Rapid City first? o i -

MRS. GRAY: We came in September, 1959.

DR. PALMER: September, 1959. And you and your
husband came to Rapid City together. 1% wasn't a matter
that he came, and you followed later? )

MRS. GRAY: No. We both cahe together. _

DR. PALMER: And what were your experiences when
you first arrived at Rapid City? A - e

MRS. GRAY: Well, when we first got here, we

went to the base, and to the housing depariment, and they

said that they didn!t have any base housing, but we could, - &

you know, try around In town, and they Informed us that
it would be, you know, a lifttle difficuvlt.
DR. PALMER: Can you speak up so that some of
those people in the back of the room might hear. They
svggested that it might be difficult for you to find housing?
MRS. GRAY: Yes. Yes. Yes, for us o find a '
house. Well, anyway, they sent us to the USO, and when we
went down there, the lady at the USO told us that It was

a little difficult, you know, to get housing for Negroes,

but they have been, you know, trying to find people who

were willing fo rent to Negroes, and she gave us a few
addresses, and just then.the phone rang and someone called
In about a house. We went to see about it. We were very,
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lucky then, and we got the house.
DR. PALMER: That is, you rented i+2
MRS. GRAY:™ ‘Yah, we rented the house, but where
the difficulty arose, the house was a little small. We
have two children, 2 boy and a girl, and it was a little
small for us, and we thought we would fry and find a
bigger place. Then we ran into difficulities.
DR. PALMER: And you fried fo rent again then?
MRS. GRAY: Uh huh. e e s
DB. PAIMER: A larger place? N A
MRS. GRAY: Yah. '
DR. PALMER: And would you tell us what was
the sequence of events then?
MRS, GRAY: Yah. Well, | can't remember the
names and the places, but we went to several places and
quite a few of them would say, "It!'s been rented,” you

!

know, "before." Or, "Someone came yesterday,” or somethin
S 3

like that. And one or two people came, vou know, right out

and told us, says, "I'm sorry, but we don't rent to Negroes."

And then we decided we would buy a housz,ﬁand then when it

was time to leave, we could -=

DR. PALMER: Did you decide to buy the house befﬁvf"-
cause you could not find rental property? .

MRS. GRAY: Yes. Yah, we couldn't Tind -- You
could Tind places to rent but 1+t wasn‘¢ su?fable, you know,
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to us to live in, and we decided then we'd buy a house,
and we weren't expecting to live here all the time, but

when we leff; we thought that we could*$ell It or maybe

rent it to someone else, and we went to several real estate
offices, and what they have to show us weren!t satisfactorvy.
DR. PALMER: They were not satisfactory?
MRS. GRAY: They weren't satisfactory. Eo we went -

over to Private Homes, Inc. The first time we went, the

o LT e
secretary in the office gave us a key and +on US 3 yOU know,« - o e
o to go and look at _several houses because “Fhe sa]esman was

out that day. We went and we looked at two or fhree houses

that day, and we came back and told her that we liked one

and she said, well, she'd se} up a day for fhe.sélesman to

take us around.and have us look at if. We went back the

next Saturday and she said, "Oh, I'm sorry," she said, "“the :
salesman is ill, and you won'!t be able to look at the house

foday.™ She gave us another date, and that happened about

three or four times, and every time we went, either she

..

/ would say he was out or would be back or was ill or some- -

thing ef§se. Well, one day | was home and the phone rang,

and | answered, and he said, "This is the sales&managerhef¥f"
the Private Homes, Inc. 1'm sorry, we won't be gb]eyjo;“
sell you a house.™ And so 1 said, "Oh, have you stopped
building? Or don't you have any available or what2" And

he says, "No, that'!s not it. Ve just won't be able to sell
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you a8 house.” | says, "Well, you must have some reason

' ‘And he just hung up

for not wanting to sell us a house.'
the phone« He didn't say another w;rd. So | was a little
disgusted, and | dialed again, and | got the manager, and
he says, "I'm sorry, but we can't sell houses over here to
you people.” He says, "It's not my fault or anything. We
just can!t sell a house $o you."™ So we didn't bother about

trying to get another house anywhere else. We just waited

until we got in base housing, and we moved out -there, —+ =

- e A <

DR. PALMER: And you are not living in base
housing? ) ) AN',JﬂQ;% -
MRS. GRAY: . Welre living in base housing now.
DR. PALMER: | see. Mr«. Richardson?® Are you here?
MR. JOSEPH RICHARDSON: Yes. L
DR. PALMER: Did you have a person who had bought
a house or did you -- These were the people who had wanted
to buy a house; is that correct?
MR. RICHARDSON: Yes,
DR« PALNMER: IT you were -- What were going to be
yvour financial arrangements for buying this house if they —-

if they had said it was all right? 'Had you considered that

a-]- all? - "-u':-: ‘;-—'-{

MRS. GRAY: Yah. Well, when we got here first,
we had a little money saved, and we thought, you know, we
had enough for a down payment and everything, and | thought
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discuss terms? B

MRS. GRAY: No, we didn't gef anywhere fo dis-

-~ "
S oakae RS
W e, £ i e
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cuss money, they just --=

DR. PALMER: Had you, at any time, had another
opportunity to move infto base housing prior to the time
that you finally did move in?

MRS. GRAY: No. B

DR. PALMER: Did you have any desire actuvally to --

a

v i e
sy = .. T
g 3 Py e
oty T

MRS. GRAY: Yes. Well, actually, we,would much.;

rather have lived in the house we were living In on Blaine, - e
if it wasn!t too small. e would much rather have stayed
there, rafﬁer than going to the base.
DR. PALMER: That is where you were renting,
except for the size? . )

MRS. GRAY: Uh huh.

. DR, PALMER: WVhy would you have preferred staying

/ there, rather than going on the base?

MRS. GRAY: | don't know. | wouldijust much

rather llve;—you know, outside in the commuﬁ?¥§; | wguiai

P

-
X ar vyd
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MRS. GRAY: Yah.

DR. PALMER: The base community is not the same -
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| was working and my husband, you know -- both of us =--
our incomes combined, we would have been able to meet the
payments and everything clse. )

DR. PALMER: And so --

MR. IKE CHASE: I couldn!'t hear. Could | ask
that that amount of money would be.-— Could you give that
again. You couldn't hear. We can't hear youv. What did

vou say the amount of money was?

MRS. GRAY: Well, | didn't say the amount of .

on the house, we could have afforded -that. The question
of money never arosca.
‘ DR. PALMER: Then how would == How would fhe
balance of it have been financed then? .
MRS. GRAY: You mean through the -- Would it be
financed through the bank? Or what?
DR. PALMER: Yes. Would yecu have gotten a loan
from a bank or would you have gone through the GI Bill,
/ or was your husband eligible for the GI Bill or FHA --
MRS. GRAY: No, | --
DR. PALMER: -- inSUrance'or -

- MRS. GRAY: No. | think he would have gone fpgyﬁf' )

the bank or maybe FHA.
DR. PALMER: Either the bank or FHA.
MR. RUDELL: But you didn't get far enough to
-214-
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as the Rapid City community?

MRS. GRAY: No. [It's all right. I like living
on the base. It's not that, you know,wlnéon'+ like it.
But 1| would much-prefer, vou know, to live oﬁ the outskirts
of the base, rather than right on the base.

DR. PALMER: You feel that you are not really
free to live off the base, as a resuvlt of the circumstances
then that you face?

MRS. GRAY: Well, as a resQJ+ of the cxrcumsfanczs,

| was really very glad to get on® fhe base.'
g L ""“‘:1- e T

Y

that wavy. - . o TEDaT
DR. PALMER: In other words, you had a change - —
of heart, and -- about your feeling about the base?

MRS. GRAY: Yah. Uh hvh.

DR. PALMER: Now, why -- What was It that made
you feel now that you are glad to get on the base?

MRS. GRAY: Well, I thought == well, if | got on
the base wherever there was a good house, that was all
right. Nobody would tell me: Well, you couldn't live here

because you’s Negro. There was a house available and I'd

get It ]usf’because I was another person or ano+her-serff€é'“

Ege
P

man's wife that's in need of a house that was available7

W e al‘-n
s :

DR« PALMER: Where did you come from prlor to |

coming to Ellsworth here?

MRS. GRAY: We came from England. Brentwaters.
-2]6-



We were stationed at Breatwaters.
DR. PALMER:? And where were your homes originally?
MRS. GRAY: My home Is in Jamaica, West Indies.
DR. PALMER: Jamaica, West Indies?
MRS. GRAY: Uh huh.
DR. PALMER: And your husband?
MRS. GRAY: He's from Oklahoma.
DR. PALMER: From Oklahoma?
MRS. GRAY: Uh huh.
DR. PALMER: And when you arrived in Rapid City, =~ .
did you have any indication at all that you would encounter
the things that you did encounter? ‘
MRS. GRAY: No. As a matter of fact, | was very
much surprised because most of the =- | have heard a lot
about racial discrimination here in the United States, and
everyone mostly that | met always said that once you left
the South and came to the Midwest or farther North, you
didn't find any racial discrimination at all. -
DR. PALMER: And you were actuvally looking forward
to living as a membér of the larger community of Rapid City?
MRS. GRAY: Yes. Uh huh.

DR. PALMER: And you were preclqded from_@oigg‘jg;gg _ s\ 3

this because of the circumstances of housing, as far as
you see it¢?
MRS. GRAY: Yes.
-217- -
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DR. PALMER: | wonder if there are any other

questions that members of the committee might possibly

like to pose? i T

FATHER SIEH: Are there any facilities that are
not available to you or less_availgble to you livlng on
the base than if you were living out In the city here?

MRS. GRAY: You mean facilities on the base or

facilities in the city? .

- -

. FATHER SIEH: Oh, [ mean, like to laundromat, I

T eae L
W PP |

for xnsfance? Would you have bef*er“acceSS'+o a laundro-~x%iw;+-—~7

mat if you were living in fown or living on fhgrbase2 iDdﬁ”_
things of that sort enter info it?

MRS. GRAY: Well, that really doesa't enter id,

living on the base because the base hqpsing_fur?ishek a
laundromat -= laundromats -- washers and dryers, and that. -
really doesn't come info it.

DR. PALMER: Father, may we -- May | suggest
that we might word the question as to what differences _ - -
she sees between living on the base as opposed fto living

in the city. Would that be‘appropriafe?

FATHER S1EH:2 Yes.
DR. PALMER: Are there any big. d[fferences

e nn—g.«\-u

Any advantages, or disadvantages, one way or fhe ofh
MRS. GRAY: Well, when that happened -- the
problem arose about the house, and | don't want to go by .
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hearsay, but | heard that several Negroq; were turned away
from different establishments In town, agd? therefore, we
just didn't go anywhere in foyn. You know, there would be
a night when | wasn!'t working, and we would like to go out,
you know, just for the evening or somefhing like that, and
we just didn't go if we didn't go to the NCO Club or the
base movies. We just didn't go to town. It took us a ~
long time before we ever even came to a movie- in town here
because we found out, you know, that they didn't let us.

MR. RAFF: You have very secldom come in to town
then for a nighf‘ouf?

MRS. GRAY: Uh huh.

MR. RAFF: And very seldom come in to town to do
vour shoppingj is that right?

MRS . GRAY: Oh, no, the shopping -- | have been
in town to shop. | haven!t found any problem as far as '
shopping is concerned. There hasn!t been any problem. But
as far as going out for an evening on the ftown or a night
out or so, we just haven'!t gone. | told my husband, | said,
"] would much rather stay home than to go some place and
someone tell me, 'I'm sorry, you can't come in, nof_becauSe
you aren't dressed properly or you can't afford 1t, but e
because you are a Negro.!™ And so to avoid the embarrass-
ment, we just haven'!t been.

MR. RAFF: You are an employee at the Bennetft-
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Clarkson Hospital; aren!t you?

MRS. GRAY: That'!s right,

v r————_p e L e -

MR. RAFF:- Have vou epcounfe?égkggy ﬁroblem
there in the hospital with the people you work with?
Have you encountered discrimination from them toward you

or from patients toward you?

-

MRS. GRAY: Well, lfge had, I'd say negligent 4
problems with some of the patients, but it hasn't bothered s

me really, because it hasn‘f been very. much,

= -y

s W UV
- N “‘
e

‘.fn

T I work with’

admlnlsfraflon, we gef along very well:w s

FATHER SIEH: How do you travel back and forth
between the hospltal and the base? ' } G
MRS. GRAY: | drive my own car, fo and from work.

FATHER SIEH: How many miles?

P
1

MRS. GRAY: Altogether, it's about sixteen miles. B
DR. PALMER: About sixteen?

~

/ MRS . GRAY: Sixfeen; ] live on one of fhe Nike

sites, which is a little farther out from the base; abouf

g

five miles from the base, Itself, proper.™ "+ .7 -

ki - T
-

B 28 g Y
FATHER SIEH:- Sixteen miles round_ trip?: Orione;
* P * N - I - 2 '{«’.—*-éar*;“ £ 372 Ba ey

7o 28
FELSTE

way?2 o
MRS. GRAY: One way. About thirty-two miles a
daye. Uh huh.
-220-



MR. RAFF: You talked about == welre -- the
committee is interested not 9nly in the quesfion of whether
or nof discriminafion exists, but infefe;fed, ;gcondly,
in how extensive it is, and interested, thirdly, in the
meaning of that discrimination to airmen, and their families
there at the air base. Now, on this level of "meaning,"
you mentioned a while ago that when coming here, you hoped
to take part in the larger total community life of Rapid
Citye Is that an accurate expression®

MRS. GRAY: Yes. | C

MR. RAFF: Now, what did you hope to experience
in the larger community of Rapid City that you are not
experienciﬁg at the present time in the community at the
air base government housing? )

MRS. GRAY: Well, for one thing, | thought when
we came to Rapid Cify; there wouldn'!t be an? problem of
saying: Well, you can'ft go to this night club. You can't
go info this bar or you can't go into this restaurant.

And if you want a cup of coffee or you want to §if.§own and
have a decent meal, you can!t come here. I'm sorry, you

have to go some place else. Or they actually point and

say, "Well, we don't serve you here, but you can go around.™-;

the corner to the Sheraton-Johnson Hotel; you can get a
drink," or something like that, "Buf we don't serve coloreds
in here."
DR. MUNSON: Was the fact that you thought the
-221-
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town would be more attractive to live in, was that be-
cause of the greater closeness of theaters, libraries and
concerts and so on, of this kind? E"i

MRS. GRAY: No. Before we came here, we had )
some literature on Rapid City Itself and about the area,
and the beauty of the Black Hills and everything else,
and we just thought, well, we'd be living in the community
where there wouldn't be any problem. You could go where

you wanted to. You could sge‘yhai:ygg;w§hfed to and. enjoy -

the community as a whole, as fhobghf?g qi?; fWli,‘#By’ i
were born here and you can just == you kgoy'ghaf it is like, , A
and we're here -- welve just come For’a short time and we —_
want to experience more or less, well, the same f’h‘ifflg." .
Not just say, "Well, you have to see certain things, and
you can'do certain things, but you can't do the rest.m

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Does anyone else have any
questions?

{(No response.)

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Thank you very much, Mrs. Gray.
There are at least two people wh9 would like fo make a shgrf A

statement. The first, | suppose, would be the Reverend

-
3

Jerry Hill.

35 T
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REVEREND GERALD HILL: Do you wish me to come for-

ward?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Pleasec.
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REVEREND GERALD HILL: My name is Gerald Hill.
I'm the minister of the Canyon Lake Methodist Church.

DR. PALMER: Excuse me, one minute.

REVEREND HILL: Yes.

~ DR. PALMER: Do | have the affidavit from Mr.

Gray, Mr. Richardson? )

MR. JOSEPH RICHARDSON: Yes. B

DR. PALMER: Thank you. Excuse me.

REVEREND HILL: And | am a. member of-.the-Black —%
Hills Civil Rights Commission and also the PeEf@senfafIVe T e
of the Rapid City Ministers! Association to this committee
meeting today. The association met today and drew up this
very brief statement of our feeling. .We state that, "We
do not practice discrimination in Rapid City and thf‘we
abhor any practice of it at all in any public place.™ This,
of course, is our -- our feeling, and that's ?he statement
that we have for you. | do have, in addition, | think a
list of —— of different groups within the church on a state-
wide basis who are supporting a public accommodations law.
Now, | know that you are concerned about many things besides

that and not that primarily today.

DR. PALMER: Not at all with that todey. o ;
REVEREND HILL: Yes. All right. But | would Iike i
to submit this, if -- Would you like me to read it2 |
think what it indicates is a climate of change within Christian
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groups and other groups within the state. Or do you just

wish me submit it? e o~ =

. L

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Does this have reference %o
the public accommodations law?

REVEREND HILL: Yes. Uh huh.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: 1| don't think that we would
want that information aft the moment, buf if you want to
submit it to the sectetary, it will be put in the file.

REVEREND HILL: Yes. s

it, you are offerxng this as an 1ndlcafxon of fhe feellngs ; :jfaff;
of a substantial body of Rapid Cify_people.’ . T i
REVEREND HILLz This is statewide, actvally.
DR. PALMER:z Statewide?
REVEREND HILL: Yes.
DR. PALMER: But Rapid City people are involved
in these organizations?
REVEREND HILL: Yes. | have just one statement -

to make as a private individual. | have come recently to

South Dakota. | have lived in Rapid City about a year and

a half, and | thoroughly love this cify and think it's a

wonderful place to live. It has many wonderful advggfage§,;u
but | would share -- 1t has been my impression, since
coming here, when it comes to some of our real problems

there is a tendency to overlook them and to kind of act as
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though they don't really exist. | feel personally we
would do a lot better to face up to them and to take some
steps to make some improvements. That's all | have to savy.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Thank you.

FATHER SI1EH: May | ask a question?

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Reverend Hill, someone would
like to ask you a questione

REVEREND HILL: Yes.

FATHER SIEH: You said, "We do not praciice dis= - . —
crimination in Rapid City." 1 meaﬁfygu,--iﬁhe minisierlST"T"h : =
association here believes there Is-no discrimjnafié; fn -

REVEREND HILL: In the churches, sir. That's
what | meant to saye. . . )

FATHER SIEH: In the churches?

REVEREND HILL: Yes.

MR. IKE CHASE: Mr. Chairman, just one question.
You are speaking also for the Southern Baptist Church out
in Robbinsdale? They don't =- Would they welcome colored -
people into their congregation?

REVEREND HILL: My understanding is that they

would.,

MR. CHASE: They would? i

~ vz e

REVEREND HILL: This is my understanding.
MR, JOHN LARSON: Are you sure?
REVEREND HILL: | have not talked to them per-
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sonally, but | understand that they do.

MR. RAFF: In your statement -- in the statement

of the ministerial association qqz,ﬁhgfmonds, "We abhor

racial discrimination.”

I wonder if you would‘read that
brief statement for us again.

REVEREND HiLL: Yes. Well, it isn't -- | don't
heve the final form of it here. Our statement is f@af_no

churches known to us practice racial discriminafion,‘and P

we do not approve racjal_ discrzmlnafuon at all in any
L0 “"‘"""‘L B % ‘:;‘ TR

public place. This is our sfafemenf:

PROFESSOR LAYMON: . Thank: you,)Reve;end

e g Ty

there is Mrs. Cédlvin Mclean who wanted to make a‘sjafgmgﬁ¥.

MRS . CALVIN McLEAN: | would like to make this

statement: There has been lots of opinions formed by
telephone conversations. | think anyone that has any
rental property of any sort will find that renting by phone
i$ poor business. It is that -- we run a motel -- the
Hoover Motel. It didn't take me long to find out that it
wasn'!t a good policy to rent over -- by phone. I} wasn't

colored people that taught me this policy, buf\l—met”wlfhlv

many encounters at my doorstep that had -- 1-roﬁld haveﬁ'

you." And so | think over the phone is a poor way to form

an opinion. Also, | know in calling people and asking them,
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| know of many instances where they were asked over the
phone, "Do you cater to Negroes?" Well, maybe ‘this person
does not cater, but he serves fh;m; so | think that was an
unfair question. And as far as the housing incidentfs, one
consolation: They aren!t alone. There is lots of dis~-
crimination because of white people because they have
children. | know of that in many instances. So, the only
thing | can say for them is they aren!t alone in that. Some
of their turning down -- this one instance that | know of =--
was a lady from the South; she had no interest here. She
was here today and gone tomorrow. It was her own personal
opinion, and she is gone out of Rapid now. Thank you.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Thank you, Mrs. Mclean. Is
there anyone else who has not had an opportunity to speak
today who wou!d like to make a statement. We have heard --
| don't know which gentleman was first. | think the gentle-
man in the blue shirt was first,

MR. VERNE BARNETT: My name is Verne Barnett. 1
have a rental agency that I'm puttering around with a little
bit in my spare time. It consists of about thirty-six
houses, aparfmenfs’and cabins. 1 also have a full-time job
that | have been puttering around with for nearly fhirfy'f“
years =- same location. But, | -- I'm very, very much
against discrimination on this housing. It matfers not to
me whether the boy can buy him a highball or not. He
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might. be better off iIf he couldn!t, Buty, | do =~ my --

my heart bleeds for a family that -- especially this time

of the year —-=- that can!t secure adequ§f%‘housing, regardless
of their color. ! feel sure that the thing has grown up all
out of proportion, f?o, as the paper would let us feel, but

I do think it exists, and | am awfully sorry that it does
exisf._ Nine of these units l'm falkfng~fo you about, I'm

buying, and | have a perfect rfghf to put anyone in those

apartments and houses that | wish, and 4 might say that- 1.

.;)v-,

i
. ..._.‘:_-- =amE

intend fo do just that fhrough an adverfusemenf in fhg__
Rapid City lournal or other mqggg:fhgi,Jthvg aVangb!e.ﬁ ;;
The problem is not me as a landlord or many of these ofhe;
nfce people that spoke as a landlord. .Thé problem is your

neighbors that live near this place where you want to put )
this colored family, and ! fhin? that to be an absolute fac#t.
I have a nice comfortable, warm, two-bedroom upstairs ?parf-
ment available right now -- or | did have this morning, and

I would just love to put that boy and his wife and those

four kids in there. Gee, it would just make me feel so good

to be able to do that, and If there is anyone living near

813 12th Street that are here now that would objecf fo if

| would like to hgg(hfhelr objecfxons. lf's fwo and a half.fg_

R

~

blocks south of Swanderds Bakery. [I'm afraid, though, if
| put them in there that the neighbors will gef up in arms.
They might even get so far up In arms as to go down to the
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city councile | don'!t think there would be anything they
could do about it. These peoPle that complain about so and
so and such and such a rental, they!re not the ones that
pays the five and fen or fifteen dollar plumbing charges
when you call a plumber. They are not the one that pays
the hundred and fifteen dollars for getfing a new floor

in the bathroom from -~ or so on. | think if's just real
sad that this thing even has to be discusseds | dontt
believe fhire is enough colored.persgnnel pre§gn+!v in the
community =—- | doubt if there ever will be enough In the =
community -- fo make one litftle bit of difference. o

DR. PALMER: Do you mean to suggest that you
don't believe this should happen. 11's too bad that it
does 2

MR. BARNETT: That's ift.

DR. PALMER: You are not taking the position
that in so Tar as an individuval such as Mrs. Gray has had
her life significantly affected by her experiences here,
that that'!s tolerable just because if's one case? You are
not taking that position®

MR. BARNETT: I don't ~- I didn!ft hear too much

.
W 2 Ve

of her conversation. | can appreciate the fa;t_fhaf she .

A Voep
Hord

wanted to come into Rapid City to make this community her
home. Mrs. Barnett and | wanted fto do the same thing, but
| can see that it's a lot easier for us than it will be for
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here.

DR. PALMER: And you don't believe that even
it's good for one case to _have occurred?

MR. BARNETT: No, I don't. And | think I1f's a
mistake.

DR. PALMER: And that in so far as there is one
case, | suppose you take the position that i#'s worthy of
some discussion or =--

MR. BARNETT: I fhlnk |f’s - l _think_ fhe thing - -

P -
e

has gotten ouf of chand, 1 - l have falked Fo eighf of

these renters -- or feganfs in fhgse.plgces~lnown£“§ng wes > < ktéhﬁ
sat down and talked about this discrimination. Some of

them are Indians. Some of these are whites. And | have
asked them and told them that | have been thinking abouf

this story in the paper, and | was very much against It,

and | wanted to sece how they felt about 1t because l_was_
certain that | was going to put that ad in the papeé. As
fast as vacancies occurred they will be filled without reser-

vation of race, color or creed.

DR. PALMER: Very good. . L W

. ez &
- e o~

MR. BARNETT: The night | talked to them, everydne -

of them agreed to It. At 813 12th Street, the Negro.~~.orad
the Indian lady on the second floor and the white couple on
the bottom floor both said, "Put them in there.™ %lLet them

move up there.™ If it!'s all right with them in the house,
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why should fhe neighbor across the street or down the block
a half a block complain? That's f@e way | feel.

MR. RUDELL: Mr. Barnett, are véu‘convinced
enough of this that you are going to withstand the pressure
of the neighbors even though they set up odds? )

MR. BARNETT: On these nine | am, yes, sir.

MR. RUDELL: Yes, sir. Okay.’ Good for you.

MR. BOB ASHEIM: Mr. Chairman, my name is Bob

Asheime. | svppbse this is the wrong time oflfhe,dgygtoa.rmwﬁm I

ask this duesfioni but we have hedrd this word ?di§crimfi? owt fzw**
nation" bounced around here and used In all %yp;§ of form; ’
today. | wonder if you would give a definition of the di;-
‘ crimination which vou are talking about.

DR. PALMER: I don't believe it's the function of
this committee to answer questions from the floor. -

PROFESSOR LAYMON: | don't think we care to really.
| would prefer not to affempf a definition.

MR. ASHEIM: Well, | have heard the word used so
loosely here today, and | am wondering just exactly what
welre talking about.

PROFESSOR LAYMON: 1 would hate to -= I would ~ -~ ~7I-

hate to synthesize the -- ‘ ) o,

oo R <
e A s - g J S A

FATHER SIEH: Could | give my own --
PROFESSOR LAYMON: -- many, many opinions that

the committee would have.
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FATHER SIEH: Could I give my own -

PROFESSOR LAYM(N: Go ahead, Father.

FATHER SIEH: Well, to me, a"?f"‘l'easf M is dis- -
crimination if it is rejection qf a particular person,
not on the basis of his behavior, but on fthe basis of
something such as race or religion, when it is a mq?fer
of a public service or a publ{c accommodation. Nggg l
happen to head a social work agency.vae are Cajhg!l;é‘on
our staff. We are required fo,makaﬂoun

¥ ~ PV ey

- ~ to all who seek them by state law, L

-3
- v
B

that. As It happens, it's very rare_ fhaf §nyodybufa

Catholic seeks our service, but we don't quxbble about

- -

making our services available to whoever seeks them. Now,
I'd be happy to have you question me as to what discrimi-

nation means to me.

MR. ASHEIM: Well, thatls -- that'!s sufficient.
]l mean, this Is your viewpoint. | was interested in this
because we secem to have stretched the word quite a ways

today -~ different ones of us == and | was quite Interested

e

in what the -~ what the area was that you were having a

hearing aboute.
FATHER SIEH:
MR . ASHE IM: No,

]l don't have. I'm asking - Tiﬁ‘
searching, I'm not --
FATHER SIEH: Is 1t a reality in your mind? ~
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MR. ASHEIM: Pardon me.

FATHER SIEH: Is it a reality in your mind? Is
there such a thing as discrimination, as far as vou are
concerned?

MR. ASHEIM: Oh, I'm sure == |'m sure there is
such a thing as discrimination. It's a frame of mind;]
isn't ite

DR. PALMER: Translated into behavior.

FATHER SIEH: It's an act, too. .

MR. ROSWELL BOTTUM:* Mr. Chairman == ~— e

PROFESSOR LAYMON: Mr. Bottum.

MR. BOTTUM: | had no intention of saying any-
thing here today. | was just going to listen. But 1
think, seriously, that perhaps a wrong impression has been
created here. | don'!t think there is any desire on the
part of the landlords in this town fto discriminate. | don't
think there is any desire on the part of restaurant OWners-
to discriminate. | know there is no desire on the part of
the so-called beverage dealers to discriminate. And if
there has been any discrimination, it's because of the
attitude of the general public, and nébody else. Let me
cite just a simple little example. 1 live here in Rapid‘.
Citye | have lived here a long time. | have one of the
nicest colored girls working in my house | know. Her hus-

band is a highly educated man., Hel's out here at the base.
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Tﬂey have'a liftle two and a half months old baby. When

the girl came and applied for work she says, "I don't

know what to do with my Iittle baby." -Well, 1 said, ™171]
take care_of that. I'1l go down here to a nursery I know
and arrange that she can -- your little baby can stay there,
and | will pay the bill." And I did. Much to my amazement,
the mothers of other little babies objected because that _

nice little colored baby was there in that nursery. _And

-

they said, "If you don't take tfhat, co]ored baby ouf
we won't bring” our_babies back. ?“Niﬂé :

._,; AKY

this thing Is. It Isn't the resfauranf owners.z lf !snff Y
the bar owners. It isn't the landlords.. It's the bigotry —
of the general public that!s Fausing the trouble in this

town. So | said to this girl, "You bring that little baby

out to my house at elght o'clock every morning.” I have

got a couple of little grandchildren there. | don't think

that two and a half month oid baby is going to confaminafe

my grandchildren.™ And that's where that little baby is,

i day after day. Now, it Isn't that nursery owner. _lf’s

the bigotry of the public in this town. Let me say some- e

thing for the beverage dealers here. They have no objeb—u‘

G =% = "'"5
tion to colored people coming_into their place. Their ;‘4%5;

2 “}’ 23
dollar is just as good as anyone elsel!s. And | know of any
number of bars in this town who have tried because they

conscientiously wanted to serve colored people. They found
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that by doing so, all they had in their place -- not due

to their fault -- was trouble between customers. And let

me say this:z It isn't all-on the side of the white people
customers. Those colored boys go in there and throw their
weight around, too, and so | don't know == It isn?'t == [t
isn't a matter of whether these people want to serve colored
people. Iffs a matter of survival. And the bar owners,

for example, Tind that if they haye so much trouble in their
bar, whether they cause it or not, it's held against them
the next time their license application comes up. The
liquor dealers! assocliation in this town have no objection

to serving colored people, but it's a matter of survival.

They have trouble when those people come in whether -- and

the fault is on both sides, gentlemen. Don!t ever think it

isn't. Ii!s on both sides. Many, many times when these

colored boys come in there, they try to throw fﬁeir weight

around, too. As an organization, the people | represent

here today, have no objection to serving colored people, but

they Tind that when they come in there, they have got frouble

on their hands, not due to their attitude. They want fo

serve those people, and so when they come up for a license, SN
the officers keep score. "You had so many disturbances in _ - 4
your bar during the year. We wonder if you should have a

license again.”™ It isn't a matter of discrimination. [t!s

a8 matter of common business practice, gentlemen. And [ feel
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that's absolutely the fact. And the fault is very often
on both sides; not just on one.

-

DR. PALMER: May | say that == for the record,’ . y

| don't believe we have identification, name and organization.
MR. BOTTUM: | represent the Rapid City Beverage

Dealers?! Association.

‘ DR. PALMER: And your name? '

MR. BOTTUM: My name is Roswell Bottum, and I'm

a lawyer here in Rapid City.
DR. PALMER: Thank you. _ _
MR. BOTTUM: Let me say fhfs also: Over a perigﬁggﬁ

of years, for some reason or another, | have represented in

the courts more colored people than | fhin% any law&er in
this town, h&sf fimes'wifhouf compensation, because they
don!'t have the money to pay me. And I'll say fhis; | never
had one convicted, if | can pat myself on the back, because
these juries, when a maftter is properly presented to them,
don!'t have any race prejudice, but | do find that these boys - e

are put upon, In some instances, and they need representation,

and | have felt it my duty and my obligation to represent _
them, and | have. | am for these colored people. But I"am~

also for the poor man who's trying to be in b”§i"gi§1 QEis;
who!s being put upon by some group or another because he
cannot, and stay in business, let those people come in,
regardless of whose fault it is. It isn't the businessman's Sz
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faulta 1t's the fault of the attitude or the bigotry, if

| may say that, of the general public, and I'm sincere

when | make that statement. ' B )
PROFESSOR LAYMON: Thank you, Mr. Bottum. |

must, most reluctantly, call this meeting to a halt. We

set the time as four-thirty and | am so sorry that we can't

have the benefit of the lost insights here today. I[It's

been mos?, most instructive for me. Al the risk of a very

poor pun, | would say that ift!s not all ?laqk.and white,

But we do thank all of you for attending, pérficQ]qqu o o

those of you who were willing to get up and _{j?sﬂfy’~ Ve N

thank the rest of you for your interest. Now, | assure you

that we won'!t do anything irresponsible with the information

which you have brought to us today. On behalf of the com-

mittee, | would like to thank you again. If anyone @as

statements which they feel should go into the record, but

which for one reason or another, they were unwilling fo

relate to us orally here today, why, please forward them to

me or to Dr. Munson, so that we can have the benefit of

those also, and unless someone has something else to bring

before the group, why, welll adjourn this hearing == or ST

meeting. Thank you very much. iﬁ@iﬁé

(Whereupon at four thirty-five, December 11, 1962,

the hearing was adjourned.)
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